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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
LAND USE COMMITTEE
COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 29, 2001
CHAIRMAN ARAKAWA: We'll call the Land Use Committee to
order.
Good afternoon, everyone. This is the, welcome to
the first meeting of the Land Use Committee. Before the
Council members I have some ground rules that I'm
proposing as a Committee for us to discuss, and this is
the way I'm going to be running the Committee pretty much.
So you have an idea of what the ground rules are going to be
at this time. Anyone who wants to change any of these rules
that I'm putting up, it's open for discussion and not cut in
granite. Okay?
So I'm gonna go over it real briefly so everybody
here understands how we're gonna do the format and then
we're gonna get into the items that are on the agenda, and
we're gonna be using this basically as the process. We're
going to be posting the agendas for the meeting and site
inspection seven days in advance.
That's item one.
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Item two, members will be notified by internal
e-mail of the tentative agenda items approximately 10
to 12 days in advance of the meeting.
Now you'll notice that there are a lot of bullets
under this. Members will be asked to properly inform the
Committee staff of the following: Whether they have any
objections to scheduling the tentative items; whether they
would like to notify Committee Chair of any concerns about
the tentative items; whether they think any items should
be scheduled for a site inspection or a night meeting in
the district where the project is located; whether they
would like any specific resource people invited to the
meeting; and whether they would like any member of the
community to be sent meeting agendas.
Now, the reason we're doing this is so that you have the
maximum time to inform us, and our staff can react to whatever
your, your requests are. So by trying to put this out as a
tentative agenda first, if someone for instance has a lot of
questions about a specific agenda item and wants to bring in
a lot of resource people, it'll give us time, our staff time
to perhaps reschedule the meeting until we can get all the
resource people there. If you have any questions that
you want to be answered, it'll give our staff time to
be able to react to it. So we're willing to adjust the
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tentative agenda until we can make sure that all of you
are comfortable with what we're putting on the agenda, and
then we'll post it about seven days in advance.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I apologize for interrupting. I
guess I'm a little concerned that this was handed to us two
minutes before the meeting started. It's not a posted item
on your agenda, and so it doesn't allow me to review it and
give comment to it at this point in time.
CHAIRMAN ARAKAWA: We're not -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So I just wanted to share that with
you that, you know, as far as the Sunshine Law violation, there
may be some grounds that what we're doing right now is outside
of that scope, and I just wanted to bring that out for the
record that -CHAIRMAN ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- in the future, maybe this needs to
be more of a Chairman's meeting type of discussion as far as
how we're gonna be talking about rules for committee, committee
meetings and how they are going to be run. So I don't know if
it's appropriate for us to talk about it here versus in the
Chairman's meeting. So I just wanted to bring that to your
attention, Mr. Chairman and, um . .

7
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's fine, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Basically, what we're doing is I'm
proposing this as a Committee Chair and we're discussing
this prior to starting our meeting so that we have some of
the background and ground rules and we'll be rolling right
into our regular items for discussion. Now, these are not
going to be voted on.
We're not voting on any of these. We're not making a
decision on any of these. These are a brief idea of how I
want to run the meetings and in the past, you know, it's
always been right for us to set some of the ground rules so
everybody understands what they are prior to starting the
meeting. That's all I'm doing.
So I don't believe it's a Sunshine agenda violation
because I am pertaining to this meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And item number three, if any
member wants any information placed in the binders prior to
the meeting, we're requesting that it be done two days prior
to the meeting, two business days.
Okay? So if anything coming in we will place in your binders

two days prior to the meeting. It will be part of the official
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transcripts that you get.
Anything after that, we'll just gonna announce them as
unofficial because our staff may not have time to xerox all
the copies and put them all in. We'll get it to you, but it
won't be part of the official -- what's in the binders. Okay.
And if you note the two bullet points, for the Land Use
Committee, for our staff, usually it means documents need to
be submitted to Committee staff by the Thursday prior to the
Monday meeting. So that gives us time to put it in the binders
because of the weekend.
Information received later than that will usually be
distributed at the meeting, as I just explained.
Four, suggestions for enhancing the Land Use Committee
website would be appreciated.
What we're going to be doing is we're going to try and
create a Land Use for website and you can go down some of the
other items and these are just suggestions that we have at
this point. Okay.
Item five, procedures during the meeting will be as
follows:
The usual format for each item will have the Applicant
making his presentation first, followed by the Planning
Department's presentation, then public testimony. So any
time we have a presentation, the Applicant will make a
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presentation, then the department will make their presentation,
and then public testimony.
Bullet under that, as much as possible, I would appreciate
the Applicant and the Planning Department making their
presentation in a visual format including videos, photos and
PowerPoint presentations. So there's a requirement in Planning
Commission that slides be shown or a videotape be shown. We're
going to try to do more of a PowerPoint presentation. So
slowly we're going to work in the direction so members be
prepared to be seeing a lot of PowerPoint presentations. As
a matter of fact, this morning we'll be having three PowerPoint
presentations.

And we have discussed this with the Planning

Department.
We're aware they don't have all the expertise necessary at
this time to do PowerPoint presentation so we'll slowly gonna
grow into this direction.
And I would like to note that we should refrain from
engaging in deliberations until we, after we have receive public
testimony. If necessary, we can recall the Applicant or the
Planning Department for questions after the testimony has
concluded.
Each testifier will be granted three minutes, but when
feasible, I will allow -- in other words, if we have just a
few testifiers we will allow additional time for testimony.
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If there are a lot of testifiers, we'll do three minutes.
We'll ask the Applicant or the testifier if they would be
able to conclude within a minute. If not, then we'll ask
them to come at the back end after everybody has had a chance
to testify and we'll give them up to a total of ten minutes
so they can finish up their testimony. If anyone that you
know of wants to make a presentation, let us know because
we'll put that in as a presentation rather than testimony
and they'll be allotted a little bit longer time periods.
Okay. And on item number six, for some of the testimony
that we need, when we need to have communication with other
departments that are off-island, like for instance we need
a specialist from the State, they're unable to attend,
we're going to consider using such things as videoconferencing
or telephone-conferencing so you may ask them questions
directly. We're gonna try and incorporate this kind of a
system so we can get as many questions answered in as timely
manner as possible for you.
And, you know, the final item is eventually I would like
to see the Committee use optical-imaging software and laptop
computers instead of binders. Basically, the direction we'd
like to eventually end up with is everybody here have laptops,
all of this information be put into the computers, so you're
able to pull it up at any time whenever you want and we
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have the ability to replicate everything for the public to
also use on a website. That's the direction eventually we're
gonna, gonna to try to get to. Any questions on any of this?
Yes, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: A big concern, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Only because you're having public
testimony after you get the applicant and the Planning
Department.

I think in those two areas there may be questions.

Now to hold the public and have them listen because some of them
they just come in and say, "I'm for the Applicant. I wanna
support this project," and then they can go. But if they gotta
sit in on a big, say a Project District or something like this,
if you got a myriad of concerns that we may have questions on
after the applicant gives a presentation or during the Planning
Department, and I don't think -- for myself personally anyway -I really need to ask questions as the presentation is made
Rather than wait for afterwards. And this way I think you
may keep the general public -- who knows for an hour or so.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, that's fine. The reason we listed
it this way was when we discussed this with Planning Department
this is what they had preferred to happen. Now, if any of the
Council members at any time want to change that for a particular
item, the Chair will entertain that. I have no fixed plan that
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I want to do or I'm committed to. So -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, the only concern I have is
giving public testimony after. Some people may choose to do so,
fine. But I would rather hear public testimony prior to the
presentation given.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For the general public and for
myself, personally.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that's fine. We can discuss it. We'll
bring it up as an item to discuss. The reason that we did it
this way was because we felt that if the Applicant gave its
presentation and the Departments gave their presentation, we'll
be giving the public more information. And that if they
testified after this, they could use that information as part
of their testimony if they so chose to.
If we have them testify prior to any of the presentations,
then they may not be able to testify with that other information
available to them. That was the only reason we did it this way.
But if you choose to have it that way, and the Committee chooses
to follow that, they want the public testimony first, the Chair
will entertain that. I'm really not fixed with it and I'm
willing to go however this Committee wants to go on that
particular method.
It was just my feeling and discussion with the Departments
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that it would be fairer, and it would be much better for the
general public if they could listen to what the actual
presentation was and have the public, have the departments
explain what their position was prior to making comments. But
again, I have no questions either way. No (inaudible)-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. And the only reason why I
bring it up is because if we start asking questions, I don't
want to ever be interrupted and say, Wayne, you know, we got 40
people that wanna testify, so, you know, can you please cut your
questions shorter, whatever. This is a problem that I wouldn't
want to offend anybody and I would think that those of the
general public that may want to -- I don't know how much
flexibility you're gonna need, but you can say, hey, if you
wanna testify after the presentation, fine. But maybe be
prepared to stay for an hour, hour and a half. People may not
have that much time in their working schedule. They may just
have been asked by the Applicant please come and help me. Come
testify over here. Just say I'm for the project and you can
leave.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And again, we-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Some of them there just wanna show
power, whatever.

I do not know what the reason is but--

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, I have no problem with that. We can
discuss it. I'll bring that up as a discussion topic within our
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Committee agenda. I just wanted to lay some basic ground rules
first before we start our first Committee meeting and that's all
that was. Okay. And it's a valid concern. We can discuss it
in more detail and I'll list it as an agenda item on our next
meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chairman, if someone does make
known that they have a time constraint, as Wayne has mentioned,
would they be able to then notify the clerk and at least just
make you aware of the fact that they choose or they would prefer
not to hear the testimony and come forward? Because I know that
I've been to Planning Commission meetings and basically the
way that it's done now is anyone requesting, due to time
constraints who cannot stay for the duration of the meeting has
been afforded the privilege of coming forward -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- and testifying.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: As the Chair, I have no problem with doing
that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Anyone who requests it, we can allow that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's just that as a basic system, we set it
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this way. But the Council can always honor a request by anyone
to speak for prior.
So we can always adjust that. So, it's not, uh . . . it's
not you cannot.
Any other questions? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You expanded on the bullet regarding
each testifier being granted three minutes. And what caught my
ear was that if you make a determination, as the Chair, of what
is a presentation versus what is testimony, a person who has a
presentation would be allowed more time. Have you set up a set
of standards that would designate what a presentation is or
who'd be able to give a presentation versus who would just be
considered a testifier?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Actually, what we're gonna be doing, Dain,
from our perspective is anyone who is interested in making a
formal presentation we would allow them to make a formal
presentation whether they'd be from the general public or as
part of the Applicant. So if there's more than one position and
they want to make a longer presentation, all that allows us to
do is schedule, okay. So if someone knows that their discussion
is gonna be little bit longer than what's necessary in being
able to give testimony, we'd try to be able to schedule it and
that's basically what the purpose is, is for scheduling
purposes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And when you talk about a
presentation, I'm assuming that would be germane to the topic of
the agenda item?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So if someone, if we know someone knows
that they have a lot of information they want to present, I
don't want them to be restricted to just the three minutes and
then having to stop it. So if we can plan it in, then we'll
allow them to be able to make a little bit more detail
presentation and we'll work on it. So, I'm trying, I'm trying
to build it with as much flexibility as possible, and the Chair
and the Committee I hope will entertain the public's request
to adjust our schedule as we can away from that, the general
format that we'll be following.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The other question, Mr. Chairman, if I
continue. And in your point number six, the first point
regarding meetings by videoconference, it's been the experience
of Committee of the Whole in the last term -- that by
consideration of utilizing this technology it's been the opinion
of the Office of Information Practices that if for any reason
there is some sort of malfunction during a meeting and it gets
cut off -CHAIR ARAKAWA: The meeting stops.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Exactly. The whole meeting, if
there's 20 items after that, everything gets stopped and it's
ended. So with that being said, I just wanted to make sure that
you're considering the ramifications of what you're suggesting
here.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, I'm aware of that, and that's why
you'll notice under six technology will be considered. So it's
something that we're gonna try and explore and see if as the
technology becomes a little bit more sophisticated if we could
possibly incorporate it within the presentations. But we are
aware of the fact that the ruling is that if there's a break in
whatever telecommunications there is, the entire meeting ceases
and we have concerns about that also. So it's something we'll
be trying to incorporate as technology gets a little bit better,
but it's the direction we wanna try and work with. In the past
I've had committee work where we've actually had telephone
conferencing so that we were able to have full conversations
with people that were not able to get here from the mainland,
for instance, and that has work out well. To be able to provide
the maximum information to everyone that we possible can and the
ability to ask questions of the right people.

Just, you know,

trying to fly everybody down here and be here exactly the same
time for the meeting is very difficult at times. So it's just
trying to build flexibility.
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Any other questions? Okay. If not, then look at the stuff
that I handed out for you then we can have -- I'll schedule this
as an agenda item at our next meeting so we can discuss some of
the particularities.
And if anybody has a strong feeling about anything to add
in, subtract, change, please let us know so we can adjust.
We're trying to make this as easy for the Committee to work with
and as open to the public as we possible can and any suggestions
are welcome.
6

REQUEST FROM DAVID SPEE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE STATE
LAND USE DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION, AN AMENDMENT TO THE
PA IA-HAIKU COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE MAP, AND A
,

CHANGE IN ZONING (C.C. No. 00-235)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you very much. And we will be

having four items on the agenda today. Our first item is Land
Use item number 6. Request from David Spee for an amendment to
the State Land Use District classification, an amendment to the
Paia-Haiku Community Plan and Land Use Map, and a change in
zoning. Let's see . . . we have, um . . . no one I think . .
Are you testifying? You are David Spee?
MR. SPEE: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, so David why don't you make your

testimony.
MR. SPEE: (spoke away from the microphone) I haven't sole
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looked at the presentation today. This is a copy of my site -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You need to speak into the mike,
everything's for the record.
MR. SPEE: This is a copy of a the site plan, um . . . where
I'm requesting the Change in Zoning. Okay, hi, my name is David
Spee. I'm the Applicant. What is in front of you is a copy of
the site plan for the project. What it shows in this
highlighted box is approximately 2,155 square feet of land that
is currently zoned agriculture. I am seeking the land
designation reclassification to create uniformity of zoning
within the lot. I purchased the lot in 1999. In 1995 there was
a adverse possession claim by the former property owner with
A&B. They settled and in that year there was a deed conveying
the 2,155 square feet. That deed was not recorded until 1998.
The community plan I believe was amended in 1995; but at that
time, no one knew that this extra parcel had been obtained.
The portion lies at the bottom of about a 10-foot embankment.
So even though it is in agriculture, zoned agricultural, it's
part of an excess of 500-acre lot that A&B currently cultivates
sugar cane. They have never cultivated at the bottom of that
embankment. In fact, there's probably another 2,000 square feet
at the bottom of the embankment besides the 2,000 that the
previous owner acquired that is just inaccessible to A&B. They
can't get the, any of their machinery down there.
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I'm seeking the reclassification in order to construct and
actually I've already constructed a two-story building on the
property, and this portion is where my parking lot is. And
there are three -- excuse me, four parking stalls as part of
that parking lot. So the . . . I guess the benefit to the
community is that extra portion has added 12 stalls in the
entire parking lot to Paia town, and the project itself has
added in that 20 stalls to all of Paia.
So basically the land has never been used for
agriculture. I don't think it could be in the future. The
. there's been a net benefit to the community because of the
parking lot.
And last thing I'm seeking, I guess, a uniform
classification of the property which not only assist me but I
guess would assist the tax assessor when they look at the land
also. That there's not two different tax classifications.
That's all I have.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Planning Department? John, do you want to
comment on that?
MS. HIGA: The applicant is seeking -- okay, Julie Higa,
staff planner.
The Applicant is seeking a District Boundary Amendment, a
Community Plan Amendment, and a Change in Zoning for 2,155
square feet of land area for a State Land Use District Boundary
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Amendment from Agriculture to Urban, and a Change in Zoning from
Interim to BC-T Country Town Business, and an Amendment to the
Paia-Haiku Community Plan from Public/Quasi Public to
business for 249 square feet of land area to comply with
condition number 1 of Ordinance No. 2809, No. 64, adopted 1999
granting a conditional permit, a tax map key 2-6-3 parcel 1 in
Paia.
This is basically a housekeeping measure, because at the
time the Applicant came in for his Special Management Area
Permit, we discovered there was -- he identified parcel 2 was
2,155 square feet more than what the tax map key map showed and
what we had on record.
And so as a condition of approval -- well, then the
Applicant, since we discovered there was 2,155 square feet that
was not in conformance to zoning or the community plan, the
Applicant had to also file a Conditional Use Permit.
So for that area, he came in for a Conditional Use Permit,
which was approved by the Maui County Council about two years
ago. And that was on November 23, 1998. And on this portion he
requested the 11-stall parking lot. The buildings are already
constructed and so is the parking lot, based on the
Conditional Permit that he acquired as well as the SMA permit
that was approved December 14, 1999.
And the parcel 1 is a total of 5,436 square feet, which
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includes the 2,155 square feet. So basically this is a
housekeeping measure, just to make everything conform to what's
existing on the lot.
Are there any questions?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Julie, if I may ask the Planning
Department. Is it customary to, with the Conditional Use
Permit, run the risk or what it be customary for the Applicant
to run the risk of building on something and then not being able
to get a zoning change later? I'm just, I'm posing it as a
question because I have seen this done in other cases, and I
don't know why you would put capital at risk if there's a
possibility that it might not be approved.
MS. HIGA: In this case, it's a part of a parking lot. And
there was only 2,155 square feet. And normally a Conditional
Use Permit can also be extended. And so people -- I mean, that
is a common thing that occurs, where people come in for
Conditional Use Permits and they get extensions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? So the
recommendation from the Department, as I'm hearing it, is to
approve the application; is that correct Julie?
MS. HIGA: The Maui Planning Department as well as the Maui
Planning Commission recommended approval of the request.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? Further questions? If not,
the Chair would entertain a motion.
Dain, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, the applicant
. Maybe we can have him sit down. He's just standing
there. Maybe as a courtesy we can let him sit down. And if he
needs to be questioned, we can call him back to the stand.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, he's there because if any of you have
questions, we'll allow to you ask. But if there are no further
questions. Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to know, was there
anyone in the audience that had signed up to testify on this
particular measure?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, we have no one to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And one question, Mr. Chairman, and
just to follow up on Ms. Johnson's question to the Planning
Department. Is there at a point where you folks would
discourage an applicant from moving forward in the project -I mean, her question was, is it a custom to allow building
before a final approval from this body. The way I got what she
said. Is there a point -- because your comment or your
response, Julie, was it was only 2,000 feet. Is there a point
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in which you folks say, It's too big for us, so we'll allow you
to move forward until we get Council approval? And again, this
is just for me to get clarification from the Planning Department
and the recommendation process.
MR. MIN: That's a good question. John Min from the
Planning Department. In terms of Conditional Use Permits, you
know, we do look at it on a case-by-case basis.
And, in this particular instance, given the size of the
parcel in question in relation to the overall project, you know,
it was our determination that the Conditional Use Permit
procedure was appropriate okay.
The Applicant has chosen to -- and actually I believe it's
a condition of the Conditional Use Permit -- that he come in to
obtain the proper zoning and land use classification. So that's
why he's here today.
But again, I think we look at it on a case-by-case basis.
There has been a precedent for allowing parking lots through the
Conditional Permit procedure. So in applying that, we felt that
this was a reasonable request through that procedure.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But my question was, John, is there a
point where you folks, in your discretionary authority that you
have as a Director, is there a point where you say, It is not in
your best -- we'll not approve this project unless you move
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forward and get the proper approvals from the Council body
before we allow you to do that?
MR. MIN: Yeah. Yeah. Normally, when we meet with
applicants before they file their application or at the time
that they file, we take a look at it to see if the application
that they're requesting is appropriate okay.
Certainly, if a substantial portion of the area, let's say
for a commercial project, was located within, let's say, a
residential zone, we would certainly, you know, recommend that
rezoning or a community plan amendment application be filed.
And again, it would be where it would be very obvious that
that would be the correct approach. In this particular
instance, again, the land area is very small. It's basically
a remnant parcel. And so we felt, in the grand scheme of the
overall project, that it was very small; that a Conditional
Permit was appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, John.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Mike then Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. A question for
the Applicant. What is your estimated completion date of this
project if say (inaudible) -CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's done already.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It is pretty completed. Sorry, I'm
not totally informed about this project, and I just bring it up
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because of the traffic concerns with Paia and also potentially
how many tenants could you entertain in this particular project?
MR. SPEE: Five tenants. Excuse me, 6 because one of the
buildings was sold, and that one building that was sold has
three parking stalls designated in perpetuity. So, in total,
there are six separate tenants.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki, then Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Min, can
you -- I'm trying to recollect what happened last term when we
reviewed this in Mr. English's committee. What are the existing
conditions of approval that Mr. Spee currently deals with
besides the required processing of a Change in Zoning, State
Land Use District Boundary Amendment, and a Community Plan
change?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: While John is looking for that, just be
aware, those of you who are new, this is an area in Paia as
you're going up Baldwin Avenue on the right-hand side, it's at
the top of the town. So just at the very top, there's a little
open space that they created a parking lot and that's what this
is for, for that right-hand side.
Ready, John?
MR. MIN: Okay. To respond to your question, there were two
conditions of the Conditional Permit. First condition read that
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the Conditional Permit shall be valid for a period of one year
from the effective date of the ordinance establishing it,
provided that an extension of the permit beyond this one-year
period may be granted, pursuant to section 19.40.090 of the
Maui County Code. And further provided that the Applicant has
with due diligence applied for a State Land Use District
Boundary Amendment, a Community Plan Amendment, and a Change
in Zoning within 90 days after the effective date of the
ordinance establishing the Conditional Use. The Conditional
Permit shall be null and void upon the adoption of the
ordinances amending State Land Use District Boundary Amendment,
Community Plan Amendment, and a Change in Zoning.
And condition number 2, that the Conditional Permit shall
be nontransferable without the prior written approval of the
Maui County Council.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that answer your question, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, for the existing uh, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Do you have any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your propose, I'm trying to find,
are you proposing any additional conditions either from the
Planning Department or the Commission for zoning?
MR. MIN: No, we're not.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Explain the offsite parking.
MS. HIGA: In our report regarding this subject matter, we
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did include the approval letter. And the Applicant had to get
in addition a State Special Use Permit application because it
was, in the State Agriculture District, and there were
conditions attached to that. And that was about six conditions.
In addition, they had the Special Management Area permit in
which there were 10 -- well, a total of 12 conditions. And the
offsite parking lot approval there were two conditions. The
offsite parking approval was because there's actually two
parcels that came in for the application initially.
And the first one has the proper zoning, community plan,
and that's in the urban district, it's Country Town Zoning,
Business community plan. And there's one building on that site.
The parking for that building, which he mentions they sold, has
three parking stalls that are located on this parcel 1 that
has the parking lot. And the offsite parking approval was to
approve those three parking stalls on parcel 1 in perpetuity for
the one-story building. And there's a Unilateral Agreement that
is required to be filed with the Bureau of Conveyances.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that means that the Applicant
still uses those three stalls that he doesn't own, and -- I'm
just trying to understand his offstreet parking arrangement.
MR. SPEE: Excuse me. I might be able to explain. They
are, there's, they're predesignated. They have the name of Hi-
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Tech Surf and Sports reserved for them only on the stalls. And
so because Hi-Tech that building does not touch the parking lot,
that's why it's offsite parking. Technically, it's not part of
the same parcel. So they are predesignated. And when the
project was -- when we first sat down to do the project, we had
to calculate the square footage, how much parking do we need,
and we came up with 11 stalls. In the end, we were able to
squeeze one more, and there's actually 12 stalls on the lot.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, Dave, the actual offsite parking lot is
in your parking lot?
MR. SPEE: Yes, there's three stalls predesignated for that
one-story 1,500 square foot building. There are nine additional
stalls for the two-story 4,000 square foot building.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So it was offsite because it was not part of
the former lot, but it's part of his parking lot. That explains
it. Any further questions, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In your parcel that you sold, what
kind of businesses operate there?
MR. SPEE: It's Hi-Tech Surf and Sports. That's it. One
retail business.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how many stalls do you have for
that one?
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MR. SPEE: There are three designated stalls.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How many employees do you employ at
this Hi-Tech?
MR. SPEE: It's not my business. It's Kim Ball who owns the
company.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you have any idea how many
employees work there?
MR. SPEE: I think there are two at all times.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And most of them, because we don't
have public transportation, probably drive a car?
MR. SPEE: I know that the manager rides his bike from
Spreckelsville every day.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Say he does, the other one drives a
car?
MR. SPEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So ultimately, you are saying that
you are doing us a favor because you are providing more parking?
Is that what you said, you were able to provide more parking now
with this remnant piece?
MR. SPEE: By doing this project, not only did we provide
the 12 stalls in the parking lot, but the front of the lot had
driveways previously, so there was only parallel parking.
Working with the County, we were able to change that parallel
parking to angled parking and obtain another net nine stalls
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from I believe there were two parallel spots with the various
driveways. Now we were able to eliminate those two and stripe
11 more angled slots up the street.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. In your 4,000 square feet
building, how many tenants are there?
MR. SPEE: There are . . . there will be five.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And is that mean that all the spaces
within the two stories have been then taken? Is the entire
building rented?
MR. SPEE: Yes. Although one of the tenants is still in
buildout.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now within -- are you an
onsite manager? Do you . .
MR. SPEE: Yes, I have my office there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Then how many employees work
within that 4,000 square foot building? What kind of businesses
are there right now?
MR. SPEE: There's a vacation rental with the owner and then
a secretary.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Two.
MR. SPEE: There's a long-term property management with the
owner and her daughter.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Two.
MR. SPEE: Myself with my secretary.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Two.
MR. SPEE: A clothing shop that usually only has one
employee, and then there's a dentist doing their buildout right
now. And I don't know what his staff is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Dentist receptionist and then eight
maybe at the least?
MR. SPEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So then . . . and is that then
maximizing your two-story building?
MR. SPEE: I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, out of the perhaps -- how many
stalls do you have for this building now?
MR. SPEE: Well, there are 12 onsite -- part of the -well, 9 for this building, excuse me. But in addition, behind
the building, most of the employees park. There's approximately
six additional -- there's space for additional six in the back.
And a lot of the employees park behind the building. They
don't park in the stalls that are designated for potential
clients.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So these are all stalls that are
onsite?
MR. SPEE: It's behind the building.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Onsite. Within your property?
MR. SPEE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So then just say on a given
day you have to provide parking for about 7 to 10 people.
MR. SPEE: All I know is that my office sits above this
parking lot, and I would say 90 percent of this parking lot is
being used by Mana Foods. It's not being used by my client.
It's an open parking lot. Every day I probably clear two or
three Mana Foods shopping carts, Mana Foods trash, Mana Foods
everything.
So I don't know what the question is, but the lot is not
being used by very much by anyone using my project. It's being
used by the overflow of Paia. And they don't park in the
stripes. They park right up to the driveway. I mean, there's
an extreme overflow in Paia of parking, and so I'm at a dilemma
really on what to do on this parking lot because -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Inadequate parking.
MR. SPEE: I don't want to reserve every single spot for
every single tenant. I want to leave it open, but it gets
extremely abused.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I realize the problem, and
that's the reason why I think we need to kinda look forward
because that's why we purchased that parking lot on Haleakala
Highway because of the types of buildings there which have no
real parking except for the public parking. And my concern is,
as we move into Business Country Town and see buildings
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coming up, I think my concern is the inadequate amount of
parking stalls that we have maybe in our existing ordinance.
And so we need to get planning to do their work in looking at
this situation.
And from what I hear from you, the kind of businesses you
have there, maybe are not driven for the need of parking,
although I see a dentist if he's got a patient there or two,
they're gonna have to park some place. A vacation rental, I
don't know how active it is there. But if you got two or three
people constantly coming in, then you are gonna need two or
three parking stalls. There goes all the parking that we now
require. The other businesses have to be manned, and I'm sure
that there is people that walk into these businesses aren't
there, Sir? And they have to park their cars somewhere.
MR. SPEE: I think there's an extreme inequity that the
developer sees. That developer is gonna come to Paia -- and
I'm an integral part of Paia, I think I will be there for a long
time, and maybe do other projects. But it is disconcerting to be
a developer to devote, I would say, probably two to three
hundred thousand dollars to build this parking lot where you
have the rest of the town, which I think abuses the
grandfather clause of their structures, including gross
renovations and going around and not providing additional
parking.
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So that the new developer then is stuck shouldering the
burden of the rest of the businesses in town that provide zero
parking that -- I mean, if you look at the tax rules, pay a
reduced rate on their taxes because of the age of their
buildings, yet are collecting many far in excess of the rent
that I'm charging in the new development.
So if you are looking at the equities of what country town
needs to do, if you want to take it out of basically the height
of new development, I think you will stifle new development on
people who try to do good projects in these towns, try to abide
by the rules, and actually provide the parking as required.
I mean, I did this development doing having to crunch the
numbers to make the size of the building work with the size of
the parking lot. And, if I had more . . . if I had to provide
more parking, I don't think the numbers would have worked.
And I have not received one complaint about my building or the
whole project. Nothing but praise for this project. Yet, if
-- the project may have never even occurred. The net 20 gain
of parking stalls may never have occurred if the parking
requirements were even more stringent.
And to me the dilemma is more, how do you somehow make it
equitable to everybody. Because a lot of these grandfathered
laws have brought -- I mean, it's not the original owners. I
understand the reason for the grandfather laws is to protect
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someone who has been there for 20, 30 years. But a lot of these
buildings are being churned every two or three years. And
extreme profits are being made; yet there's no look at what the
County requires. And there seems to be a blind eye when
buildings are torn down and just put up right away again and no
parking requirements are required. It's very frustrating for me
because I am in Paia every single day.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this just as a person
doing business there. If you didn't have parking provided for
on your piece of property for your employees and for your socalled business people coming in, then do you think it's
government's responsibility to spend taxpayers money for a
business person and provide that parking? Just us when you
purchase a home we make you fulfill a parking requirement for
your car that you own or -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, if I may. Perhaps
that would be better directed toward our Planning Department
because they are making the requirements of the tenant, of the
developer on their property. So if the Department has rules
mandating the number of parking stalls that this person is
required, perhaps if you want to expand a number of parking you
should question the Department as to whether they need to expand
their requirements or not.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this then. In your
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physical area, can you do tandem parking? Do you know what
tandem parking is?
MR. SPEE: Back to back.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Because you've got people
that are gonna be there, a secretary and a dentist that are
going to be there, so they can park right behind each other and
not worry about blocking.
MR. SPEE: All of the tenants upstairs, which are three
separate tenants, all of us do that that in the back of the
building. That's how we get all the employees in the back to
free up the rest of the parking lot. That way I can talk to my
secretary and between the two of us we can move and the same
with the other tenants. And that's just our way of creating
more parking in the lot. Okay, thank you. I'm done.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Wayne, that might
be something we want to discuss with the Departments, if we want
to really look at the parking improvements in Paia or any other
district.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just know that, Mr. Chairman,
there's an inadequacy. And every time there's an inadequacy
because our ordinance does not cover this concern, then pretty
soon we start widening roads and eliminating parking, offstreet
parking, and then the big burden is 1, 2, 3 million dollars that
we gotta to take out of the County coffers to provide this. And
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so this we may need to look at as we look at our parking
requirements for Business and Country town.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. That's what I'm suggesting.
That's something we should be looking at. Thank you. Any
further questions? If not, the Chair would entertain a motion
to approve the three items requested. A bill for an ordinance
to amend the State Land Use District Classification from
Agricultural to Urban for property situated at Paia,
Hamakuapoko, Maui, Hawaii, a bill for an ordinance to amend the
Paia-Haiku Community Plan and Land Use Map from Public/QuasiPublic to Business for the property situated at Paia,
Hamakuapoko, Hawaii, and a bill for an ordinance to Change
Zoning from Interim to BC-T Country Town Business district for
property situated in Paia, Hamakuapoko -- excuse me -- Maui,
Hawaii and to file the communications.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So Moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moved by Charmaine, seconded by Pat. Any
discussion? All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried. Thank you, sir.
MR. SPEE: Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares
and Chair Arakawa.
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NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill; and FILING of
communication.

8

REQUEST FROM KAREN LEI NOLAND, KAUKINI GALLERY & GIFT
SHOP, FOR A CONDITIONAL PERMIT (C.C. No. 00-302)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I have had a request to move item Land Use 8
forward on the agenda because we have a lot of people that want
to testify, and that they are worried about getting tickets in
the parking lot. So if I can, would that be okay? Any
objections to that?
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: On Land Use 8 this is one of those items
where we might want to change the procedure. Would it be all
right to have the testifiers testify before the process?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're gonna go ahead, we're gonna ask people
to testify so that you don't get tickets in the parking lot.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Charmaine.

40

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, if they want to?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If they want to.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you leave that option open where
they can testify later?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I'm going to read the people who have
applied to testify. If you want to testify now, I'll let you
testify. And I'm going to read two names: first and second,
okay. The first one to come to the mike and then the second one
be ready to come up.
If you don't want to testify at this time, let me know and
then we'll have the presentation. And then after the
presentation from the Department, then we'll let you testify.
Bob Hoenig, you want to testify now? Deanna Correa will be
next.
MR. HOENIG: As the Chairman mentioned, my name is Bob
Hoenig. I'm a ceramic artist. I have lived on Maui for
approximately the last 10 years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Bob, just two seconds. Land Use item 8 is a
request by Karen Lei Noland for Kaukini Gift and Gallery Gift
Shop for Conditional Use Permit.
Excuse me, Bob, go ahead.
MR. HOENIG: No problem. I have known Karen Noland for
approximately six years. During that time, she has encouraged
me and my artwork and has made it possible for me to display

41

some of my ceramic creations. Selling my artwork in the Kaukini
Gallery helped me supplement my retirement since I did retire 10
years ago when I moved over here. And the income and the
ability to display my work has helped immensely. I am sure that
I echo the sentiments of many other Maui artisans, many of whom
I have spoken to recently. When I say how Karen's art gallery
has been extremely beneficial to the advancement of our art. I
strongly urge you to support this application and I am
confident that you will do the best for this community and the
many artisans who sell their artwork in the Kaukini gallery.
Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Bob? If not, thank you,
Bob. Deanna Correa. She'll be followed by Kealahou Alika.
MS. CORREA: Aloha, my name is Deanna Correa. I'm
testifying on my own personal behalf for Kaukini Ranch and
Gallery Conditional Permit. Being a single parent of two
children with a mortgage and bills to pay, I have a side
business Kanae's Crafts (phonetic). I make tapa products and
wholesale them.
Karen has been selling my products for several years, and I
have come to know her as a very professional and trustworthy
businesswoman who is always helping the community in whatever
way she can. She sells mainly local products which helps all of
us small business people and keeps the money in the
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community.
Please support the Conditional Permit for Karen Noland.
And I also want to add that it's pretty much the only place
where you can stop to use the restroom.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Deanna? If not, thank
you. Kealahou Alika. Sorry for butchering that. I need to
change glasses. Following you will be Antoinette Polancy.
MR. ALIKA: Aloha, my name is Kealahou Alika. I have been
serving as the pastor of Keawalai Congregational Church in
Makena since 1991. Whether or not it's already been brought to
your attention, some of you may know that Karen's grandparents,
the late uncle Eddie Chang, Sr., and Auntie Harriett Chang were
able to settle in the Kahakuloa area many years ago.
The Changs also have family ties to Makena that go back
several generations. I first came to know Karen when she
returned to Maui to care for her grandfather, Uncle Eddie, Sr.
along with other family members. As creative and resourceful
as she is, Karen's found a way to integrate her family life and
work life. And she did this while caring for her grandfather.
It was during those years in the mid 1990's that I came to
know of Karen's aloha for her family, for the community, for the
church, and for Maui. Over the years, she has shared her time
and talent with us in Makena by creating the design for t-shirts
for three of our luau fund raisers. She has also designed
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t-shirts for our children's canoe club as well as for one of our
music programs.
And more recently her artwork has been featured on a
compact disk that our choir recorded last summer and just
released on January 1st of this year.
Through our work together, I have come to appreciate two
very special qualities about Karen: her creativity and her
integrity. You will see her creativity not only in her work
as an artist but in the way she has created a wonderful
opportunity for other Maui artists to share their work with
kamaaina and malahini alike.
You will see her integrity in her work as a
businesswoman and in her desire and willingness to make
certain her work is in compliance with all that the law
requires.
After the construction of her home, after it was
completed, Karen invited family members and friends from Makena
and Kahakuloa to celebrate the occasion with a blessing and a
pa'ina. I had the honor of offering that blessing and joining
in the reception that followed.
By granting her request, you will bless not only Karen, but
all who have come to appreciate the contributions she has made
and continues to make to all of our communities. Mahalo.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Kealahou? If not, thank
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you very much. Antoinette Polancy followed by Bojana Aleman.
MS. POLANCY: My name is Antoinette Polancy. I have homes
and land of Maui Real Estate magazine and Karen rented from me
for a while, so I know her pretty well. I am just absolutely
stunned by her. I wish she were my daughter. She just is the
most caring person and I'm most astounded by what a very good
businesswoman she is.
I retired recently and now she carries two of my books in
her gallery. And again, I see what she has done. And the way
she did it, she had the foresight to come to her grandfather
and say, I will take care of you -- and say to the family, I
will take care of you, and then she built a life here for
herself. And she has built the little Kaukini Gallery up there.
It's just beautiful.
As far as my books go, she seems to be a very successful
businesswoman. For what it's worth, I can vouch that she takes
very good care of her records, and she pays on time, and she's
just kind of an amazing person to me. That's all I have to say.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Antoinette. If not, thank
you very much. Bojana followed by Boogie Luuwai.
MS. ALEMAN: Hello my name is Bojana Aleman. I don't have
anything prepared to say. I just wanted to speak in favor of
Karen. My husband and I moved here from the mainland about six
years ago, and he is also a small business owner. And since
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that time members of Karen's family have kind of hanaied us, and
we have become very close to them, and they're all good people.
And just adding to what Kealahou said, they give to their
community. It's a really beautiful thing when you see Karen -she gives art classes to the children in Kahakuloa and the
people just really admire her and she does so much. And so I
hope that you'll give approval to her application. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? If not, thank you very much.
Boogie Luuwai followed by Richard Hoopii, Sr.
MR. LUUWAI: Aloha.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Aloha.
MR. LUUWAI: Chairman Arakawa, Council members.

My name is

Boogie Luuwai, and I'm from Makena and we're ohana to the Chang
family through the Kukahiko side. And I'm speaking in favor of
her application. She is one of those entrepreneurs that we need
on Maui that . . . and most of her paintings that she sells are
all Maui made. Not Taiwan or China but Maui. And supports a
lot of people on this island. And this is why I'm speaking for
Karen. Mahalo.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? If not, thank you, Boogie.
Richard Hoopii followed by Maile Luuwai.
MR. HOOPII: Aloha (inaudible). Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED ALOHA.
MR. HOOPII: Aloha, Councilmen and women, Chairman Arakawa,
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committee people, ladies and gentlemen. Richard K. Hoopii, Sr.
from Kahakuloa village.
For the 60 years I lived there all my life with all the
kupunas, I have learned something that in our lifetime sharing
is very important. Here today we stand in front of you to give
this variance and approval to this young lady who come, born and
raised here on Maui -- born on Maui and raised in, in somewhere
on the mainland and finally came home and gave back to her
grandparents.
Knowing her grandparents for many years, teacher Harriett
Chang was my teacher. She was a wonderful teacher. See the way
I grew up. But I want to tell you that it helps the community
with a gallery on the top of there. Some of the people living
in the village say, "Whose house is up there? Is that a big
haole house?"
I said, No, it's a kuka oka aina (sic) people of the
village that lived here. And that helps us in the community, it
helps our children to grow, and it's most important the
paintings that she does and perhaps you may one day travel there
and purchase one of these scenic areas in Kahakuloa which is
Puukoa and she draws that wonderfully.
And I hope that every one of you will have an opportunity
to take that home with me. The name of this gallery that she
has is Kaukini. Not any other pronunciation. It's Kaukini.
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So I just want to thank you for giving me this opportunity to
spare the time to come here.
And to you, Karen, may God be with you and bless you and
continue to give you the support. And have the people that's
supporting you, don't forget to send them downhill to the
village to visit, so that everyone would be benefited by the
people coming through. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions? If not, thank you, Richard.
Maile Luuwai. Is there anyone else at this time that wants to
testify on this item? If not, Maile is the last to testify.
MS. LUUWAI: Aloha, I'm Maile Luuwai asking the, this
committee to grant Karen Noland's request for Conditional Use
Permit. Karen Noland is my cousin, but I'm here not only
because she's my cousin, I'm mostly here because there are very
few female role models of Hawaiian decent who are very
successful entrepreneurs. And Karen is one of the select few.
She created her business from the ground up. I remember when
she actually came here from Honolulu, she told me, cuz' -somebody needed to care for her grandfather and she's very
worried about it. But she was also concerned about how she was
going to make a living. And Kahakuloa, as you know, if you ever
go out there, it's a long way from anywhere.
So when Karen came out here she said, "Cuz' I'm
thinking of starting a business out there. I can care for my
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grandfather, I can start a business."
And I said, "But what kind of business are you going to
start?" And she said, "Well, an art gallery." I thought an art
gallery? Do any tourists go through Kahakuloa? And she goes,
come out one day and take a look.
So what we did is I brought out a six-pack, and we kind -I don't know if you remember this, but we sat on the side of the
road, and I'm like, "Oh, my God. Look at all these people.
Karen, what a good idea."
I never knew that that amount of traffic actually went
through Kahakuloa. So when she started her business, I mean,
from day one it was very successful. And at the same time she
took really great care of my Uncle Eddie. She just is a
wonderful role model. She's a wonderful human being.
What she is doing in Kahakuloa is not only setting an
example for other Hawaiians and encouraging other Hawaiians
to start successful businesses, she's also continuing and
perpetuating a generation -- she's a third generation Chang,
and she's on property that her grandfather had purchased many
years ago. So she's also beginning a heritage and a
perpetuation of her own family ties to the area.
So please grant my cousin her request. She does a great
thing not only for the community but also for her family and
also for people of native Hawaiian decent. Thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for Maile?
Thank you, Maile.
At this time, Michele, would you like to make a
presentation? We're going to be doing a PowerPoint
presentation, so we're going to be dropping this screen.
So I'll move to the back. What we're going to do is we're going
to take a three-minute recess so we can get everything set up.
If anyone wants to use the bathroom or whatever, take this
opportunity now.
Recess. (gavel)
RECESS: 2:35 p.m.
RECONVENE: 2:40 p.m.

CHAIRMAN ARAKAWA: Okay. I'm going to call the Land Use
Committee back to order. Michele.
MS. CHOUTEAU: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My name is
Michele Chouteau. I'm representing the Applicant. It's a
pleasure to be here with you this afternoon. And thanks to
the Committee staff, we do have a couple of photographs in
the presentation today. This is a photograph of the residence
and art gallery. The art gallery comprises the first floor,
and the Applicant's residence is on the second floor. As you
know, the Applicant is Karen Lei Gates Noland. She's proposing
to operate an art gallery and gift shop that sells made-inHawai'i arts and crafts. The property comprises a little over
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2 and a half acres. It's just .7 miles east of Kahakuloa
Village. The land is rated E-98 by the LSB, and it's not
ALISH rated. Those are agricultural ratings. The E-98
rating relates to relatively poor soil quality and steep pali
lands. The slope of the majority of the property is about 35
percent, also it's not ALISH rated. ALISH stands for
Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawaii.
Even though the property is designated agricultural on,
on, - by the State and the County and was formerly part of
the Chang family's ranch lands, this particular 2-and-a-halfacre area is not well-suited to agricultural uses. The property
is also, excuse me, a little over 9 and a half miles from
Waihee, so it's just outside of Kahakuloa Village. The property
was subdivided from the Chang family's ranch land from a parcel
that's just about 150 acres. It was subdivided a couple of
years ago so that the Applicant could build her home.
She began building her new home in 1998 and opened the
gallery in 1999. As some of the testifiers mentioned, she had
previously started the gallery a mile or so down the road in her
grandfather's house. She started the operation in about 1995,
then a few years later built the home that you just saw on the
parcel that she subdivided out. As I mentioned, the gallery
occupies the first floor of the structure. The enclosed area of
the structure is a little over 1,300 square feet. It's
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surrounded by covered lanais and walkways that comprise a little
over 1,500 square feet. The upper floor of her residence is
nearly 900 square feet. As one of the testifiers referenced,
almost all of the products that she sells in the gallery are
made in Maui. All of them are made in Hawai'i, most are made
on Maui.
She sells a number of arts and crafts, her own paintings
and prints as well as arts and crafts by other Maui and Hawai'i
artisans. She also sells a small selection of soft drinks and
snacks that are all prepackaged. She has no desire at all to
offer any sort of food service. As one of the testifiers
mentioned, the gallery is a very welcome stop to the people who
make the drive around West Maui. She didn't initially offer
drinks and snacks, but after people repeatedly asked, "Don't
you have anything to drink, don't you have anything to eat,"
she began to offer a small selection of prepackaged things.
She's open every day from 10 to 5.
That's the interior a portion of the interior of the
gallery. The Planning Department does have a video that does
show a little bit more of the interior and the exterior of the
gallery. The property is accessed from Kahekili Highway, and
the portion of the area of the subject property, that's a County
roadway. We performed a very informal traffic count during the
gallery's operations. Nearly 300 cars passed the property every
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day. Almost 100 passed from the Waihee to Kahakuloa direction.
Thirty-two of those or 4.6 cars per hour stopped at the gallery.
Coming the other direction, nearly 200 cars passed, 52 of which
stopped at the gallery. She does not advertise at all. She
does have signs on her property, one facing each direction, just
a sign that says Kaukini Gallery, but other than that, she does
no advertising at all, so all of this is drive-by traffic,
visitors who are making the drive around West Maui.
She has a gravel parking area that can accommodate 11 cars.
County requirements for the residents and for the gallery use
would require her to provide seven parking stalls, so that
exceeds County requirements. The County would though require
her to pave five of those stalls. She has not yet determined
whether she'll seek a variance to be able to leave the gravel
parking, which would be her preference. It's more suitable to
the area, but she'll comply with County requirements to pave
those stalls that are required or to seek the variance to leave
it gravel. She has a private water system and a private
individual wastewater system. On the first floor in the
gallery, there's a restroom, a telephone available and the
parking area, and the gallery and rest rooms are wheelchair
accessible. That's a photograph of the gravel parking area with
the access onto Kahekili Highway. The applicable Land Use
Regulations, as I mentioned, the State and County Community Plan
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and County zoning are all agricultural. To comply with the
State agricultural designation, the Maui Planning Commission
has approved a State Special Use Permit providing a 3-year term.
As you are aware, the Commission usually grants these for an
initial period of one year, but the Commission was very pleased
with the project and with Karen's business and recommended
instead granting 3-year terms for the State Special Use Permit
and for the Conditional Permit that's before you today for which
the Maui Planning Commission recommended approval.
The project specific conditions that the Commission
recommended include that Karen obtain a new building permit for
the structure that identifies the combination of business and
residential uses and obtain a certificate of occupancy also
reflecting the two uses that the Fire Department requested that
she execute a hold harmless agreement. And there would
also be a limit on the kinds of products that she could sell as
described to you, made-in-Hawai'i products as well as only
prepackaged snacks and soft drinks.
And finally, reasons to justify her request, as you heard
from the testimony, she makes a positive contribution to both
the resident and visitor communities and the local economy by
providing an outlet for local artists and also by offering a
very welcome stop to the visitors and residents who drive
around West Maui. Through the application process, we found no
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negative impacts of burdens on public services. The gallery
enables her to live on her family's land and to be selfsufficient and as noted the land was not suitable for active
agricultural uses, and through the requested permits, the
gallery would conform to State and County Land Use Regulations.
Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any comments by the Department? John.
Julie, do you need the lights on?
MS. HIGA: This is -- I'm taking the video coming from
Kahakuloa Village.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And this is Julie Higa.
MS. HIGA: Right.

(chuckled) I edited it. And so this is

just the beginning part of the editing. You see the Kaukini
Gallery sign that's posted at the edge of the property. In the
rear of the property is a gulch, and the Kahakuloa Village is
located below that, and you notice the roadway here, the roadway
in the area is not so bad, but I think it will get better. I
don't know why the -- okay. There shouldn't be a line there,
but I don't know why there is one.
Anyway, the Applicant has her own private water system as
well as septic system on site and as well as a fire hydrant and
the village is located below -- and this is taken from the
uppermost part of the Applicant's property. You see the back
there's two accesses on the property except one was gated, and
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the Applicant is required -- there is only permitted one
access.
This is the gravel parking area which needs to comply with
Chapter 19.36 with parking and landscaping. The village is
located down below there if you notice these. The Applicant
received a building permit for a single-family dwelling and is
required to acquire an after-the-fact building permit and
for a commercial -- mixed commercial and residential use. It's
a two-story building with the Applicant's residence located
upstairs. Anyway, this is the entry to the gallery, and you
notice the agriculture area. And on Kahekili Highway, there are
two areas on the west side and the east side where the -there's only one lane, and so it makes for not a good traffic
condition. And as noted in the Director's report, the State
Land Use Commission had some concerns about further urbanization
or urbanizing this area and requested that appropriate
conditions be attached to the permit.
This is the interior, and I think about 95 percent of
the products sold appear to be from other artisans and about 5
percent I think is from the Applicant's own work. As I
mentioned, the State Land Use Commission as well as the Office
of the State Planning had some concerns and about the urban use,
and then the Department of Water Supply had mentioned that they
recommended the water system be built to water system standards
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and be certified by the licensed engineer. The Department of
Public Works also had several comments and regarding the change
in use to commercial and noted the compliance to the Chapter
19.36 as well as fire -- the Building Code requirements for fire
resistance walls and acquiring a certificate for occupancy. And
that is just leaving, going towards Wailuku and leaving the
area. The fire -- Department of Fire Control also mentioned
that they needed a hold harmless agreement to be filed with
the Bureau of Conveyance, and the Police Department had no
concerns.
There were five people who testified at the Planning
Commission meeting, and they recommend -- they recommended
approval and support of the project. The Planning Commission
recommended approval of the project and also change the planning
-- the Planning Department's condition where we incorporated the
standard condition of one year for approval of the permit and
the Planning Commission extended it to three years.
And as a result, the State Land Use Commission Special Use
Permit, which the Applicant also had to acquire from the
Planning Commission, allows for the State Special Use Permit to
be for one year or to conform to the three-year, whichever is
greater. Anyway, it's so if the Council extends the Conditional
Permit to three years, then the State Special Use Permit will
also extend for three years.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Anything further, Julie?
MS. HIGA: That's it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that it? Any questions from the Council
to the presenters? Michele, why don't you come down here.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne had a question first.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's all right. I'll yield to
Riki.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki, go ahead. Wayne yields.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you Wayne. Michele, can you
tell us where the Applicant is regarding the comments by the
Department regarding the Fire Department's concern for the hold
harmless, the fire resistant exterior walls, please.
MS. CHOUTEAU: Those are the recommended conditions as part
of the permits that are before you today, so if they get
approved, then she'll immediately begin to comply with those
conditions. She does have a copy of the hold harmless agreement
that she's reviewed. She's prepared to execute that. She's
also spoken with her contractor about the requirements between
the two uses. There needs to be certain structural or certain
structural requirements to separate business and residential
uses, so she's been in touch with her contractor and has
verified that those are actually in place already, so she's
prepared to go forward with those if the permits are approved.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the hold harmless for the Fire
Department's request, that is only if a condition approval is
granted that they would require this hold harmless, or is this a
requirement regardless of that request?
MS. CHOUTEAU: My understanding is that that relates to the
proposed commercial use. So for residential use, for her to
install her water system, it wasn't a requirement, but for the
commercial use, it would be.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just trying to get a sense from
what the County is asking the Applicant, Mr. Chairman. So
because -- I'm just trying to understand. Because it's a
private water system, this hold harmless thing is in case a
situation occurs and the County cannot respond to a fire call,
is that what the Department is requesting, Mr. Min?
MR. MIN: My understanding is the hold harmless agreement
is required because of the change in use because of the
commercial use they require that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But regardless, somebody is using
the dwelling, whether it be for residential or commercial?
MR. MIN: Correct - yeah. And I should add and also
because it's a private water system.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I may, so, John, basically what
you're saying as a private resident, that is not a requirement,
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it's only because they're converting this to business that that
additional requirement is put on?
MR. MIN: Yeah. That's our understanding. It's because
of, number one, the change in use to commercial use, and
secondly, because it's a private water system.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that answer your question, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, but -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you like to explore that further.
Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'll yield the floor to Mr. Nishiki.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Michele, is this an afterthe-fact permit?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It is?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. John, this is the question.
If there was a fire out there and this person lost their home,
can the County be sued?
MR. MIN: I think -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know thank God because the fire
that we had recently, Mr. Chairman, I had to go travel that
highway to get home last week, and so, therefore, I took my
pickup truck and went that area. I freaked out enough to call
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my kids and say, "Have the employees not drive the van around
Kahakuloa coming around this way just because of my concern
with roadway." But this fire thing I think concerns me, and we
have our Corporation Counsel here.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let me have Corporation Counsel to answer
it.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, because you know, had . .
Now, we're getting this person legitimitized. Had there been a
fire and that place went up, who would be liable for that fire?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair. Councilman Nishiki, I think your
question is in two parts. If the County did not know about the
dwelling, that's a big issue of fact, and if it didn't know
about the dwelling and the dwelling was constructed -constructed without a permit, I can't see a court holding us
liable on that. The second -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now we're legitimized.
MR. KUSHI: Correct. The second part is that, I don't
advise the Fire Department, but I am almost positive, and we'll
get back to you if you need it, that because there's no County
fire protection system in that area to satisfy or qualify for
residential as well as commercial, that's why these agreements
are entered into, which would hold us harmless in case of a
fire. And then, you know, there's no water around. So you're
-- the question about after the fact is very germane in terms of

61

you want to do it correctly now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. And yet my whole concern is
County liability now just because I took that drive and I want
to know, John, if I took one of our County fire trucks out
there, could they go out there. I don't think so, but I don't
know. Can they? And if you -- you went west side coming around
Kahakuloa Village, no way, but I want to know. And -- and -and if a truck had to in some way stop at a certain point to
fight a fire, could they drag hoses long enough? And it may be
not be able to answer today, but I need to ask the question.
And now we'd continue on -MR. MIN: If you can, Mr. -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- with what we're doing to improve
that road if we're going to allow more homes to be built and
more businesses to operate, but answer the question about the
fire first.
MR. MIN: Okay. If I can respond to that, I have a note
from Fire Chief Ichikawa, and I would just read it to you
because it responds to your question. It reads, "The fire truck
has gone through the -- gone through to the Kahakuloa Village,
but because of the narrow road and rough terrain, it would come
to a crawl about 1 to 2 miles an hour at certain areas, which
would result in a longer response time. Fire trucks usually
come from Napili, which is a tight squeeze. It barely fits on
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the road, and at one area, there is a drop -- dropoff alongside
the road. This is the Napili side of Kahakuloa Village. If the
trucks comes via Wailuku, there are certain tight spots on the
bridge, but our truck can make it. But again, it would be to a
crawl." And that's a comment from Fire Chief Ichikawa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, Mr. Corporation Counsel,
if we pass this today, can we create language to eliminate any
and all liability in regards to a fire?
MR. KUSHI: I don't think you can absolve yourself totally,
but an indemnity agreement would help. Also there's a condition
on Special Use Permits that you have to get an insurance policy.
I'm not sure what the amount is, a million dollars, right, to
protect them as well as us from any accidents or situations
which may occur as a result of your granting this permit.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So this hold harmless clause is the
document that eliminates County liability?
MR. KUSHI: Again, I hesitated to say eliminates total
County liability.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It minimizes.
MR. KUSHI: But at least we have some documents to lessen
the impact if such suit was filed. The indemnity agreement is
backed up by this insurance policy.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, Michele, is the Applicant
willing to cooperate with our County in saying that if she has
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a fire, then it's her baby, not ours?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: She's willing to?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yeah, she's right here if you would like to
hear that from her personally.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MS. CHOUTEAU: In addition, she does also hold fire
insurance, hurricane insurance and liability insurance, which
also requires her to have -- she has two 5,000-gallon tanks on
the property to comply with her insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Corporation Counsel,
she's got a fire policy. What if -- can we get sued by the
insurance company should it burn because it's no adequate?
She's got a fire policy. Does that mean that the County is not
responsible to provide any type of service? I mean how does an
insurance company give this? I mean did she state in her -- in
getting this fire policy that there is no County water to fight
the fire?
MS. CHOUTEAU: I don't know. We would have to ask the
Applicant. I don't know if she's familiar with that detail of
the insurance policy.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Nishiki, I believe the Applicant said
that she was required to put two tanks there for fire
protection.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And this allows that fire policy to
be covered?
MS. NOLAND: (spoke from the audience) Yes, as long as I
had 10,000 gallons of water -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can you get on the record, please.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Karen, please state your name for the
record.
MS. NOLAND: Hi, my name is Karen Lei Noland. I'm the
Applicant, and to get my insurance, I had to have at least
10,000 gallons of water available, so that's how I obtained the
insurance. So instead of having one tank at 5,000, we put in
two tanks of 5,000 gallons each.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you told the insurance company
that there was no -- there's no ability of the County to provide
fire fighting?
MS. NOLAND: Yes. The insurance company told me what to do
in order to get the insurance, so I just complied with them. And
we also have a hydrant, which would -- wasn't included in order
to get insurance. We had a fire hydrant put in as well that
hooks up to the two tanks.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, but you understand by what
the Fire Department said if we're crawling over there, your
house would be gone. And that's my concern. And that's why I'm
trying to get you to sign us off and say, "Hey, I accept all
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responsibility should there be a fire, and the County -- I will
not sue you in any way or manner." And then I want to make
sure that the insurance company also -MS. NOLAND: That's fine. I can comply with that. I mean
all the residents of Kahakuloa, it's just a fact of life for us
out there, so -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: My concern is this. Because
Kahakuloa is getting urbanized quite -- and I see all the signs
for agriculture zoned lands, and I see a lot of gentleman
estates coming up in that area, I think that before we start
allowing many more of you, we need to get that road addressed,
and that's the reason why I say that.
Then -- then some of you may go, "We don't want one big
road over there because we don't like a lot of people." So this
is the part that I think is some cause for concern, I think
there's a lot of people in Kahakuloa that don't want, you know,
1,000 people going around that island in that manner because
it's going to hurt their life-style.
MS. NOLAND: The new subdivisions are coming from Wailuku
side, and the fire trucks have come up from that side, not from
Lahaina, but from Wailuku. And they probably will provide fire
hydrants for the new subdivisions. They don't do it for the
Village.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. That answers my fire
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concern.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Do you have any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Many more.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is there anyone else? Pat.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you, Chairman. Michele, can I
ask Karen, or maybe you can answer. She said that she had a
fire hydrant, and so she wants to have her own water as far as
the well. So how does the fire hydrant work?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Karen, would you come and explain that.
Basically, Councilmember Kawano, I think what she said is she
has the two 5,000-gallon tanks, and the fire hydrant is
connected to that.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: I see.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I believe that's what I heard.
MS. CHOUTEAU: The hydrant does connect to the tanks.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't you explain that.
MS. CHOUTEAU: The hydrant does connect to the tanks.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: Okay.
MS. CHOUTEAU: To the two tanks.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: Okay. That's what I wanted to find out
if she had her own well and what kind of pump that she pumped
out for the fire, but if it's coming through the tank, I can see
where, what kind of pressure you'd have -- I mean seeing your
Point -- I don't know who's listening, but seeing the
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PowerPoint, it's a beautiful home and it's beautiful a country.
And I just -- where Wayne's coming from, I can see where he's
coming from. It's a beautiful home, so we need that fire
protection, and if we are allowing this to happen, I think we
need to look at that. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions, Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, if I may, thank you. The
other concern is advertising. And, Corporation Counsel, if you
could listen. I was reading on the staff report, Page 14, the
last paragraph. "The proposed use is not contrary to the
objectives sought to be accomplished by Chapters 205, 205(a)
HRS. And the rules of the Commission provided that the
Applicant continues to operate as stated with no advertising and
continue to sell the current level of crafts and gift items only
with incidental items such as soft drinks, water and snacks
consisting of cookies and candies. Any advertising and
challenge to survive the drive of Kahekili Highway should be
discouraged since Kahekili Highway is not as improved as the
Road to Hana." And if you can read around it says, "Cars
do not generally back up around blind curves to make way for
oncoming cars. On Hana Highway, areas for yielding are
conveniently and safely provided. This is not the case on
Kahekili Highway. The Applicant stated that the patrons have
asked for food items, however, she has no interest of providing
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food."
You know, it's like you become living -- like you live in
the country and so you pretty well get around by not having all
of these conveniences because you want to live in the country.
If you want to live in the city you want all these nice things,
movie theaters, nice roads and everything else, then you
become an urbanite and you move into the city, but you cannot
have both. And this is the situation right now. My concern is
this. I don't want to see this place being advertised. Because
then you will put more stress on the County, and maybe we need
to -- and maybe -- this is my concern. That are you willing not
to advertise, or is there any advertising being done right now
because I don't think we need to draw people to come to your
gallery, if this is something that you are doing. But can I ask
you that question.
MS. NOLAND: I do not advertise at all except with the
exception of Open and Closed signs right on the property.
Currently, I am not even in the Yellow Pages or the phone book
either, but I would like to do that at some point because I have
repeat customers who try to find us, and they've even called the
Maui Visitor Bureau looking for a number and trying to find
out where we were.
You know, if somebody wanted to return something or
something, I think as far as maybe just being listed in the
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Yellow Pages or the White Pages.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, well, you see, this is my
concern, and it's not you because there's another one behind
you coming up. They want to do weddings now out there, you
know, and other things, so this Kahakuloa Town with its one road
and unimproved. And I think whether it's not even close, but in
that same vicinity, I know a family that lost two members that
went off the road and down. Whether they were who knows what,
but that is the plight of that road. And so I think not only
you, but we've got more and more people that may want to do
businesses with an inadequate road, and our concern again is
liability, big liability when somebody dies. We've had this
many times occur. Even if they were dead drunk and went
over, we paid millions of dollars.
It happened out at Paia somewhere, and so this is my
concern also, so where are you in advertising? And until we get
a grip on this because there's another one coming right behind
you about a wedding business and something else, so here you
are, one starting, one more now trying to, and now you may both
be advertising. Are you willing not to if we put a condition
on?
MS. NOLAND: That's fine with me. I haven't so far.
Again, except for I would like to get in the phone book at some
point.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I will yield to other
questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are there any other questions? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My feeling is that she's assuming a
risk and a liability in operating her business in that area.
She's willing herself to put her business, her home at risk. I
mean so were the people that live in Launiupoko that just built
homes there. They're not really near a fire station, probably a
little bit closer than you are. But when the traffic is jammed
on the highway, you cannot get through. And I doubt that the
fire trucks would have had an easy time getting through with a
fire in Lahaina, so having been a former insurance agent, I
think that if she has been able to obtain the insurance living
in a high risk area without the benefit of fire protection, and
I'm sure paying a very heavy premium for the privilege of doing
that, I feel comfortable with the fact that she's willing to
assume that risk.
Anyone can be sued at any time for anything whether there
is merit to the case or not. And I don't think in any situation
we can ever prevent anyone from suing whoever they want to, but
with the policy in place, and I hope that we are not named as an
additional insured on that policy linking us, you know, in any
way to this particular project, I feel comfortable with the fact
that she has complied and she's willing to assume that risk, and
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therefore, I would certainly approve of her continuing to
operate her business knowing what the risks are. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Jo Anne. Were there any other
questions? Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just more of a comment. We did
scrutinize this in the Planning Commission when I was on the
Planning Commission, and the same questions came up. And we
felt that the hold harmless agreement was effective enough as Jo
Anne said. It -- you can never truly sign all your rights away
anyway, it would seem, no matter what you put down. But we
seem that -- we deemed that that was sufficient, and we felt it
was a good project. It was good for Kahakuloa. The people of
Kahakuloa agreed to it. And I think it's the type of thing that
we should be happy to see come before us, and I will definitely
vote for approval.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any other questions or
comments, Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. It so happens, Bob, that is
nice, but I think here we really scrutinize a lot more because I
think that this is where we see all our suits that happen -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, your question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I will. This is where we see
all your suits that come through, and we've got to deal with it.
You can ask Mr. Kane right here, and he will give you an idea of
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question I have, is Public Works here?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. I don't believe there was a request
for Public Works. You had request for LU-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are they on call, David?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are they here?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's all right. You can call
them, and we'll wait. I'll yield.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You called them? Okay. We actually did
call them, and they were waiting. We'll call them back. Dave,
give them a call. You have other questions before they get
here, Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm just concerned about the
highway itself and then the advertising that if we could not
impact this highway so much like that it's, we're probably going
to see that's all, so I want Public Works, so that I know the
situation on this road.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Arakawa, one of the things that
I got, and correct me if I'm wrong, but during the testimony
Michele basically stated that the traffic prior to the opening
of the gallery was already there, that they sighted the cars
passing through. And I think one of the testifiers also alluded
to this having traveled that area, and having been on Citizen's
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Patrol in the valley area myself, I saw the tremendous number of
cars that come through. Whether her gallery is there or not to
me is immaterial. Once they get to the point, and I think some
of the kids or maybe some of the local village people had
actually set up little roadside stands, people just -- they
want a little place to stop. Hers is one more place along that
voyage.
We are getting an increasing number of tourists continually
impacting our roads, which we see everywhere on the island, so I
really don't think that she necessarily is the cause of
attracting more people onto that road. So I don't see how we
can hold her accountable for that, and she's agreed not to
advertise.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, I don't believe
that's the direction Wayne is going either. What he really wants
to do is call attention to the fact that road needs some work.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Exactly.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So in the testimony and what's documented I
believe you're very much aware, because they're not advertising
they're not drawing anymore attention to this area, but I do
think he has a point, he's trying to get the Department to
address some serious concern in this area. Is that correct,
Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Exactly.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think that was a little bit of
speculation, but that's okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Wayne, in that case, we're gonna be
bringing up another item in this, this same area. Does your
questions to the Department have to do specifically with this
project, or can we vote on this project and you can bring it up
with the Department when they get here on the next item?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I would -- I would hold my
vote until we get some answers from the Department unless you're
really interested in trying to pass something with unanswered
questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: What I'm trying to do, is I'm trying to get
through the agenda basically and if that's your concern -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Questions for the Corporation
Counsel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Junior, you heard the answers given
by the Applicant in regards to advertising. And I don't know,
Julie, is there any condition right now in regards to
advertising?
MS. HIGA: No. It wasn't included in any of the permit -it was discussed in the report, but not included in the
conditions.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. You know, in the report,
Julie, you mentioned in here, at one point in time, people that
rented cars were not allowed by the rental car companies to pass
through that area, and then you used some language in here.
God, I wish I could find it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, go ahead.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are you gonna to try and work on the
highway, or are you talking about this project in specific?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Highway in general.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Then I'm gonna try and move
directly. Keep your question specifically to this particular
item.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we'll discuss the highway as a
different item.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask the Applicant the
question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Should there be a fire, and someone
dies in your store or whatever, have you addressed the question
of who is liable then, are you accepting the responsibility of
visitors coming past?
MS. NOLAND: I've taken the responsibility of getting
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liability insurance in case anyone is injured, getting also fire
insurance as well, so we are covered and have been for some
years with a million dollars worth of insurance for liability.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Mr. Corporation Counsel, now
that we've become a public place now, not a private place, is
there a concern that the County should have, now that it's a
place that is open to the general public, not a private property
where I can say, "Don't come inside my house, now get out of my
property"?
MR. KUSHI: Well, uh, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Has this changed?
MR. KUSHI: Once you grant this -- assume you grant this
permit, then you are approving a use, a commercial use which
would be open to the public. As in any permits granted by the
County, there are various requirements. Had it not been in this
situation or this area, I'm sure you would have all the public
infrastructure and things necessary. This is the reason for
these agreements, special agreements.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. KUSHI: But, yes, it does make a difference that you're
condoning a public place now, but again, this is exactly why
it's a Conditional Use Permit. If you were just granting Change
in Zoning, I'm assuming there there would be no conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. This is also something that,

77
because it's after the fact now, you're coming in, you're
getting legitimate, the kinds of things that you are selling
besides Hawaiian Maui made or Hawaiian made, now you're
venturing into snacks and candies and hot dogs or whatever, what
is the amount that you're actually doing in that area now,
please?
MS. NOLAND: First of all, I only sell prepackaged food and
most of it I get from Costco. It's Oreos, chips, that sort of
thing. We don't sell hot dogs or anything of that nature, and
everything in the shop is made in Hawai'i. I would say 70
percent of the artifacts are made here on Maui, whether it's
the jeweler, someone who makes baskets, someone who does
ceramics. I might sell paintings of my own matted prints, but
the other 30 percent coming from the other islands, we do have a
few artists from Kauai, the Big Island and Oahu as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. You've got one driveway
coming in, and the same drive is used to go out?
MS. NOLAND: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You have how many parking now?
MS. NOLAND: About 11.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And the County is requiring
you to pave the parking, five of them?
MS. NOLAND: Five of them.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how much would it cost you?
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MS. NOLAND: I'm not sure. I didn't get any estimates done
yet. I myself was personally wanting to keep it gravel because
I thought it fit in better with the surrounding areas.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Corporation Counsel, is there
anywhere in the ordinance that we can ask them to use an
alternative without providing them to have to pave?
MR. KUSHI: I'm sorry, what was your question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Under the County law they said now
she's got to pave five stalls, is there a way to say she doesn't
have to pave it, to waive that condition?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can remove the condition.
MR. KUSHI: I believe the Department looks at the parking,
on site parking regulations. And if there's a variance from
that, I mean a deviation from that, the Applicant would have to
get a variance.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Corporation Counsel, I believe we're
setting the conditions so if we remove the condition that we're
setting it doesn't . . . so it waives the requirement to do it.
MR. KUSHI: Well, Mr. Chair, if you're revising the parking
requirements, in you're -CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. We're revising the condition that was
put on by the Planning Commission, I believe.
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MR. KUSHI: As long as you don't affect the ordinance
itself, the parking lot ordinance.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right, I'm (inaudible) We can check with
Dave Goode as to what the actual ordinance requires, but I don't
believe we require asphalt parking there. That's a condition of
the Planning Commission put in I believe. David, you clarify
that?
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. For the record, Dave
Goode, Public Works. Maui County Code 19.36.080 Paving, I think
is the pertinent section here, just read it to you. "Every
required off-street parking space or area other than for singlefamily dwellings, farm dwellings, guest houses or servant's
quarters shall be paved with asphaltic or concrete surface or
equivalent."
So I guess the key word here is equivalent. And in the
past, our Department enforcing this ordinance did not consider
gravel to be or equivalent. The reasons for that primarily you
want a hard surface. We are concerned about dust that would be
generated by constant ingress and egress of vehicles. And this
section for paving covers the whole island, so it covers
Wailuku, Kahului, Makawao, Lahaina as well as above Kahakuloa,
so that's what we gotta deal with.
MR. NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah, go ahead, Wayne.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You see, David, this has never been
challenged, and you used the word equivalent. But that's
basically something that has been given to you now in regards to
what you consider to be equivalent. In this instance, because I
drove past this and I was amazed to see this spanking new house
right on the side of the highway, there is no other person
around there. So why would you want to add a cost to something
that, you know, like you said, oh, there's dust or something,
but there's nothing there to . . . for the dust to infringe
upon?
And if their parking lot addresses parking of cars, what is
the problem really? Other than maybe giving more work to the
paving company. But in this instance, it may be creating more
costs to the Applicant that is asking for a small business so
she could stay at home and be self-sufficient.
I mean, would you eliminate it if the committee report
asked you to not indeed put five paved stalls in it?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dave.
MR. GOODE: Thanks, Chairman. The question is would I
waive somehow the "or equivalent" -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Equivalent.
MR. GOODE: -- for this particular location, and couple of
things come to mind. One, we don't have rules established for
this section of the Code, which would be nice to have, because
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with rules, we could, for instance, look at various design
guidelines for communities. I think the Hana Community Design
Guidelines talk about not having -- "or equivalent," be more
generous for instance.
One thing I might suggest is that our Department has
utilized in the past, experimented with varieties of "or
equivalents" in a couple areas. One area is off South Kihei
Road near Mai Poina Beach Park in that area to alleviate dust
complaints we got from neighbors.
And we tried using a product that, um . . . it's kind of
like an emulsifier that one can add to sand or dirt or silt mix,
and it's rather inexpensive. It's easy to apply, and it makes a
real hard surface. And that, in my opinion, for this type of
location, and realizing that this Code is a County-wide Code
makes it difficult to enforce, is that might be a good "or
equivalent" that I think would meet the concerns that the Code
as written presents. It gives the Applicant maybe a cheaper
alternative to look into.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. GOODE: And there's a number of these products out
there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I think -- I think the
Cayetano Administration in some of the paths that they're
created up in Diamond Head did that applicant where it was not
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paved, but applied an applicant, and it was given a natural, you
know, look, and yet addressed the dust and the erosion and all
the problems.
So I mean if it's minimal traffic that she's incurring, I
would hope that you would look at this, and, Mr. Chairman, if we
could add that in the committee report some way, and work with
Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dave, you would work with the Applicant to
try and look at that "or equivalent" component to see what you
can come up with. Okay. Thank you. Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. For Mr. Goode. Dave,
presently how much would it cost the Applicant to have these
five parking stalls paved, do you know of a ballpark figure
somewhere?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chairman, I'm trying to remember how much
it cost when we did this once on South Kihei Road about four or
five years ago. Off the top of my head, maybe a couple thousand
dollars maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And if she had to do it the other
way, I think Spee said 5 to 10,000 per lot, is that what it is,
5 to 7, if she had to put asphalt?
MR. GOODE: I think if you include site preparation and
signage and striping, it could be around that.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So Mr. Chairman, compared to
25,000 to 2,000 I think is a big boom for a small business
person. Can I ask David about the roadway now that he's here?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You can ask him about the roadway, Wayne,
but I do wanna get through the agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fine.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you can ask him about it, but try and
keep it relatively short and to the point so we can move on with
the voting on this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: David, were you listening when I
read about how Kahekili is not like Hana and the back up -- did
you read the report here? I think Julie wrote this, Page 14.
Anyway, it says any -- we're talking of advertising and getting
people to get on this road. And at one point, I read in here
that the many rental cars at one point didn't allow it but now
they're allowing them to go through, but it reads, this way, it
says, "Any advertising and challenge to survive the drive to
Kahekili should be discouraged since Kahekili is not as improved
as the road to Hana. Cars do not generally back up around blind
curves to make way for oncoming cars on Hana Highway for
yielding and conveniently and safely provided. This is not the
case on Kahekili Highway, The Applicant stated that the patrons
have asked for food items. She has no interest in providing
food. More conveniences to the area will encourage more

84

visitors to the area, and should be discouraged."
And as it goes on, the concern I guess is tourism rather
than agriculture is now the major industry driving the economy
of the State. Since the district boundaries and rules were
established, more people are traveling Kahekili Highway between
the west side to the east around the island, yet the roadway
remains nearly the same. At one time, people were discouraged
to travel this highway, and restrictions were imposed by rental
car agencies. Apparently, this no longer a deterrent.
But what the concern is we've got another Applicant coming
in here for a wedding business, and so the concern is now more
uses coming in this area. And who knows, we may have many more
people coming in and wanting to go and do this type of business
taking advantage of -- not taking advantage, looking at the
visitors where they can make a living. And yet we have a
problem with this road.
I drove it during the last fire and actually called back my
employees telling them not to drive the van around this area
because I was concerned for their safety. Now, we've got many
more visitors coming, and a wedding business is proposed, one
more agenda item. And yet this road is spooky. What kind of
plans do you have? If -- you know, I think this Council now
wants to be responsible after the calamity that we hear about
Wailea and Kihei. I think, you know, it's not the same, but yet
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we want to be responsible.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne. Wayne. Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is your plans?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm gonna let Dave answer that, and then
we're gonna move on. What is your plan for that highway?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chairman and Mr. Nishiki, Kahekili -- we
call it highway, but it's a challenge. As many of you know that
section, sections of that road are nearly vertical, and there's
just a small cut to accommodate one-lane road. Over the past 8
years or so, we've consistently asked and the Council has
consistently grant us about a quarter-million dollars a year.
And we've utilized that quarter-million dollars a year to do
basic safety improvements. In some years we can do guardrails,
some years we shore up the embankments that hold up the road.
And in other years we've actually carved out little pullout
sections. And those of you that have traveled it compared to
say ten years ago, there's places now you can pull out where
there wasn't before, and that's made it better. It seems that
since that time, Honoapiilani Highway has been closed a lot more
and the Kahekili Highway has got a lot more traffic, and so
that's basically been our plan. We haven't pursued major
funding because I -- I have to underline the word mayor -- in
order to do any large scale improvements because it's so
vertical, vertical, you know, in places. So that's actually
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been our program, and we do ask for money every year. We're
gonna ask for money again this fiscal year 2002 and keep doing
those improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And -- okay, and I'll end with this
last question. As I see more agricultural subdividing coming
in, are you charging any of these people to do any of the road
improvements because they're causing impact, the gentleman
estates?
MR. GOODE: Where there have been subdivisions, there's
been a couple subdivisions, they don't -- actually are not I
believe contiguous to the road. They have roadway lots that
maybe go up to the subdivision. There have been a few that have
been right next to the roadway and we've asked for roadway
improvements fronting the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So monies for improving Kahekili is
in this year's Council's budget?
MR. GOODE: It's our current budget. It's in the previous
budget, and we're asking for it again, for July one.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions by anybody besides
Wayne? Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, for
me the question is, Ms. Noland's request for a Conditional Use
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in Kahakuloa, I think the comments regarding the parking, I
think we have a Board of Variance and Appeals that deals with it
specifically and I think it's the intention of the Applicant to
go before the Board and present the request to have a variance
from the Code requirements, so I think maybe that would be a
better place to deal with it.
You need no Department of Health clearance or anything for
the -- even if it's a prepackaged type of food and soft drink
beverages you folks wanna provide, Ms. Noland?
MS. CHOUTEAU: For the State Department of Health, if
they're prepackaged, there's no review required by the State.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for that.
Chairman, you know, I think maybe one of the ways that you might
wanna push this on sooner is maybe ask for a shorter term of the
Conditional Permit period. Whereby if the Committee feels
that maybe in a year or two, instead of the recommended three,
that the Applicant then come back with the current status of
that time, whether -- how the conditions have been adhered to,
any concerns from the community, the Village or the Department
comes in with any other requirements for the road. But I would
be willing to support the request with a shorter period
of time.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Yes, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I feel the same way. I think
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we need more agency review. If . . . from what I can see if it
is the -- this Council's move to approve these two, I think that
we should not give them three years, that we should have a
review. And should something occur over there, then we may have
to pull back, so I would not be favoring three years myself.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: May I ask a question to the Applicant.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Michele, the original
request before the Planning Commission did that, or excuse me,
when the application was turned in, was it for the one year?
MS. CHOUTEAU: In the application, actually, I believe it
was simply in the transmittal letter to the Planning Department,
we requested a time period of longer than one year, but in the
Department's report to the Planning Commission, there was no
mention of any change in time, nor did we make that request to
the Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And your understanding would be
then that in this type of situation, that a normal proceeding of
time or extensions at a later date would start with a one-year
and then a three-year and then it goes on progressively of that
nature, and you are aware of that, and you made your -- as a
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consultant, you made that aware to the Applicant?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes, we're both aware that generally the
first time a Conditional Permit and State Special Use Permit are
granted, it's for an initial period of one year so that the
conditions can be complied with so that the proposed use can be
assessed. Then after one year if the Applicant chooses to
renew, a longer period of time is often considered, three years
or five years at the first renewal period.
In talking with the Applicant though, because the gallery
has been in operation and because the community supported,
supports the proposed use and because in general there haven't
been presented any negative impacts due to the use. As I
mentioned, just in the transmittal letter, we asked for a longer
period of time, but that was not presented to the Commission at
all. The Commission came up with the three years on
their own.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I guess the issue that's coming
out of the discussion is that you are kind of setting a
precedent here that if we give you the three-year as being
recommended by the Planning Commission, and because of certain
concerns, and I think that we all can recognize that there's a
sensitivity not only to the infrastructural -- lack of
infrastructural, what they have up there, and I think people of
Kahakuloa Village, with Uncle Richard here can attest to that,
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but it's also the sensitivity to the area itself. You're not
gonna be the only one, and it's obvious -- I mean there's been
reference that there's something right behind this particular
one that's gonna be requesting for a different type of
commercial operation, which if we give you, then there's gonna
be a line behind you.
And it seems as though if you would be willing to just
settle for the one year that's being suggested here and that
would be able -- that would allow you to move forward with this
with the understanding that when you come back the next time,
you can address maybe more specifically some of the issues that
are being brought forth today. Is that something that you
folks understand and are willing to move forward with?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Yes, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, a question and a statement.
Mr. Corporation Counsel, you know, this really bothers me. Mr.
Chairman, you know, what Dain said really is important. You
know, we give one. Who is to say that somebody else will go,
hey, I stay on agricultural land. Okay .

"The thing is D.

I cannot grow anything. I like grow, Pork 'n Beans and Spam and
Love's Bread and Tomamo and Hershey Kisses." Uhm, we give one,
can we say we're going to give another one on Kahekili Highway
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that is on the agricultural land, and they come in with the same
argument. This is my concern for precedent setting, and this is
the reason why I think even when we visited Hana on a lot of
these Special Use Permits, we really tried to eliminate the
selling of nonagricultural foods as a concern. You know, made
in Hawai'i, okay, but once you start allowing all these other
things, soft drinks and candies, hey, who says that Joe Blow
down the road cannot do the same? And this is my concern.
Then my question is why have agriculture districts? You're
going to now urbanize an area of Kahakuloa, and we don't have
fire protection. We don't have the highway set. I think it's a
precedent that we in this Council need to watch, and therefore,
I don't know, maybe one year, but like you said, here is one
now, another one behind and maybe five more, and then pretty
soon you've got an urban area is my concern. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. And just as a commentary on
that, Wayne. When we passed the Ag Bill, we had a discussion
about that. And you remember what your position was to me? We
did not put in the requirement to do ag in the Ag Bill, and all
of these requests that are coming forward, whether they be
gentleman estates or any others, are perfectly well -- are
perfectly situated within the Ag Bill. But in any case, that's
why we have to consider each of these individually.
And there will be many situations that come up where they
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are not quite isolated as this or they may be as isolated as
this, where each of the individuals are entitled to come in with
the Ag Bill and there are some restrictions within that Ag Bill
as far as how many of these types of establishments in a given
area, but I believe this follows the letter of the bill itself.
Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman, at this point, I would
like to ask for your recommendations so that we can move
forward.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jo Anne, you had a comment before I make my
recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I just had one comment and
that is that the other -- while I can appreciate and I really do
appreciate the concerns and I also share them about the safety
issues, fire as well as the use of the land. I think that each
case must come before us and either pass or fail on -- stand on
its own merits. I think that that has always been the way that
I've seen the Council react to various measures because each of
hem have some little different element. They don't all have the
degree of support that this particular project has. I would
also ask other Council members to consider that this woman is a
small business person. She's probably bearing an expense to
come before us, the time as well as the money, and I see fit
that the Planning Department has made a recommendation that
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they were convinced that this should go forward for a three-year
period because of the sincerity and the support of the
community. And I always tell people, "Be careful what you ask
for." If the community wants this, I believe we should honor
their request, but I also think that we should respect their
rights and not force her to come before us again in another
year, which is gonna cost her more money. So I think we have to
be also considering our user friendliness as the Council and
sending a clear message that, yes, we do support small
businesses, and particularly her acting in a very creative way.
So I'm gonna support the three years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. The Chair's recommendation on this,
when this originally came up, I was going to recommend that we
approve for three years. What I think the best tact would be
right now is to have a motion for the three years, and then if
we want to have amendments to lessen the term, then someone can
make the amendment to lessen the term and we'll vote on those
amendments to the original motion.
MR. KANE: So move, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: For discussion, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain, discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- and a question. When is the
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starting time of this application and that way we can determine
what the end time for them to have to come in and reapply?
MR. MIN: The start date would be the effective date of
approval by this Council.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And just for the record, I will point out
that I am semi-related to the Applicant, but we've checked, and
I can vote on this because I do not have a fiscal interest in
this and we're distant enough. Okay. But I did want to point
that out just to make sure everybody understood this. Her uncle
and my uncle are the same.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: As the maker of the motion, I would
like to make an amendment to the motion. I would like to amend
it back to a year, and I'll . . . if there's a second to that,
then I'll make a . . . then I'll make a . . . follow-up.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Second for discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded to
amend to one year. Dain, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And Mr. Chairman, I bring
that forward in light of what has been discussed today and that
there are some members that feel rather strongly, and although I
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agree in part to what Member Johnson has brought forward as the
argument of supporting the three years, I think we all must
understand the reason why we have this review process is because
there are impacts that we need to consider. And this is allows
us a review process, and I think if we follow with a one-year,
three-year, five-year progression, that allows us and as well as
the Applicant to make whatever adjustments that will allow the
project in this case or the Applicant -- the application the
amount or the type of review that will allow this to become
something that fits into the community and the scheme of things.
I, for one, if the one-year does not pass, I have no
problem with supporting the three-year. But, again, I think one
year is good in light of what issues have been brought forward.
And even the Applicant has stated that although they did
Initially request for a one-year, excuse me, they were aware of
the progression that we go through as far as the County
system that they're willing to settle for that one year and
. . so I will be voting on the one year.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: When this was before the Planning
Commission, the same questions were asked. I didn't hear
anything new that came up today and after all considerable
deliberation and discussion, as we've had over here, we felt
that the three-year was appropriate. And I will be supporting
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the three years. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other comments? Okay. In that -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Roll call.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Roll call vote. In that case, we'll have a
roll call vote. All those . . . and what the issue is right now
is the amendment to amend this to one-year term. Okay. Yvette,
you wanna call up the roll call? We'll start at Councilmember
Carroll.
MS. BANTILAN: Okay. Councilmember Robert Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Nay.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Dain Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Aye.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
MS. BANTILAN: Councilmember Charmaine Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
MS. BANTILAN: Vice-Chairman Pat Kawano.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: No.
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MS. BANTILAN: And Chairman Alan Arakawa.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.
MS. BANTILAN: You have four ayes and five noes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The motion is defeated. And are there any
other amendments? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No amendments, Mr. Chairman. Call for
the question on the three years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any discussion?
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: I would -- I'm voting -- I'm voting no,
and I'm voting for the three years because I think this lady has
taken a lot of issues as far as knowing about the traffic,
knowing about the fire, knowing about all these things and
looking at the video that we went through and I think this went
through the Planning Commission, and that's why I'm supporting
the three years, Mr. Chairman. I believe what she did up there
really helped not only the community, but the community is in
support of it, too. So I will be voting aye on the three years.
Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And one comment, Mr. Chairman. I'll
be supporting the three years. Again, the one-year amendment
was brought forward to recognize some of the concerns by my
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colleagues, and I just wanted to make it clear for myself and to
the members that although there was a lot of diligent review
which was stated by some of our colleagues in other bodies, we
cannot demean the process of this body because ultimately the
final decision is made here with all of our signatures on the
piece of paper. And we are the ones -- the buck stops here,
in other words.
So I appreciate what's being said about other bodies giving
a thorough review, however, it was obvious that we were hesitant
about moving forward. It obviously wasn't unanimous. There was
a 5-4 vote on it, so I think we can recognize that and
appreciate the fact that there is a process here in place to
make sure that we cover all those bases. So with that being
said, I will be voting yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: First of all, I would like to
commend Ms. Noland for making all these accommodations in light
of the circumstances and the very good concerns that were
brought up. And my initial support for the one-year was just as
a way to insure that there is a process to look at things in
closer review, especially when this type of situations arise,
but I do commend our Applicant for her work and supporting the
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culture and preservation of the Hawaiian arts, and I will be
supporting the three-year.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I would like to
offer a motion for an amendment. And that amendment would be a
condition I move that we approve -- insert a condition that
requires the Applicant to not advertise beyond using the
telephone book.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded. I believe
that's already part of the conditions, right, as far as the
advertising already in the condition that she has to meet?
MS. CHOUTEAU: I don't believe that that's a condition
that's before the Committee yet. It would have to be made -an amendment would have to be made. We would request though
the exceptions being the phone book and also that the two
existing signs that are on the property.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, I, I -MS. CHOUTEAU: If that's acceptable to the Committee, but
no other kind of advertising has been her practice.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, I would change the
amendment to reflect that it would be limited to the
telephone book and the existing signs on the property.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay and I will accept this. And, Wayne,
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your second?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Discussion? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. And just maybe you can clarify
because I honestly didn't pay attention to the wordage or the
verbiage on your signs. Can you clarify for us what is on
those signs currently.
MS. NOLAND: The sign just reads, "Kaukini Gallery, Over
50 Local Artists, Refreshments."
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussions? Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, I think Julie wanted
to say something. No? Okay. (chuckled) Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would be happy to support my
colleague to my left in the amendment. I would just state to
Michele on behalf of the Applicant that it be a legal sign
according to the Signage Ordinance of the County of Maui.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You can put it in, but I guess that
would -- we can assume that will have to happen. Any other
questions, discussion? Okay. We're going to be wording on
the amendment that the requirement be to allow the telephone
listing as well as the existing, two existing signs that are on
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the property. Everybody clear on that? All those in favor -Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So the telephone listing, I mean when
we talk about telephone listing, are we talking about a White
Page, or we're talking about a full page ad in the Yellow Pages?
And I know she's not thinking of that, but . . . I mean if
we're gonna start getting into this, you know, controlling what
she can do as far as advertising, are we gonna set some sort of
standard here as far as what she can do and not do?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: As far as I'm concerned, Dain, there's only
so much you can do within the Yellow Pages within the
advertising of the newspaper -- or the phone book. So I'm not
really concerned that much as long as we're limiting it to the
phone book, but if anybody else wants to try and become more
specific, then make the suggestions.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Maybe I can ask my colleague who made,
the maker of the motion, if she can clarify what her intent was
regarding the telephone book advertising or listing.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had no intention of limiting the
size of the listing. I just feel that what we wanna get away
from is some of the other advertising that, you know, radio,
television, the Maui Weekly, whatever else. And so if she wants
to do a full page ad in the Yellow Pages, I mean, you know,
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that's fine, if she can afford it, but I had no intention of
limiting it in other words.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other questions? Discussion?
Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And just for clarification, a matter
of what she's going to put in, I mean if she's going to start
putting in I have refreshments, I have -- you know, and we start
getting into this full -- I mean the whole concern is talking
about advertising, and now we're talking about an amendment
that's being put on the floor regarding a listing in the
telephone book. So what are we talking about? And I think
it kind of goes beyond what this Applicant in particular is
thinking about. It goes beyond that in my mind because when
we just say amendment and they can put it in the telephone book,
I mean you can put a lot -- I kind of disagree that you can only
do so much in the telephone --. You can do a lot in a telephone
book as far as an advertising page versus a listing of Kaukini
Gallery.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: In my mind - - COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And a lot of people may think this is
trivial or small, but keep in mind, we're trying to protect the
integrity of this area, Kahakuloa, it sounds like to me. And
we're trying to prevent all this advertising and people going
out to this Kaukini Gallery that's got all this beautiful
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Hawaiian art and the attraction and I think that was -- and
again, I'm just referring back to the previous discussion we're
talking about inadequate roads, inadequate this, inadequate
that, and I think we need to be clear when we start talking
about these types of amendments being put on the floor, we need
to be clear on what we're talking about to reflect what the
discussion and the intent was of today's, you know, -- well,
the intent of the discussion.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I believe the maker of the motion has
expressed her intent and what she was looking at as far as the
advertising and the limitation. So unless there's a motion to
further restrict it somehow, I'm going to propose that we take
a vote on this issue. Or further discussion, Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I'm supporting this and
that's the reason why I think the one-year review, but now we've
got three years review. I think this will enable us to look at
the integrity of the person. If she goes far and beyond, you
know, I may not be here, but some of you may. You will be able
to see and if she uses trickery or whatever, then that review
will catch her, and so that's why it's so important.
Again, don't forget you're giving a commercial use in an
agricultural district. This is precedent setting and a concern.
So, you know, the more you're able to tie it down, then tie it
down. Now, if any of you are really serious, then perhaps why
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don't you just give her B-1 and give her business, then there's
no problem. But I think this is precedent setting in Kahakuloa,
and I surely don't want to see beautiful places like this turned
into, you know, many more Conditional Use Permits, and that's
the reason why this review process is important.
So, Dain, you bring it up, and we could've done it in a
year and checked on it, but we gave it three. So that's why
so this is important. This is important. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Corp Counsel, you wanted to make a comment?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I feel compelled to say
this, and Council members, and that the motion on the floor to
amend if you're going to restrict her advertising rights you
maybe, without researching it, but you just may be treading on
Constitutional of Commercial Freedom of Speech.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And Mr. Chairman. And that's my point
doesn't -- I mean is this amendment on the floor appropriate, or
do we have the authority to do this? And that's where I was
coming from on this, too. We're starting to talk about
limitation here or allowing someone -- I mean can I -- can we -does this body have the authority for limiting somebody from
putting their name in the phone book? So is it even appropriate
to have this motion on the floor?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, I like your direction if you're going
to do it that way without limiting it, but you know I have a, I
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had that concern also, but if the Applicant is willing to agree
to a condition, I believe we can put it in as a limitation. If
she doesn't agree to it, I also believe that it would be
infringing on her Constitutional Rights. So because of the
agreement that was there that was made, I believe we can put it
on the floor, but, Corp Counsel, if you could clarify.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair, you can remedy this situation
by -- in discussion saying on record that you have a reasonable
basis for this condition, reasonable basis may be public health,
safety and welfare. You know, whatever justification you use is
up to you, but I would say at least get it on record the reason
for this condition and you have that authority as long as you
back it up by a reasonable justification.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: My final comment, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Final comment.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I can support the existing signage on
the property and, you know, it follows County Code
specifications for signage, but I think when we start throwing
in the phone book aspect of it, that's where I have that
problem. So if it's going to be connected together because I
have that problem with the phone book, I will be voting no on
this amendment. If it can be separated out and talk about
just the signage of the advertising of this -- of this
applicant, application, I can support that. The phone book
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part of it I can't because I think that's -- I think we're
crossing the line when we do that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Kane, I intending to vote no for that
reason, but that is the option for everyone here that's going to
be voting as to how they want to vote on it. We do have a
motion on the floor. Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman. Boy, sometimes
I think I'm doing such innocent things trying to help someone
get something off the ground, and I think I based my amendment
on the fact that the discussion revolved around the safety
concerns of people going out there, specifically to that, while
the Applicant has been telling us all along that it's the
drive-by traffic that she depends on to get there. She did
mention that it would be helpful for returning things or
whatever if she had a listing in the phone book in the
yellow -- you mentioned White and Yellow Pages, so I was just
trying to accommodate what the Applicant has expressed as her
desire. I think we all are very concerned about the safety of
that road, and I sure wouldn't want to see mass advertising to
draw people to that particular area. But I think at the same
time, she has, you know, certainly has a reasonable request in
saying she would like to be listed in the phone book and so that
people can call or find out, you know, maybe want to return
something or whatever the reason she stated before.
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But, you know, if this is such a big deal, I mean heaven
forbid I should cause a big deal here, but if you want to take
the two signs separately, we can start over. I can withdraw
everything and start over.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I would just prefer that you withdraw the
motion. But if you withdraw that particular motion, if you wish
to make another motion, you can make another amendment. But if
you keep this particular one, it's gonna be too hard to
reconfigure. So, if you wanna -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I would just like to leave it
the way it is. And if there's a challenge to it
Constitutionally, let there be a challenge.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I'm only trying to help the
Applicant get what she needs to get for her business.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, then at this point, the motion on the
floor is that we allow phone book listing, the condition of
listing it in the phone book and the two signs on the property.
That is the motion on the floor right now, okay, the amendment.
Jo Anne then Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support the motion because I
think the intent is basically just to say that the advertising
is limited to those two things. It's not saying what kind of
advertising she can put in the phone book, but it was other
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forms of advertising that we're trying to get away from and
just putting a cap on these two things. Whatever she chooses to
do, whatever she chooses to expend money on, I think that as
Charmaine initially stated, that's her choice. We're certainly
not saying that she can't advertise in the phone book. She can
if she so chooses, so I'll be supporting the motion.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: As for the phone book part, I
don't see any problem because we're not saying she can't use it.
We're saying she can use it, and to me, that's all the
difference in the world, so I'll be supporting it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Pat.
VICE-CHAIR KAWANO: You know, Mr. Chairman, I'm so
hppy Corp Counsel said what he said. And I think with tis long
discussion we had, I'm sure this lovely lady understands where
we're coming from, too, so I would be supporting Charmaine's
motion too.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other questions? Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just a question for the Applicant.
About how many people let's say out of every ten people are say
tourists versus locals that come to your shop?
MS. NOLAND: Almost all of them, except for the weekends,
we get more local traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. The reason I bring that up,
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you know, I'm kind of thinking in my mind how many tourists
would literally look in the phone book for art galleries you
know. I'm just curious, so 90 percent of your customers are
tourists that just stop over for whatever reasons out of
curiosity?
MS. NOLAND: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The reason I'm not supporting this is
because of what Corp Counsel is saying it might be infringing
on personal rights. Last comment, then we're gonna vote, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No comment. Well, you know what?
The reason I bring up this comment is because some of the
comments in response to this in the discussion is implying that
perhaps this concern that I have is somehow trying to not help
this Applicant. The idea is and the point that's being missed
by a lot of my colleagues is that the phone part -- the phone
book aspect of this shouldn't even be on the table for
discussion. That's my point. It's irrelevant to what we're
talking about because, again, how can we infringe on somebody
to put their name in a phone book? So all I'm asking is to have
that removed out of there and act on the signage portion, which
is the concern of advertising. As far as the phone book
aspect, she can do whatever she wants in the phone book that's
not something that we should be infringing on her right. And
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that's why I'm bringing this point forward. But somehow it's
being kind of twisted like what I'm suggesting to do is somehow
impeding her right to do business, and that's not it at all. I
think it shouldn't even be on the table because she should have
that right to do what she can in the phone book just like I can
do it, just like anybody else here can put their name in the
phone book for whatever reason.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And I think if I may clarify, and anybody
can correct me if they think I'm saying it wrong. We are
allowing or we are restricting all advertising except for the
phone book and the signage, so therefore, we're allowing the
phone book, and I believe where you're coming from, if I'm
hearing it, is we shouldn't be restricting the advertising so
much. But I think that's what this motion is to restrict all
the advertising except the phone book and the signage. Okay.
Okay.
Now, let's do this roll call. Bob. Yvette, you want to
roll call vote on the amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, let's have a voice
count, and if you can't figure out who is saying no, then we
da ha a roll call.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Voice count. All those in favor,
say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. I believe we have 2 noes and 7 ayes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who's the noes? Okay, thank you.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama,
Johnson, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki and
Tavares.

NOES:

Councilmember Kane and Chair Arakawa.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE CONDITION THAT THE APPLICANT SHALL
NOT ENGAGE IN ANY ADVERTISING OF THE ART GALLERY
AND GIFT SHOP, PROVIDED THAT TELPHONE DIRECTORY
LISTINGS AND THE TWO EXISTING SIGNS ARE NOT
PROHIBITED BY THIS CONDITION.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And on to the main motion, the
three-year Conditional Use Permit as amended. Any discussions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair. Yes, what did we leave
the hardened surface of the parking lot as, that they want a
variance that they have to go through the BVA to get a variance
from the paved parking requirement?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Director would work with the Applicant
to see what they can come up with as far as interpreting the
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hardening surface.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Okay. Any other discussion? If
not, all in favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
(2 nd vote)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares,
and Chair Arakawa.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING bill, as revised; and FILING

of communication.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We have two more items, and hopefully we can
get through the others.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Short recess?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Five-minute recess. (gavel)
RECESS: 4:20 p.m.
RECONVENE: 4:33 p.m.
LU-3

REQUEST FROM RICHARD AND MARIE SMITH
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FOR A CONDITIONAL PERMIT (AINA ANUHEA
TROPICAL GARDENS) (C.C. No. 00-300)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Call the Land Use Committee back to order.
(gavel) What we're going to be doing now is we're going to be
asking for testimony. Because this meeting is running long and
some of you who are testifying have to leave, we're going to do
all the testimonies right now starting with Land Use Item Number
3, Richard Hoopii first followed by Lee Guthrie.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Before -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If you could read what Land Use 3 is.
I know you did that earlier, just so the public can know what
we're dealing with. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Good idea. Thank you. Land Use 3
is a request from Rich and Marie Smith for a Conditional Permit
for Anuhea Botanical Gardens. this is a bill for an ordinance
to grant a Conditional Permit in order to operate a gift shop
and limited commercial wedding site within the County
agricultural district for property situated in Kahakuloa, Maui,
Hawaii. Okay, Richard.
MR. HOOPII: Thank you very much, Chairman, Councilmembers.
Richard Hoopii from Kahakuloa Village. I'm here to testify for
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the Smith family for the ceremonies that they want to conduct
with this garden, and I think it's a good idea. This body
perhaps not all the Council members at that time has approved
the subdivision which the residents of Kahakuloa has, was
against it for quite awhile, and now it's becoming a whole big
city up there at Maluhia subdivision.
Maluhia subdivision is where these people live and they
have cultivated and worked on this gardens and make it so
pretty, and it was a pasture area at once. And the roads that
they have made to go up is just right there where the residents
are at. The residents coming off the Kahekili Highway goes up
to the home, but the back road going to the Maluhia subdivision
is right where everything is happening. And so looking at that,
I think it's a gain for that subdivision itself. It's a gain
for the Maui community.
And this place is not called Kahakuloa. In every ahupua'a,
there's a name for each specific area. And fortunately, the
first people we talked to about, that's the end of Kahukuloa,
and over the next mountain is the end of Kahakuloa. When it
came to be a State, we'll just make it easier for everybody to
know the name Kahakuloa stabalizing from Waihee to Honokohau
that's Kahakuloa, and really that's not. In the kupuna ways
and our ways now it is not Kahakuloa, the overall place. And,
so I would just like to reiterate to the Council that this road
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that is visible and passable by two-car lane is in need for
something like this with the approval of that subdivision. And
these people situated right next to that subdivision, right in
that subdivision. So I encourage you to look at the Applicant
very carefully, and I encourage you to assist them in getting
these variances to be taken care of and I just want to thank
you for this opportunity.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Richard? Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just a correction, Richard, none of
those Council members ever voted for this subdivision. This was
an agricultural subdivision. It needed no zoning, so the
Council did not have any hand in this one here. In fact, I
think if it did come to the Council, we would have given it a
pretty rough time. But be that it is, none of us voted because
this was done administratively, the agriculture subdivision and
I know there were many people in that area that had concerns
about this because of the traffic and because of the gentleman
estates. But be that it is, this is a different monkey now, and
we'll deal with it. Thank you so much.
MR. HOOPII: Thank you, Councilmember. At the same token,
this subdivision in a sense has helped five times last year and
two times this year of converting the traffic. There going be
an overflow of the people going home to Kahakuloa going down
road and by the other people going on the top road. And at that
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particular time, hopefully at that point, the Highways Division
with the Council had to look at the roadway going there. There
was a project that has been made in 24, in 48 hours -- or 72
hours, I'm sorry, with the Goodfellows Construction at the
Makamakaole corner there and improved that area. And God, I
tell you without we knowing, that has been used as a parking
lot for the hikers that is going to the Makamakaole River, and
who knows what's happening? Nobody is monitoring them.
And every time we pass by, the Villagers' blood pressure
gets up and up and up. We try to get the Land and Resources,
Natural Land and Resources to take care of the problem. Are
they getting permits to go in? Are they getting permission to
go in? Because we have lifestyle out of that river. And I'm
sorry if I'm off the question, but it's answer to your question.
Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions, or comments?
Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Richard, what is the proper name of
this area?
MR. HOOPII: Uh .

. They call it the Maluhia

Subdivision. The Maluhia Ranch Estate, I'm sorry. Maluhia
Ranch Estate. The ahupua'a name?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
MR. HOOPII: It's Wailena.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Wailena.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? If not, thank you
very much Richard. Lee Guthrie.
MS. GUTHRIE: Good afternoon, Councilmembers. My name is
Lee Guthrie. I'm here testifying as a neighbor to the Smiths,
and I would like to say their property is a very beautiful.
It's very well managed. No noise comes from it. We don't
really see any additional traffic generated because of it. They
have two entrances to their property, one off of the
highway and one off of the road, Kaukini Loop. Isn't that the
name of that road, Kaukini Loop? I live there. I live up a
little higher than that, but I would just like to say that I am
here in support of this because I like to see people who are
self-sufficient running businesses out of their home. The only
concern that I had, and at this point, I don't even want to
voice it was -- and so I won't. I just want to say that I wish
them the best and that I would really like all of you-all to
support this because apparently they've been doing this all
along and we have not seen any impact.
I don't believe it generates anymore traffic -- there's
traffic -- there's more tourists out there than you could
possibly imagine nowadays. I mean, there's a car going by every
20 seconds, so I can't see that it would generate anymore
traffic, and so I stand in support of it.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions for Lee?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Lee, you said they've been doing
this all along? Do they have a gift shop already?
MS. GUTHRIE: Yes. It's small kine.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are they selling prepackaged snacks
right now?
MS. GUTHRIE: He gave me free pineapple juice (chuckled),
I don't remember, in a . . . out of a condenser. I don't
remember that there was any food there. There was just a -it's small. It's like -- like here, this big.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Thank you, Lee.
LU-12

REQUEST FROM KATHY INOUYE, ON BEHALF OF
GENERAL SERVICES, INC., FOR A CHANGE IN
ZONING (AMENDED) (C.C. No. 01-35)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm now going to accept testimony for item
LU-12. LU-12, I'm going to start with Eric Ong, and Melvin
Tanaka. This is a request from Kathy Inouye on behalf of
General Services, Incorporated, for Change in Zoning amendment.
Is a bill for an ordinance -- to amend Ordinance Number 2317
conditional zoning to amend Condition 2(c) and deleting
Condition 4 from public property situated in Napili, Lahaina,
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Maui. Okay.
MR. ONG: Good afternoon, County Council members. I'm not
a really good speaker, but I'm going to try, okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Eric, identify yourself first.
MR. ONG: My name is Eric Ong. I provided other
testimonies for people that could not be here, because being on
the west side, they don't wanna take a chance with the fires and
the traffic I guess. I don't know. I was involved with the
first phase of Napilihau Villages, which was originally the
first proposed phase for this project called now Napili Villas.
I'm a real estate broker, and I have been a real estate broker
full-time for the past 11 years. I am very proud to support a
project like Napili Villas.
Currently, our initial sales prices are targeted to a
average of, a price range of about 210,000 to 255,000. HUD's
maximum price for families of 140 percent of median income is
based on and based on 6.5 - 6.75 percent is $310,000. I
provided actually a HUD -- HUD Affordable Guideline, which is
based on 1999 HUD's Sales Price Guidelines for County of Maui.
So we will be below the $310,000 based on 6.75 percent of the
current -- average current interest rate that the lenders are
giving to buyers.
Upon approval of a preliminary report, we will publish in
the Maui News notice to any prospective owner occupants the

120

availability of units at Napili Villas. We will also do
personal presentations to all the local brokers throughout Maui.
If we are unable to meet with these brokers, I will actually be
faxing them, E-mailing them and also providing them information
via mail about the offering of Napili Villas to owner occupants.
Further, we are bound by Chapter 514(a) of the Hawai'i Revised
Statutes, which pertains to condominium property regimes
relating to unit selections.
This states in part that for each sale phase, the first 30
days, at least 50 percent of the units shall be set aside for
sale to owner occupants. Many people have come to me regarding
interest for this project. I -- we have not done any form of
advertisement because we don't have a public report, but because
of the housing crisis on the west side, there is a desperate
demand for these homes. Many people want this project to start
and finish as soon as possible. There are also many families in
Napilihau Villages that also want to move up to larger places.
Everyone I have talked to has supported this project. I have
met no one that has opposed it so far, and we would like to get
your support to help make this project happen. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just for -- you're done Eric? Are you
done?
MR. ONG: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. The pamphlet that was handed out,
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the information sheets, these are the ones Eric provided, so
there are a number of different testimonies that are within
this. I'm not sure what this first one is, Eric. Perhaps you
could explain this.
MR. ONG: The first one is a table for the HUD affordable
sales price guidelines. If you note, multifamily, that's 6.75
percent, that is actually -- rates are actually lower, so the
prices could be even higher. But at 140 percent of income,
median income is $310,000 for a multifamily. The west side,
if anybody knows about the west side, homes are extremely
expensive. This . . . nothing even for $310,000 as far as
homes. $380,000, you can get yourself into a house.
Condominiums, usually Condo-tels, they're not designed for
residential living. This project would be designed for those
type of living, which is residential.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other questions? Okay. If
not -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Eric, what was your last name?
MR. ONG: Eric Ong.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Orga?
MR. ONG: Eric Ong.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ong. I'm sorry. Mr. Ong, so what
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you're telling me today, $310,000 is affordable?
MR. ONG: Based on HUD, what HUD is telling us. There is
nothing on the west side as far as homes. I live in a
condominium that's 646 square feet, and I make a pretty good,
decent living. But there's just nothing for the mid-priced
person on the west side.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is your definition of
affordable?
MR. ONG: That's a difficult question actually. Everybody
has a problem what is deemed affordable. I leave it up to HUD
to determine that, and I believe that they get these numbers and
they provide these numbers based on facts that they have
obtained themselves. And I believe HUD's purpose is actually to
provide some kind of forum to, you know, give this kind of
data sheets stating what is affordable, what is deemed
affordable at this time. And using the rates here at 6 and a
half percent, 6.75 is showing 310.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And you were just saying earlier to
us that because of the rates that the price should be higher,
could be higher?
MR. ONG: The prices based on this is at 6.75. If we
adjust that up to 6 and a half, the affordable price guideline
will actually be higher because you can borrow more money.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And what would that be
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approximately?
MR. ONG: I don't have my calculator in front of me.
Probably another maybe 10 to 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So from 310 to 325 roughly?
MR. ONG: If it was at 6 and a half percent, and I believe
the rates are still coming down. But nobody can really tell.
I'm being very conservative by saying 6.75.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the interest goes down to 6
percent, you're looking at what, $350,000 possibly?
MR. ONG: Possibly.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just trying to get a sense of
how the interest relates to the -MR. ONG: Well, it increases the buyer's purchasing power
based on their income. The lower the rate, the more they can
borrow. I don't know how better to explain that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, thank you
very much, Eric. Melvin Tanaka will be followed by Andrew and
Virginia Keen.
MR. TANAKA: Good afternoon, Council members. Sorry I'm
chewing a piece of candy. I was sick over the weekend, so bear
with me. My name is Melvin Tanaka. I'm a Vice-president at
Citibank. I've been employed by Citibank for 23 years in the
construction income property area. Citibank has committed to
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the construction financing of Napili Villas. Our commitment is
based on the preset requirement necessary to fund the project.
We feel that the currently - - we feel currently there is a
demand for the project in the area, however, due to the slowing
of the mainland economy and its possible effects in Hawai'i, we
feel that the present window of opportunity may not last beyond
the two-year period.
It is essential that the project start and be delivered to
home buyers during this period. Any delays may be detrimental
to the project, and therefore, we support the Applicant's
request to amend Ordinance No. 2317 to amend Condition 2(c) and
to delete Condition 4.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are you done?
MR. TANAKA: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Mr. Tanaka, knowing what you're
going to lend the developer, what kind of range do you think is
going to be offered for housing in West Maui with project
because obviously you want your money back, you want to make a
profit?
MR. TANAKA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So what are you looking at in a
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range of out of 100 units, 300 to $400,000.
MR. TANAKA: Well, I know the project has 184 units.
Basically, we're looking right now in the range of about
250,000, 300,000, that range possibly. I think it's essential
that the -- that the units are priced to sell, but yet
developers have to make some money off the project also, and
therefore, I think as far as the bank is concerned, we're
looking at this small window of opportunity here. So were kind
of imposing upon the developers, you guys got to start as soon
as you can because you may not have these buyers in another two
years or beyond that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That is your marketing analysis, or
that is the developer's marketing analysis?
MR. TANAKA: That's our marketing analysis. We feel that
again, you know, Hawai'i's economy maybe has come back as far as
construction housing-wise in the last two years maybe, and we
feel like again what (inaudible) has been done recently, and the
slowing of the mainland economy, it may have a direct effect on
Hawai'i. Hawaii usually has six months to a year delayed
reaction to what's going on in the mainland. So, you know, we
feel that the project is good for the area right now. There is
a demand. Our marketing study shows that. Our pricing
department shows that also. But again, we want to make sure
that this thing is a success, and therefore, we're telling these
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guys they've got to start and complete the project, deliver
it to all the home buyers as soon as they can.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Tanaka.
MR. TANAKA: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, thank you
very much. And if we could have Andrew and Virginia Keen.
MR. KEEN: Good afternoon. My name is Andrew Keen, and I'm
here to speak for both my wife and myself. We're looking to buy
into this project because it's a large income housing project.
We're hoping that you'll speed up the meetings or all
restrictions on this project. I'm sorry. Thank you. We know
that this project is needed in the area. And for ourselves
we're retirees, and certainly if we're able to buy into this
project, we'll be able to not use our car and be able to walk to
Napili Market. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions? I have a
question for you. Have you looked at trying to find other
residences in this area?
MR. KEEN: I'm sorry, I didn't hear your question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Have you looked for trying to find other
housing in this area?
MR. KEEN: Yes, we have.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: What has been your experience?
MR. KEEN: It's priced out of our range both in housing and
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you think they're just too expensive to
get into, what you've looked at?
MR. KEEN: Absolutely. Yes, sir.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And you've done a pretty extensive search?
MR. KEEN: Yes, we have. We've been looking for over two
years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And you haven't been able to find anything
close to this?
MR. KEEN: That's correct.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. We're done. Thank you
very much. Okay. Then let us move back to Land Use Item Number
3. Michele, are you ready with your presentation?
LU-3

REQUEST FROM RICHARD AND MARIE SMITH FOR A
CONDITION PERMIT (AINA ANUHEA TROPICAL GARDENS)
(C.C. No. 00-300)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is the Conditional Use Permit for the
Anuhea Tropical Garden Gift Shop, and we're looking at a limited
commercial wedding site and also a Conditional Use Permit.
Okay. Any time, Michele.
MS. CHOUTEAU: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon again,
Council members. My name is Michele Chouteau working with the
Applicants, Richard and Marie Smith. Unfortunately, I don't
have graphics and photographs in this presentation, but David
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distributed a copy of the site plan and location map a little
while ago, so hopefully that will give you some orientation of
where the project is located.
The applicants are Richard and Marie Smith. They're
proposing in conjunction with the tropical botanical gardens
that they have on their property to utilize a gift shop and also
to have limited weddings on the property. The property is
comprised of approximately 3.6 acres as mentioned in the
testimony. It is adjacent to the two new agricultural
subdivisions, Maluhia Country Ranch and Cliffs at Kahakuloa.
This property is not part of the subdivisions. The property
existed before those subdivisions were developed. It's a little
over 3 miles from Waihee, and 7.2 miles east of Kahakuloa
Village. It's just past Camp Maluhia.
The property sits at an elevation of approximately 1,000
feet. On the property already the tropical gardens are
permitted. About 3 acres of the 3.6-acre property are covered
with the gardens.
They have several different gardens connected by paths,
also accessory rest room facilities which are permitted under
the property's agricultural district zoning. On the .6 acres of
the property would be the Applicant's home. There's also one
other home on the subject property that used to be the residence
of their gardener, but is now rented as a long-term rental.
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They have a tenant living in that home. And other accessory
residential uses comprise the remaining portion of the property.
Like the application before this one or like the subject
property before this one, the property is not rated well for
agricultural production. It's rated E-98 by the LSB. It's also
non-ALISH rated, however, the applicants have been very
successful in cultivating the property as you can see.
The vast majority of the property is cultivated in the
tropical gardens. The Conditional Permit is being requested for
the use of a small craft shop that is comprised of 360 square
feet and also the use of the property for wedding ceremonies.
The craft shop is in existence already. Wedding ceremonies have
not been conducted on the property. That hasn't been done in
the past. It's something that the applicants have been asked if
they would be interested in doing. And as part of this
application, they're asking for limited use on the site for
weddings.
Approximately 8 years ago when the Applicant first
cultivated the gardens on the property, they would sell cut
flowers down on the roadside. They had -- at first they
actually sat down by the roadside and would collect money for
the cut flowers. Then they would leave a money box out there.
The money box was broken into several times, so they moved that
up onto the property so people would come onto the property to

130

buy cut flowers. And then they would take a break and walk
around because it really is a beautiful property as you will see
in the video.
So little by little, people would ask, "Don't you have any
souvenirs," things like that. So the use of the gardens itself
as an attraction evolved from them just wanting to sell cut
flowers. Someone made a craft shop evolved from that, and now
recently, they have been asked, "Can you . . . would you be
interested in having weddings held on the property?" So all of
these things have just evolved over the time that the
applicants have lived on the property and cultivated the
gardens. The gardens are open daily from 10 to 4.
As mentioned in the testimony, the property has two
accesses, one off of Kahekili Highway, which is a County roadway
in that vicinity. The driveway off of Kahekili Highway provides
five paved parking stalls. The property is also accessed off
the back side off of Kaukini Loop which provides six parking
stalls. Kaukini Loop is still a private roadway. The County
Code doesn't really have comparable -- a comparable way to
assess parking for botanical gardens or tropical gardens, so
it's hard to say what a standard County requirement would be.
At a minimum, it would be five stalls for the residential use
and the commercial use. Clearly, they have 11 which would far
exceed just a basic calculation of the County parking
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requirements.
As noted during the previous discussion, approximately 300
cars pass the property daily. The applicants estimate that
approximately 40 cars visit the gardens each day. Virtually all
of the gardens and paths are wheelchair accessible as is the
entrance off of Kahekili Highway. And the applicants also have
a private water system and individual wastewater system. They
have a 12,000-gallon water tank on the property as well as a
17,000-gallon swimming pool adjacent to their private residence.
That's a private pool. It's not incorporated in any part of
Their operations. Those two would both be used in the event
of fire.
Additionally, when ag subdivisions were developed on the
back side of the property, hydrants were installed along those
roadways, so there are fire hydrants on the Kaukini Loop side of
the subject property. The applicable Land Use regulations, it's
in the State Agricultural District, designated agriculture by
the community plan and is zoned Agricultural District. And Maui
Planning Commission approved the State Special Use Permit and
recommended approval of the Conditional Permit. The conditions
recommended by the Maui Planning Commission include limitations
on the wedding gift shop and the sale of any sort of snacks.
They recommended that weddings be limited to one ceremony per
day with no more than ten guests, that the gift shop be limited
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to its existing size, which is 360 square feet and that snacks
be limited to any sort of prepackaged drinks or snacks or candy.
The reasons that justify the request the craft shop and the use
of the property as a wedding site supports and perpetuates the
active and productive agricultural use of the property, the
botanical gardens.
During the application process, no negative impacts or
burden on public services were identified and the proposed uses
will enable the applicants to supplement their incomes while
promoting the agricultural activities and products on the site.
They make a positive contribution to the economy promoting
agriculture, generating tax revenues, a market for Maui
agricultural products and an appropriate site for weddings in
that no adjacent properties would be impacted, no public lands
would be impacted. They'd be contained on the site, limited
in their size, limited to one per day. And by applying for the
subject permit, the proposed use would conform to State and
County Land Use regulations and criteria. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Planning Department. Okay. How much time
do you need, Will?
MR. SPENCE:

It'll . . . it just . . . not even five

minutes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You need the lights on?
MR. SPENCE: No. It's getting ready to roll. I don't know
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if I'll be on the records, though.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just for your information, at 6:00, the
live taping will cease and they will continue to tape after that
but on a delayed basis.
MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Members. It's not this
project. It's starting right now. This is the driveway. This
is the approach on Kahekili Highway. That's the driveway up to
the project site. This is coming from the Kahakuloa side.
Basically, I'm showing that there's adequate site distance on
either side. This is the grounds right next to the residence.
This is where the weddings would occur. The weddings would not
be taking place in the residence. They would be outside. This
is the parking area looking up towards the gift shop. One of
the many gardens on the site. As you can see, the property is
well landscaped and quite well maintained. The accessory rest
rooms. This is inside the craft shop.
You can see there's locally grown orchids, pottery, wooden
boxes, but you can also see it's very small. This is from the
Maluhia Estate side. This is the driveway coming down.
Remember people were saying there's two entrances. Looking down
into the parking lot. One of the many pathways (pause). A lot
of gingers, heleconias, bananas (pause). You're looking back up
towards the residence. That's an artificial waterfall that adds
to the ambiance, and that's it.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much, Will. Any comments
from the Department, please.
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman, I don't think we have any
additional comments. The Applicant's consultant pretty much
touched on all the points. I would also like to add we have
received one letter in support since the public hearing before
the Planning Commission. And as the Applicant noted that there
was -- there was a 17,000-gallon swimming pool and also a
12,000-gallon water tank, and that was presented to the
Department of Fire Control. They had no comment on the
application and . .
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Were there any other -- any conditions or
requirements did any of the departments felt it was necessary
for this project?
MR. SPENCE: The only conditions that we placed on the
Special Use Permit -- actually, that the Planning Commission
placed on it were one, to limit the size of the weddings to ten
people. What we figured with that was that, you know, there
would be at least two people per car, so you would have like
five cars going up. Then also limit the size of the -- excuse
me, limit the number of weddings to one per day, so essentially,
you would have five cars going up, five cars returning. Then
you would also have . . . limit the size of the gift shop to 360
square feet. So essentially, what the Councilmembers saw in the
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video, that would be as large as it would ever be, and that was
agreeable by the Applicant. And I believe that's all. And then
that no -- the only food to be sold on the property was
prepackaged items similar to the previous application, and
those are the conditions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much. Questions.
Riki, you first, and then Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So Mr.
Spence, Exhibit 14 whereby you have a response back from the
Department of Health, a food establishment permit is not
required for this particular Applicant? In the letter from Mr.
Matsubayashi, he states a permit may be required.
MR. SPENCE: I believe -- I believe the application that
was sent to them just said snack foods. It didn't say
prepackaged foods, so there would be -- normally, the Department
of Health is concerned with food that is being prepared on the
site. Since there is no food being prepared, you know, they
would therefore have -- you know, they're controlling the
conditions in which food is being made and sanitary, et cetera.
Since everything would be prepackaged, they wouldn't have
concerns past this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I may continue, please, Mr.
Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You have the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. When you -- the
Commissioners discussed or the applicants provided information
regarding the vehicles for the proposed wedding usage, the last
Council had to deal with another permit request last term. Any
concerns about limousines and that type of vehicles and as
regards to reversing, traffic backing onto the main road and
those kind of questions, was that brought up or discussed during
the earlier review?
MR. SPENCE: As I recall, the question of limousines did
not come up. Perhaps -- the consultant is shaking her head no.
Amy proposed conditions with regard to very long vehicles. I'm
sure that they would be happy to discuss it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Will. Can I interject.
MR. SPENCE: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You've seen the property?
MR. SPENCE: Yes, I have.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would a limousine be able to reverse in
that area and turn around up the highway?
MR. SPENCE: I believe there is adequate room on the site
to turn a limousine around. And I should also note that if it
was coming from the Kahului side, the roadway could as well
handle that because it's two lanes from there all the way into
Kahului. It would be back going towards Kahakuloa where it
turns into one lane and the road gets very narrow and very
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sharp. Their limousine would have a difficult time, but from
Kahului side, it should have no problem.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that an issue of concern, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, eventually it will be
somebody's concern, whether it's because of the road or, you
know, more than likely, a wedding couple will plan to have a
very nice event whereby they'll have a chauffeur, limousine
service, the whole 10 yards, so I'm just concerned about that.
Regarding the ceremony portion, if I may Chairman, we're only
talking about the ceremony. We're not talking about
receptions, live entertainment, drinking on the property. We're
not talking about any of those services?
MR. SPENCE: No, we are not. There would be no receptions
in association with that. It would only be the ceremony. I'm
sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Will. Thank
you, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne is next, and then after that,
Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is this an after-the-fact permit?
MR. SPENCE: No, it is not. The Applicant wanted to -just became aware that there is a permitting procedure and they
came in and applied and wanted to become legal with the things
that they wanted to do on the property.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So right now, there is no snack
shop?
MR. SPENCE: Right now they do sell snacks.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So that's not -MR. SPENCE: So this is not after-the-fact in the sense
that there was a complaint filed or anything. They just became
aware that there was a permitting procedure and they said let's
go become legal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Is there any weddings being
performed now?
MR. SPENCE: The applicants said, no, there is not.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How is the Planning Department
viewing all of these additional kinds of uses on ag land now and
this whole process? I guess it's because I was reading the
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, and in it, it says, "There are
no standards, principal goals, policies or objectives, or
implementing action specifically addressing the Kahakuloa area."
And this is law now that's written.
However, the admission of this region and the emphasis of
development in and around urban areas could be viewed as the
intent that no development would occur in this area and the
support to retain the agriculture character of the areas outside
the urban areas. The Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan discourages
the approvals of special permits in the State Ag and Rural
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Districts unless, number one, necessary to serve the immediate
community in remote areas. Wedding service, I don't know if
this is a service but two, supportive of agricultural uses or,
three, required for the use or distribution of economic
resources and not otherwise adversely affecting the environment
or surrounding ag uses.
Now, I guess my question is this. And I'm glad that we've
got the Planning Director here. Are we going to continue
despite of what we've got in law to see the Department, whether
it be after the fact or new special use permits, how are you
going to tackle this question, Mr. Min, or the Planning
Director, of these people coming in and you saying we support
this type of use?
And what I'm concerned about is these accessory kind of
uses as far as selling packaged snacks and now wedding
ceremonies. Sooner or later, I don't know, it's got to stop. I
mean, if people want to do business, let them come in and get
business zoning, John. But to, I don't know, is this good
planning on your part, do you think? I don't know. I'm asking
you the question.
MR. MIN: Well, I think in general over the years, we've
seen uses in the ag district that we never saw ten years ago. I
mean we're talking about this kind of use, but, you know, it was
never an issue ten years ago, 15 years ago. You know, I think
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that's part of the growth of our community, okay. There are
other opportunities that people are interested in, okay. And I
think relative to land use regulations, we have within the
agricultural zoning provisions provisions for special uses, and
special uses are defined in the ordinance, so this Council has
-- well, the Council has played a role in defining what special
uses are and these are reviewed by the Planning Commission.
Okay.
On the other hand, we have uses that don't fit as special
uses, don't fit as permitted uses. And proposed wedding use, as
an example, doesn't fit either as a permitted or special use, so
it comes to the Council as a Conditional Use Permit application,
okay. And it's up to this Council on a case-by-case basis to
determine if it's appropriate for a given location and given the
nature and the scale of the operation. That's the authority of
this Council, okay. And that's the flexibility that our
agricultural zoning regulations provide, okay.
And like I said, land use is -- is dynamic, okay. Our
community is dynamic. And as different uses come to being,
within our regulations, there are -- there is this procedure
which allows an Applicant, a land owner to request, okay,
consideration for approval of a use that is not specifically
permitted. And for this Council to determine whether it's
appropriate, it's reasonable, there will be minimal impact,

141

minimal disturbance on the surrounding area, minimal burden on
the public facilities and services.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the Planning Department is
really not discouraging this? I guess, you know, it's like when
people are now viewing this on TV, so we're reaching all kinds
of people now. The guy goes, "Honey, you know, we can do this.
Look, our neighbors doing this. We go try." This is
precedent setting also, and I guess how can -- what do you -when are you going to say no, after 25 are given out?
MR. MIN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And Mr. Corporation Counsel, how
does this kind of precedent of the Council itself, as we now
allow these kinds of establishments to become pretty well
business in an agricultural zone, how do you view this perhaps
as -- if someone should take us to court, what is our -- and
we say no, how can this be based on if 12 are given out and
somebody says, "Well, you gave 12 out, why can't you give 13?
How can you say no to me?" What are your reasons for saying
this? John, I mean you or Junior. When will you say no?
MR. MIN: Well, again, I think -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What if there's 14 coming in
tomorrow. Would you say no to any of them, and tell me why you
would say no.
MR. MIN: Again, I think the Council in reviewing a
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Conditional Permit application, which is project specific,
specific to a particular locale, particular site, you know, can
review each request, you know, on a case-by-case basis and
determine whether it's appropriate. That's the whole concept of
a Conditional Use Permit. It's to allow the Council to look at
each project on its own merit, okay. Now, you asked the
question should we -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about you, I'm saying. You're
saying the Council, but what about you.
MR. MIN: Let me get to that, but let me get to another
point before I forget because you raised, you know, the
suggestion that perhaps in the agricultural district commercial
uses are to be zoned commercial, okay. And again, I think, you
know, we need to look at, you know, whether we can accommodate
reasonable commercial use within an agricultural district
without setting the precedent of rezoning it to a commercial
use which is going to involve putting it in the urban district,
okay. I think over the years we've seen commercial use, whether
it's, you know, out in East Maui, whether it's Molokai, whether
it's other rural areas. We've seen limited commercial uses
through a special use or a conditional use procedure function
very well in terms of the community.
The conditional permit gives the Council some oversight,
okay, without changing the zoning, so you're approving a
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specific project, a specific use. And there's a time limit on
it. And the Council can have this permit come back to, you
know, for its review, you know, after a specified time period.
So there are limits on the conditional permit. And I think
that, you know, that approach can be very appropriate in light
-- as an alternative to rezoning a property in the ag district
and having it classified in the urban district. So a
conditional permit gives the Council some oversight.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me -- because I just got a call
from somebody and they said, okay, you know, I'm a businessman,
I own a business and I own business property. And I pay
business taxes on this piece of property. My -- my -- my
property is because I do business, I pay a higher rate. What
about these people now that are coming in and running
businesses, do you know what -- whether these people are paying
on their area that they're running businesses out of, whether
they're paying the business rate on that property, whether it be
a snack shop or whatever because the guy was saying, "Are they
paying their fair share?" Do you know how the -- this
administration is handling that?
MR. MIN: Yeah, if I recall from conversations with the
Real Property Tax office staff, if it's in the agricultural
district, the Applicant would be paying the agricultural
property rate. It would be subject to other taxes. It would be
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subject to the GET and other taxes which would be based upon
their business income.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, I'm saying are they paying the
business tax rate on that particular area that they're running a
wedding service or a snack shop or selling trinkets? Because
all the other people that have business zone have to pay the
business tax on that piece of property plus on the building. So
I think you need to look at this if you haven't and get back to
us. But it's not something that should be left alone, Mr.
Chairman, because it was from a business person, and I think he
had a concern that we need to address. Yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And, Mr. Nishiki, in the Ag Bill, when we
had the discussion, one of the things we did agree to at the end
of that was we need to revisit the Ag Bill. We don't have the
restrictions as I remember it to do anything or to tax anything
at a different level within the ag district. So residents,
whether it be gentleman farmer or agriculture in nature can
derive the same benefits as well as anything else in that
district, so it's something we need to revisit in the Ag Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I guess this is a concern also,
Mr. Chairman when you look at it, okay. Now, these people are
retired, may not be, but I tell you something, if I asked Mike
Molina, and I tell Mike Molina, "Hey, Mike, you like buy my
property?" And he says, "How much?" I say, "Oh, 100,000." He
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goes, "How come you asking so much?" I say, "Oh, because I got
a Special Use Permit and I've got a wedding business here and
I've got a retail area that I sell snacks and I make this much,
so therefore, it's worth that much." Now, I sell it to Mike for
100,000. The next door neighbor goes, "Hey, I want to use my
place for living over here." And because the property tax
people came out and assessed all of this highest and best use
latest sales, this guy gets his tax abatement. And that's why
I'm telling you that this caller said please.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne and I'll agree with you that that is
occurring, but again, when we discussed this several Councils
ago with the bed and breakfast issue, with the home occupation
issue and a lot of others, that we never really resolved.
That's where we need to do that. In this particular instance, I
think we need to focus on what we're discussing and the specific
use that is being applied for today.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And why I say this and bring it up
is because we are discussing this specific project and it does
have impacts on our community, and we need to look at whether or
not maybe we should be giving out these and what should be
allowed.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And it's the intent of the Chair of this
Committee that we'll start looking at the definitions that we
have not clearly defined and we'll start that by introducing an
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item in the next Council meeting, so I want to get away from
that so much and try get into the specifics of this specific
case. And if anyone has questions on this specific case then
we'll do that. Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I don't know I thought Charmaine had a
question following, but I don't know if she wants to continue or
she wants to go.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, Charmaine and then Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm just recognizing the member,
that's all. But I have questions pertaining to this item.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Then I say Charmaine and then Mike.
Charmaine, you have questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not on this line of
discussions. So, if anybody wants to do it, I can wait until
later.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is yours specific on this line?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. I just have questions regarding
the presentation and things that were stated. And I just wanted
to get clarification, so whenever you're ready, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine and then Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Back before this one
started, we were talking about what would be involved in the
wedding portion of it, and you said it was for ceremonies. But
I think in the description it said, "Ceremonies, cake cutting
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and photos." Is that still part of it? It's Page 7 of the
Department of Planning, submittal. It's the first document.
MRS. SMITH: Yes. My name is Marie Smith, and I am with my
husband the owner of the property, and what we would envision is
a small group. I don't think anything like ten. Like a couple
with a photographer and the wedding coordinator. And I can see
taking the photographs with, you know, they cut the cake and
take the photographs. And I think most of the people, as I
understand it, they want to take mementos back to the mainland
to show at the reception that they have there. So what we're
thinking of is something very small. No receptions and none of
that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So the cake cutting is ceremonial
cake cutting?
MRS. SMITH: Ceremonial cake cutting.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not serving anybody?
MRS. SMITH: No. Most of the people would just be two
people when they come over from the mainland. Unless they're
using the hotels, they are just a couple, maybe one or two
friends, but I don't think -- you know, you don't have that
serving of cake.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is a wedding ceremony what you
envision? I mean you have to have a minister or a presiding
officer.
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MRS. SMITH: Yes, we would just ask the wedding
coordinators, that's who I talked to, would talk to, if they
have small parties, that we are available. And then they would
bring them to the place, have the ceremony with their minister,
do the photographs, and that's it. And the reason for our
place, because they would not use it much, and I think one even
dreaming of one ceremony a day, no way. If we had six a month,
it would be big because they can get -- they can have weddings
for free all over the island. They don't need to pay for it.
They only do that when they want private or this garden in
beautiful Hawaii and an uninterrupted ceremony, but we would
not get any business, very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mike, you were next.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I've got a question. How are
these conditions that's been, you know, established by the
Planning Department such as limiting the amount of guests and
numbers of cars and no alcohol on the premises? How is this
going to be enforced? How are we going to watch that the
Applicant is in compliance?
MR. MIN: First of all, those conditions that were
identified are conditions of the Special Use Permit, not the
Conditional Use Permit, okay. And in terms of compliance,
typically, when the project is up for renewal, compliance review
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is part of that review, so before, you know, any recommendation
to support extension of a permit is, excuse me, is done, we'll
review it to make sure that the various conditions have been
met.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Does that answer your question, Mike?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Kind of. I'm just concerned because
looking at the road and if somebody -- I'm sure the Applicant
would take steps to make sure that nobody brings alcohol on it.
But you never know, people might try to sneak something in there
as they drive. Maybe this question, if I may, can I ask another
question maybe of the Corp Counsel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'll leave it open until you're complete in
your mind.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. If God forbid
somebody gets drunk coming from the premises, the liability
falls on whom?
MR. KUSHI: Well, I'll answer it this way. If the premises
is operating a business with a liquor license, and somebody gets
loaded, you know, on the premises, then I think the Liquor
Department would have an interest in that. If the business is
not serving liquor or has a liquor license and the patron just
brings their own, I don't think they should be responsible for
it, but as a condition of the permit if agreed to prohibit that,
so we'll know no answer to your question. But it depends on the
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condition of the permit. Like if they go and get a liquor
license, then they're subject to a whole new set of rules, and
I don't think this is the case here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Questions for
the consultant.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Michele, thank you. A couple of
things just for clarity. The botanical garden, you made a
comment that it was permitted. How is it being permitted, is it
a permanent thing or is it something that comes back for review
later on as far as the botanical garden aspect of this property?
MS. CHOUTEAU: That use is permitted by the property
zoning, the agriculture district zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. The next question
is you referred to E-98 rating in both of your presentations.
Are you able to provide us with a scale for reference? I have
no idea what E-98, and although you did give some explanation in
your first presentation for me, I don't know what to refer to.
I mean E-98 is that on a scale of 1 to 100, or a scale of 1 to a
1,000? What kind of reference point can you give me to better
understand what that rating stands for?
MS. CHOUTEAU: It's -- actually, it doesn't really relate
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much to a scale. It's the LSB stands for Land Study Bureau.
And these -- the reason that I referenced those is that the Land
Study Bureau as well as the ALISH ratings were considered very
Important when the Council considered and then approved the Ag
Bill. The E reference relates to a loan productivity rating
that is a scale of A to E soil productivity. 98 is not on a
particular numerical scale. How they chose numbers to relate to
what the numbers mean, I'm not certain, but 98 really relates to
the slope of the land, that it's generally very steep land. So
E-98 is a pretty low productivity rating, but as you can see
in this particular case, it may not be appropriate for this
parcel because they've been so successful at growing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, if I can continue.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. One of the comments you
made in your presentation was a bullet and it talked about
wheelchair accessibility. And yet when the Planning Department
put forth their presentation, there tended to be some scenes in
that, in that video that contradicted wheelchair accessibility.
So can you clarify what you mean by wheelchair accessibility to
the property.
MS. CHOUTEAU: Most of the paths are wheelchair accessible.
There's some that have more of stepping stones that wouldn't be,
but most of the paths are concrete or stone paved as well as the
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lower parking area is wheelchair accessible and the paths are
accessible from that.
MR. SMITH: My name is Richard Smith. Half the paths are
wheelchair accessible, and I do not charge people in wheelchairs
to use them. Because the whole grounds, it's a hill. It's too
steep for a wheelchair to go up. And the other side is too
sloped for a wheelchair. No matter -- I couldn't put a path to
good enough for them, but they can get around about 80 percent
of the garden for free.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And my other question to connect to
the wheelchair accessibility, is a rest room facilities?
MR. SMITH: Yes, they can get a wheelchair in the restroom.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So you can, it is wheelchair
accessible as well?
MR. SMITH:

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And then my final question, and I
think Michele can handle it, thank you, sir, is it seems as
though when Marie came forward, she made it seem like the
conditions that were put forth on this application were quite
generous to what they envision as their -- what they envision in
this, and specifically, if they can do one wedding a day, which
counts to about 30 weddings, and she said that six is big, then
perhaps we need to reconsider allowing such a proliferation of
this use and we can scale it back to be in line with what Marie
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stated in her testimony as far as the wedding aspect of this
project. And so I'm just going to ask the Applicant if they are
willing to have that consideration. And again, I'm just
referring to what was said by various people based on the
presentation. Based on testimony from the Applicant, it seems
like 30 in a month is a lot more than what they envision when
she said that six is big. So -CHAIR ARAKAWA: You can ask your -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and I'm asking Michele. I'm
looking at you folks so you folks understand what my question
is, but to Michele, are you folks willing to look at the
considerations, if this application is -- with favorable
consideration, would you be willing to scale it back as far as
what the condition is?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes, I just checked with Marie. And she
said somewhere in the range of 6 to 12 weddings per month, and
because it is for a one-year duration, in that year's time
during the renewal process if they requested more or if they're
not doing the weddings, then it could be adjusted at that time.
Twelve per month on the outside.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So from 6 to 12 as far as for
consideration?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Per month. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And, Mr. Chairman, another
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question, please. When you talked in your presentation, you
talked about how this project has evolved over eight years from
basically a cut flower operation and then has evolved into a
gift shop and now with some wedding proposal for a wedding
operation as far as ceremonies. Is the primary intent or I
guess the money generator of this property going to continue to
be with the cut flowers and the botanical aspect of this
project?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
MS. CHOUTEAU: It certainly with the limitation of 6 to 12
weddings per month.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that seems self-imposed since
that's something that they're willing to agree to.
MS. CHOUTEAU: Well, it's something that they haven't done
before. They've been contacted by wedding coordinators or
people visiting the property saying, "Oh, do you do weddings
here?" So they really don't have much of an idea at this time.
It's just something that is the evolution of the use of the
property. But it's something that they would like to try out.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I understand. And, Mr.
Chairman, thank you for bearing with me on this. The next
question is there's on Page 7, and this is where Charmaine was
reading from, and I think down the page they talk about the gift
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shop emphasizing crafts from local artisans including tapa
items, baskets, et cetera. When we talk about emphasis, are we
talking about -- I guess I'm looking for a little bit more
detail in that word emphasize. ' Emphasis means a majority of the
products that are going to be coming out of that gift shop are
going to be as stated here would be from local artisans. And
how can you quantify that, how can we -- 70 percent I think
earlier, 70 percent is Maui, the other 30 percent is neighbor
islands. Can you quantify that?
MS. CHOUTEAU: I would like the applicants to address that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And the only reason I
bring that up is because this is what's being presented, I'm
just solidifying what you're presenting to us. You know don't
say one thing and then we find out later on that it's
practically everything is from Costco, which is not local. It
kind of tweaked my ear when we talked about local goods and yet
in the earlier testimony she buys her snacks from Costco to sell
in there, and that contradicts what she said. But I didn't make
it a big issue. But I guess because it's here, I want you to
clarify that.
MRS. SMITH: I guess it's very difficult to give you a
percentage other than to say the majority of the items are
because we use the gal who makes the tapa who was here who
testified. There's someone who makes pottery on the island. We

156

buy baskets. These are the big -- that's what we sell most of,
but we also have things like the little hula skirt with the
leis.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Made in Taiwan.
MRS. SMITH: I don't know where they're made but people
want them and they ask for them. And we have some of the fake
leis that are a big sell, but those are sort of things that are
on the side, but the items -- but they are not the majority of
what we are selling. Actually, it's the baskets and the fish
pottery and the baskets.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And when you talk about majority, are
you talking about a number of items that you're selling, or are
you talking about amount of money that you're generating, the
majority of the items?
MRS. SMITH: No, the items. The items.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The items?
MRS. SMITH: Yeah, the items. This was an old greenhouse
that got converted, so it's not large so -- and the items can
change. You know, we have people that come through. We have
some artists who have done some prints and that and they say,
"Can I see if it will sell?" I say, "Sure."
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I'm done with questions, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Wayne.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What are the packaged items that
you sell?
MRS. SMITH: Crackers, cookies.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sodas?
MRS. SMITH: No sodas.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Soft drinks?
MRS. SMITH: No soft drinks.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No liquor?
MRS. SMITH: No. We have water free.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But if people ask, then you would
sell that also?
MRS. SMITH: No. I think once upon a time, we had it, but,
you know, you have to bring in a special refrigeration and all
that and we didn't want to do that. The chips, the crackers and
stuff, you can just put in a little basket. It doesn't require
any special handling.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you know how much you would
charge for the use of your place for weddings? Do you have any
idea of what you were told that you could get from those people
that you have been communicating with?
MRS. SMITH: Probably running between for an hour ceremony
between 75 and $100 because, see, all they do is use the site,
nothing else.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And how do you plan to advertise
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through the weddings people?
MRS. SMITH: Through the wedding companies, just to give
them our price list, give them a photograph of our place.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mrs. Smith, if you would, please
stay with Michele. So again, and I have a concern with the
wedding operation, I'll be real frank with you. I can see the
other ones being a natural progression of what you had
previously in moving forward with your gift shop and whatnot.
But regarding the wedding areas, you would have -- is it your
intention when you're having this one-hour ceremony that you
would continue to conduct your other program, whether it be
a ground tour or individual walking tours for your other
visitors?
MRS. SMITH: We haven't worked that out yet. But I could
see if you could limit like the ceremonies to early in the
morning, we could open up at our regular time if you're not
having more than one a day.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mrs. Smith, you're looking at your
proposed wedding events, if we agree with it, to be between the
hours of 10 and 4 at this time?
MRS. SMITH: It would be the -- around the same time, but
if someone would say could I come in at 9, that would be
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preferable because you could have a ceremony and then get on
with your -- open up and we don't -- you know, people come,
drive up. You don't know what time they're going to come, and
usually there are only two or three cars of tourists there at
any one time, you know, so -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But on your side of the island, I
would think, if anything, you would have spectacular sunrises
compared to sunsets.
MRS. SMITH: Well, actually, we're behind a lot that's an
old Hawaiian artifact, so you don't see it. You can see
Haleakala, but -- but the main I guess feature are what the
photographers could get out of it because, you know, it
photographs beautifully and for privacy; otherwise, I'm sure the
people would spend more, rather have it on the beach.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But in general, you have no problem
with everything being within the -- your current hours of
operation?
MRS. SMITH: I don't know why I wouldn't, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I thank you very much, Mrs.
Smith.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jo Anne, you had a comment, qestion?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would just like to thank Mrs.
Smith for coming here. Your property looks absolutely
beautiful. It really is something. I know that we have
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weddings at our church at Waiola, and during the difficult
times, it's really been something that we didn't count on, but
something that has helped us through.
And my question to you would be running an agricultural
business or the type of business that I guess just growing
plants is, do you find that or do you believe that it will be
helpful to help maintain your agricultural lands and the
agricultural business to offset some of your expenses through
the income from your wedding business?
MRS. SMITH: Of course, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, great. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, the Chair
will entertain a motion to pass this ordinance. And if there
are going to be amendments, we'll make the amendments after we
get a motion. Entertain a motion to pass this ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded, moved by
Riki, seconded by Dain. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just so everyone is clear with this,
I'm assuming we're going also with the recommendations as
provided in the report, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. It's the entire package, the bill
plus the conditions that are there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I would move to amend
the main motion by, one, prohibiting all alcoholic beverages on
the property; two, wedding ceremonies will be limited to one a
day and not more than 12 a month; and third, weddings will be
held within the current operations of 10 to 4.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I would prefer that we do this one
at a time since you're -- you're making three different
amendments to this, so if we could do them one at a time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second for the first one.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: For the first one?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is the first one?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: First one is alcohol.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Prohibiting alcohol.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Discussion, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I have a question if nobody else has one.
In the prohibition of alcohol in your motion, is this
specifically business oriented, because I would not want to
prohibit them as people, individuals from being able to consume
alcohol at their own residence if they so chose.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Within the context of the wedding
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ceremony.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Within the context of the wedding ceremony?
Okay. So we understand the prohibition of alcohol is within the
context of the wedding ceremonies?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I know this might seem silly, but
if they're going to be taking photos, a lot of times the toast
is part of the photos, so I would suggest a replacement as
sparkling grape juice or apple juice or something has the same
number of bubbles I think as champagne. Oh, no, it doesn't, I
better not say that. Sparkling something that's non alcoholic.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussion? If I can ask
the Applicant is that agreeable with you?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes, it is.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you very much. Any further
discussion? If not, to the first amendment, all those in favor,
say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Amendment carried
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, Hokama, Kane
And Chair Arakawa.

NOES:

None.
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EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE CONDITION THAT NO ALCOHOL SHALL BE
SOLD OR CONSUMED ON THE PREMISES IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE OPERATION OF THE GIFT
SHOP AND COMMERCIAL WEDDING SITE.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The second amendment, Mr. Chairman,
would be that -- I don't recall.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One per day, 12 per month.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: One per day, no more than 12 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Correct, thank you very much
colleagues. One per day, not more than 12 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moved and seconded. The amendment that I'm
hearing is the wedding number would be limited to one per day
and no more than 12 per month; is that correct, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's correct. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Applicants . .
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Applicants, that's okay with you?
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MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. No discussion. All those in favor,
say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, Kane, Hokama,
and Chair Arakawa.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE CONDITION THAT WEDDING CEREMONIES
SHALL BE LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN ONE PER
DAY AND TWELVE PER MONTH

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Your third amendment, Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, that the hours for the
wedding events shall be held within the regular hours of
operation from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded.
Discussion, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and there was some discussion
and I think Mrs. Smith mentioned that if a wedding ceremony
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could be held as an example at 9:00 and ran until 10, her
preference is to have those wedding ceremonies earlier in the
morning. That way it would not impede the normal day of
business at the property.
So I don't know if we can address that in this amendment
now during this discussion, so to the maker of the motion, I
don't know if that's something you want to consider or you just
want to keep it that way. And the reason I bring that up and
because I know that was an interesting point that Riki brought
up is if we're having a wedding party and then we're still
having drive-in, keep in kind we only have five parking stalls
to accommodate, and so we may see some at times a situation
arise where there's not enough parking, so that will chase away
people. But I don't know if that's something we should worry
about.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If I can ask the maker of the motion if the
purpose of your amendment is to try and sort of restrict the
time limits perhaps somewhere like 6 a.m. to 6:00p.m., where
it's sunrise and sunset, so it's daytime hours, and they can
adjust to within that might be more appropriate, but that's your
motion. So you would entertain considering -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, I appreciate the discussion,
Chair. So, again, I'm willing to make the adjustments. I don't
know what the other members feel, but I'm willing to make an
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adjustment.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If we can ask the applicant. Would you -MRS. SMITH: Yeah, I would prefer that the later, that
broader ban from 6 to 6, and then that allows on both ends, not
to -- because I'm thinking about the traffic, although we do
have the additional, we have more than five parking stalls, but
it would really work better if it were 6 to 6.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Let's compromise, Mrs. Smith, 7 to
5.
MRS. SMITH: Good, because I don't get up early.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was just going say you have to
wake up real early.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on. Will the maker of the motion
withdraw the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I will withdraw the original
amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Withdraw the second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Make another motion, please, Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm thinking. We threw out so many
hours.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Seven to 5.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We amend 7 to 5 hours.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moved and seconded 7 to 5. Discussion?
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Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I've got a question. How close are
the neighbors? Because I'm like you, I don't like to get up
early. If somebody is driving past my house to get to a wedding
at 7 a.m., that means those cars are going to be rolling in at
before 7.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If I may, you know the area just as you go
past Maluhia, there's that big turn. It's tucked away in the
corner over there, so there's no really close neighbors at all.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: They're not passing anybody's place
before you get there?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: There is no neighbors there.
MS. CHOUTEAU: There's no neighbors close by.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, fine.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If that answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? The time 7 to 5 is
okay with the Applicant?
MS. CHOUTEAU: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: All those in favor, aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Hokama,
Kane and Chair Arakawa.
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NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE CONDITION THAT WEDDING CEREMONIES SHALL
NOT COMMENCE EARLIER THAN 7 A.M. OR CONCLUDE
LATER THAN 5 P.M.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Now, to the main motion as amended.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, other amendments.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have an amendment on the gift
shop.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I'll make the motion. We can
have a discussion about it. I would like to amend it to so that
the items for sale in the gift shop relate to the botanical
gardens.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded that the items
in the gift shop relate to the botanical gardens. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, as the maker of the motion, I
think because we're looking at an agricultural use of botanical
gardens, that they would want to promote the botanical gardens,
and I think that it would be appropriate for those items to be
somehow representing the botanical gardens and not necessarily
hula skirts and other things like that. I think if people want
that kind of thing, they can find it down at the ABC Store down
in Lahaina Town or some other place.
But I think the specialness of having a botanical gardens,
you want -- you want to exude a quality about the experience
there, and I think by having just those items that are related
to a botanical gardens, like it could be pictures of plants,
pottery, baskets because they're related to plants, but to keep
it in that line I think would help not only the ambiance of the
whole property, but would really show a real class in the
property.
But to start bringing in other things, especially when
they're not made in Hawaii, I think you start to cheapen the
experience for the person who is visiting.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion? I have a question
in that case.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Further clarification. I don't mean
to exclude the packaged goods, the little snack things, that's
fine. That's a human need or a human habit.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion? Comments by the
Applicant.
MRS. SMITH: I appreciate the comment, and I know exactly
what you mean. We do have a very small operation and the gift
shop does help because we don't take in that much. We sell cut
flowers, which is a part of the botanical garden. That's how we
started it. And we do have the baskets, but then we have some
pottery and a few other items that really help us to make it
worthwhile to even have that open. And I don't feel that they
cheapen it. Like the handmade tapa cloth albums, they're not
directly related, but I could say they're from the bark of
trees, that she makes it and pounds it, but I think it really
restricts us if we really try to zero in and say just botanical
things. I just think it really -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't think you understand what
I'm saying about the botanical things.
MRS. SMITH:

Oh, okay.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You can stretch botanical pretty
far.
MRS. SMITH:

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Like you're mentioning the tapa -MRS. SMITH:

Yes, right.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- from plants. That's fine. The
pottery, if the pottery is designed either with earth tones or
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botanical plants or it is a vase or can be used as a vase to
cull those or can hold potpourri -- I mean there's -- you can
justify a whole lot of things. If you've got candles that have
some herbs in them, I mean you've got a botanical garden, so I
don't mean to limit you like that. I think that you can get a
pretty wide array of products out there that people would be
interested in, but I don't think that should hamper you too
much. And your artists will come up with all of the -- the
artisans will come up with the products for you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that acceptable with that explanation?
MRS. SMITH: Yes, now I understand that. Because it
sounded initially very limiting to me, but now I understand it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, and all the Council members
understand the limitation that Charmaine is working with? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just to bring clarification, so that
means no artificial plastic hula skirts, no artificial leis,
just so you understand what we're talking about, if that's okay
with you. Just so you understand. Okay.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Everybody is clear on that? Any further
discussion? All those in favor, say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, Hokama, Kane
And Chair Arakawa.
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NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE CONDITION THAT, EXCEPT FOR PRE-PACKAGED
SNACKS AND DRINKS, ONLY ITEMS RELATING TO
BOTANICAL GARDENS SHALL BE SOLD IN THE GIFT SHOP.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further amendments? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No further amendments. Just in
discussion of the main motion, Mr. Chairman, as amended.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, first -- any other -- any other
amendments? If not, the discussion on the main motion as
amended. Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And just one short comment from
watching the video, and I have to tell the Smiths that I don't
know if they remember my wife and I went out there several years
ago to visit and we absolutely loved it. And we were just out
there yesterday and we drove past it and we saw for the first
time, the behind view. During the old days, you could only see
the front, so you have no idea what's behind there. So from the
back and you looking down you realize how much smaller it is
than what you thought it would be from the front.
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But anyway, I would hope that you folks would consider as
you continue to evolve that you would consider putting maybe a
little bit more native type of plants in there because a lot of
what you have in there is either exotic species or Polynesian
introduced, and it's very limited as far as what's there native.
So again, it's just a comment and an observation. And it's
something that you could use as a selling point if you consider
plugging in some native plants. And this is a comment based on
what I saw on the video, so if there are things in there, please
tell us because it would be really nice.
MR. SMITH: You have to come back to the gardens. I have
one area that's all native plants.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Wonderful. Thank you very much.
Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion or comments?
Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, just the fact that I would
ask the staff to get the report from the property tax people on
how we deal with these kinds of properties. I would like to
make a request that they can write to us and you find out how
the taxes are being done.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll do that, but I'm fairly sure what
happens is they have to pay their GET and that other related
business taxes, but the property itself is not taxed anything
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other than agricultural rates. But we'll get that -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. If we could get that request
from the people that do the work.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, we'll get that. Yeah, we'll get that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I might suggest on that
particular question that that go out through the Budget
Committee, and when the Real Property Tax Division is before us,
that they address that particular question, that specific
question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dave, do you have that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair of the Budget Committee
doesn't mind.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're also going to be discussing that as
part of the Ag Bill when we get back to start looking at some of
these items. Okay. If no further discussion, all those in
favor, say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried as amended.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, Hokama, Kane
and Chair Arakawa.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

175

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill as revised; and FILING
of communication.

MS. CHOUTEAU: Thank you.
LU-12

REQUEST FROM KATHY INOUYE, ON BEHALF OF GENERAL
SERVICES, INC., FOR A CHANGE IN ZONING (AMENDED)
(C.C. No. 01-35)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. We have unfortunately
one more item that we have to work with, Land Use Item 12. We
have a lot of people from Honolulu for this particular one, so
I'm not going to defer it. Gwen, are you ready pretty much?
How much time do you need? Item Land Use 12. This is "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2317 (CONDITIONAL
ZONING) TO AMEND CONDITION 2(C) AND DELETE CONDITION 4 FOR
PROPERTY SITUATED AT NAPILI, LAHAINA, MAUI, HAWAII".
MS. HIRAGA: Sorry we had to switch computers, but in the
meantime, we did distribute hard copies of this presentation.
I'm not sure if all the members have received that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
MS. HIRAGA: Good afternoon, Chairman and Members of the
Land Use Committee. My name is Gwen Hiraga. This is our
presentation to you on LU-12 request from Kathy Inouye on behalf
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of General Services, Inc., for change in zoning for amendments
to change in zoning.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmembers, I really want to point out
that I asked Gwen to do this and she's trying to do a fast learn
on this, so I really want to thank her for at least making the
attempt to try and get it to us in this manner, and bear with it
a little bit.
MS. HIRAGA: Subject project is Napili Villas. It is an
amendment to Ordinance 2317 relating to Napilihau Villages. The
application that's before you is to amend the conditions and
unilateral agreement to Ordinance 2317. The amendment is one to
amend Condition No. 2(c) relating to traffic improvements
to be consistent with the State Department of Transportation
comments. And the second amendment is to delete Condition No. 4
pertaining to the marketing of the housing unit.
This is background information on the Applicant. The
location, the area with regard to land uses, it is in a State
Urban District. It is designated as Multi-family use in the
West Maui Community Plan and the zoning is in A-1. Apartment
District. The property does lie within the County Special
Management Area.
Specifically, Condition No. 2(c) for which we are proposing
to amend is to add in the second portion which is underscored,
and that is if necessary as determined by the State Department
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of Transportation. The original condition was to provide for
acceleration and deceleration lanes. The second amendment is to
delete Condition No. 4 in its entirety and that pertains to
marketing of the units within the project. Planning Commission
held its public hearing on December 12th. At the public
hearing, two individuals testified in support. The Department
also received 14 letters, 13 in support, one in support of
deletion of Condition No. 4 and however not supporting amendment
to Condition No. 2(c). The Maui Planning Commission recommended
approval of these amendments by unanimous vote.
This is the -- an aerial photograph of the project area.
This is Honoapiilani Highway. Right here is Lower Honoapiilani
Road. This is the project site. What I included in this slide
is a phasing plan, and again sorry for the orientation, but you
need to look at it. This is Honoapiilani Highway, which
normally we see it on the top, but in this particular slide, it
is on the bottom. Again, this is the project area. We chose
the phasing of this project, Phase 1, which is the drainage
basin, and these units here. Phase 2 would be the access to the
property as well as the surrounding units here and Phase 3 is
here. This is a conceptual site plan again. We have
included the landscape, which we envision for the property.
This is a rendering of one of the buildings. Okay.
Now, for the site photographs, Photograph No. 1, to give an
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orientation, that red dot on the top, again, this is
Honoapiilani Highway, Lower Honoapiilani Road. And right here
is where we're looking into the project site. The next photo is
further down, and again, looking into the project site, this is
above back here. And this looks at it from this angle. This is
the lower road looking at the project site from this view. That
was the last slide again, this -- the application before you is
to amend the unilateral conditions and zoning.
I don't know if at this point -- you know, we have in
attendance at this meeting the Applicant Kathy Inouye and
Patrick Kobayashi, Eric Ong, who previously testified is also
here to respond to any questions. And our civil engineer, Ronald
Fukumoto.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Before we get to the Planning Department,
anybody have any questions on these particular slides?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Planning Department.
MR. MIN: Chairman, we have nothing to add to the
presentation, but we will be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Questions for the Planning
Department. Bob, you haven't asked any questions. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: For the Department, concerning
amendment to Condition No. 2, as I recall, deceleration is
necessary. The acceleration lane could come in later.
MS. INOUYE: To clarify it, what happened is that the
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application went out for review to the different agencies and as
proposed the access that comes off of Honoapiilani Highway, is a
right turn in, right turn out access only. It limits any left
turn movements into the project. When it was reviewed by the
Department of Transportation, they agreed that the Acceleration
lane was not necessary and that the deceleration lane off
Honoapiilani Highway would be sufficient. The reason that the
amendment is being requested is that the change in zoning
conditions specify that you needed an acceleration lane and
deceleration as well as the channelization.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That's why I brought that up
because over this amendment to Condition No. 2 says providing
for acceleration and deceleration lanes and channelization to
affect turn restrictions at the Honoapiilani Highway if access
is necessary.
But the wording should be providing for deceleration lane
and acceleration lane if necessary, but the deceleration lane
needs to be in there. That is not an option.
MS. HIRAGA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You want to have the Applicant address
that? Gwen. Go ahead.
MS. HIRAGA: Kathy Inouye is here. You know, we have a
revised proposed condition that we wanted to present to the
Committee at this time, and this is based on our discussions
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with Council members as we prepared for your meeting today.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Will you please -- do you have it in
writing?
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Please distribute it.
MS. INOUYE: Kathy Inouye for General Services, Inc. And
I'll read it while it's being passed out to you. The "amended
language would read" providing for a deceleration lane and
channelization to affect turn restrictions at the new
Honoapiilani access and providing for an acceleration lane if
necessary and as determined by the State Department of
Transportation."
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That wording is acceptable to me.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Take a look at it as we hand it out, make
sure it's okay by you. Any other questions or comments on this
particular one? Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You know, this -- I was
reading with some concern, I was reading the December 7th, 2000,
letter written by Theodore Balestreri in our folder. It says
that, "Although I'm in accord with the proposed deletion of
Condition 4 to sale offers, I'm very concerned about the
consequences that could result from the proposed amendment to
Condition No. 2. This requested modification of 2 dimensions,
applicants duty to provide for acceleration and deceleration
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lanes at the new Honoapiilani Highway access, and instead
requires further determination by the State Department of
Transportation, a process that can only delay completion and
inflate costs while leaving local residents at risk. As the
owner of two units in Kahana Sunset development, it is my
position that the foregoing condition was and is essential
consideration established in order to protect and insure health,
safety and welfare of area property owners residents and
travelers. To now change these conditions before the
development is even finished is unacceptable. Then he goes on
to say that, you know, the owners and residents who have acted
in reliance upon the completion of the road safety project is
unacceptable.
And this is my concern. I think when this project came
before us, it was very controversial amongst the different
owners in regards to, number one, Mr. Chairman, drainage, number
two, the entire project in its entirety and what kind of traffic
would be put on Honoapiilani Highway. Now, the developer is
saying, let's make the Department of Transportation the one that
makes this determination.
Well, personally, I think that these kinds of lanes are
necessary in a development of this magnitude. And again, to
eliminate the concern for public health and safety amongst
traveling people and to the West Maui area for this project I
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think is totally unacceptable. Why would they want to change
this? I think that when this project came on board, people
accepted it. And I think it was basically for safety to have
acceleration and deceleration lanes.
To eliminate this and again to further determine that this
is -- may be necessary and then at whose cost?
It would be then at the State taxpayers and the County
taxpayers' cost. So if it's for public health and safety and
this was accepted as a condition, for them to now change the
language and try to get away from their responsibility is
totally unacceptable. And I think that why now the change?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let me ask the Applicant that, Wayne.
Could you respond to that.
MS. INOUYE: I would be happy to respond Mr. Nishiki. It
is not a situation of us coming up with a design that would
impair health or safety issues. The situation is that that
secondary access has limited movements. It's only right turn
in, right turn out. Since the installation of the traffic signal
up the road at Napilihau Street, there's a fully signalized
intersection, DOT as well as two engineers that we have worked
with, actually three engineers, have determined that rather than
having a deceleration lane where people would tend to come out
onto the right-of-way and then speed up and try and merge into
traffic, they feel it's a safer condition to wait at the
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entrance of the project, look for a clearing in the traffic and
then move safely out. So it was for safety issues that the
change was made, not because we're trying to get away from any
cost issues that would impact health or safety.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know the map that I -MRS. INOUYE: The one -- I'm sorry, one more thing. The
one person that wrote to you, we have done numerous meetings in
the community, which included going on foot to everyone within a
500-foot radius with notices of public meetings that we held
that no one required to make sure everyone got the appropriate
information, to make sure we understood what we're doing with
the project. This person that wrote you the letter did not
attend any of our meetings, but the Board of Directors at Kahana
Sunset, we met with them numerous times as well as their
attorney.
And you will note in the folder there are several other
letters of support, some of which are from the presidents of the
adjoining associations that formerly filed their intervening
motion and also from Isaac Hall who represents the Intervenors
fully supporting this motion. And they are well aware of what
we are doing. They have copies of the draft EA which includes
the traffic study.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Where is'the map on here? I see
Exhibit 3 as being one. And the other map is Figure 3 just
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before Ordinance 2317. I don't see a map of essentially what
you're eliminating and what would be put in its place. Because
now should the State Department of Transportation make a
determination after the fact and we eliminate this, that it may
be necessary, my question is who is going to pick up the tab?
Then we pick up the tab should the State or County need to
do it.
MS. INOUYE: Could I make a clarification on that?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Where is the map here that shows
anything? Can you show it to us what you're eliminating and
what you're putting in its place?
MS. INOUYE: May I make a comment on that? The original
request was just to delete Condition 4. The DOT in reviewing
our plans stated that they didn't feel the acceleration lane was
required but because we looked at the zoning conditions, and the
zoning conditions have that as requirement, the planners as well
as DOT felt that just to make sure that we are not in violation,
that we should put that language in. The words "may be
necessary" is if DOT changes their mind and decides upon review
of our full plans, they would like us to put in the acceleration
lane, so they will fully be responsible for reviewing the plans
that our engineer does, that our traffic engineer has input
into and their engineers review it. They will determine whether
or not it's necessary.
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The "may be necessary" is not because someone may change
their mind somewhere down the road. They review the context of
the project, traffic that's generated and make that decision
based on the plans that are submitted, but that's why a map was
not included because it was a last-minute request from DOT
and Planning Department. That since we're in already that we may
as well just clarify that language.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, for clarification on my part. The
Department of Transportation requested that you put this change
in. Is that what I heard you say?
MS. INOUYE: There's a letter from DOT, and it says,
"Although a zoning condition requires the Applicant to provide
acceleration and deceleration lanes, we have agreed to a
configuration without an acceleration lane." So because of that
comment, we wanted to just make sure we're in full compliance of
any conditions. This still gives them the latitude if
someone from the community says, "No, we really feel that an
acceleration lane is required." But as I said, our traffic
engineers -- we've had two civil engineers on the project, two
traffic engineers, and we've reviewed the plans numerous times
with Department of Transportation both on Maui and Honolulu.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the other things, the other aspect of
Wayne's question was if this occurred, then you would be paying
for it?
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MS. INOUYE: Of course. Yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's not the big point. The big
point is that I was looking for the map, and there's no map
here. I mean I don't think anybody here knows where that lane
was supposed to be put in, and now it's gone, so you're saying
you don't have a map.
MS. INOUYE: We have a map, and that's -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, where is it?
MS. INOUYE: You should have been provided a copy of that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Why couldn't you show it to us?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on, Wayne. Hold on. Do you have a
map that you can present to us?
MS. INOUYE: It's in your folder, the PowerPoint
presentation.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
MS. INOUYE: Yeah, there's a phasing map in there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Photograph 3 here?
MS. INOUYE: No, there's a phasing map. It's black and
white.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: This one.
MS. INOUYE: It says 1, 2 and 3, yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
MS. INOUYE: Okay. So the secondary access is on
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Honoapiilani Highway where the big Roman Numeral 2 is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me see that one again.
MS. INOUYE: It's this black and white
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, okay, okay.
MS. INOUYE: Where that big Roman Numeral 2 is, that
shows the access onto Honoapiilani Highway? That's where the
acceleration and deceleration lanes would be.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on, hold on. Did you find it,
Wayne?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I see it. So -- so -- so that's
where your access is going to be in and out of the project?
MS. INOUYE: That's the second access. The main access is
you turn left off Honoapiilani Road onto Napilihau Street right
past Napili Plaza, and then you turn left onto Hanawai Street.
That road is existing, right, so that's the primary access.
And this is a secondary access because you can only make a right
turn in and a right turn out there. No left turn maneuvers
would be permitted into and out of that access.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Do you need a better explanation, Wayne?
If you do, I'll ask Gwen to pull down the screen and put it up
on PowerPoint so she can point it out.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Exactly.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Would you like that?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes. I don't understand this.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Gwen, why don't you put up the
PowerPoint presentation. We'll pull down the screen, and you
can point it out with the pointer so it's very clear.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The reason why I can't see this,
Mr. Chairman, is when you go down to Honoapiilani Highway,
people travel fast over here and to not have a lane is cause for
concern.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's why I wanna make sure it's clear.
MS. INOUYE: Mr. Nishiki, the intersection should be -- do
you see the intersection with Honoapiilani and Napilihau Street?
That's a fully signalized intersection. Yeah, that's just down
the road from our property and we helped pay for the
signalization of that intersection, and because of that, the DOT
is saying that the acceleration lane is not required.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right now, Kathy, it's only one
going up and one going down right?
MS. INOUYE: In front of the property, yes, you're correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. That's my concern.
MS. HIRAGA: This is Honoapiilani Highway. As Kathy
mentioned, this is the primary access this way to the project
area. The secondary access.
MS. INOUYE: Gwen, maybe we could have Ron explain the
traffic improvements.
MS. HIRAGA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know what? Before you do that,
tell me how many units are going to be in this entire project
because I know it's -MS. INOUYE: There's 184. The original SMA application
allowed for 296 of which 76 units were built, so another 220
will be permitted and I'll explain to you after we answer the
traffic question, we've opted for a reduction in density of 20
percent.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 184 units and then say at the
minimal two cars per unit. Two cars per unit minimal, so you're
talking about three, 400 cars living in there, yeah.
MS. INOUYE: We have traffic generation studies, and the
full traffic assessment is in the EA.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MS. INOUYE: Ron.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, why don't you who where the primary
-- show us where the primary road is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Within this subdivision.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So following that pointer, that's the
primary entry and exit.
MS. HIRAGA: From the highway.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: On the main highway, there's a traffic
signalization there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Napilihau.
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MS. HIRAGA: This is Napilihau Street.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Point out where the traffic lights are.
MS. HIRAGA: It's down here.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, it's up above.
MS. HIRAGA: Right here. Sorry the orientation again.
Okay, turn down. Go down Napilihau. This is Hanawai Street,
and this is going into the project area right here.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Now, the other area that -- the other
entrance and exit that we're talking about now.
MS. HIRAGA: This is Honoapiilani Highway. The secondary
access is here, right turn in only and right turn out only.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this. You see
Honoapiilani Highway?
MS. HIRAGA: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Talk into the mike, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You see Honoapiilani Highway?
MS. HIRAGA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How far back is your project set
back, what if we wanted to go two lanes on each side, how far is
your project set back now because essentially that's going to -I'm just trying to look at the future just like we're so behind
right now, but that's all right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Ron, identify yourself.
MR. FUKUMOTO: Okay, I'm Ron Fukumoto. I'll try and answer

191

the question. If you're looking at the map there, I think you
can see the edges of the current Honoapiilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Point it.
MR. FUKUMOTO: Okay, if you look at the map here, this is
the approximate edge of the highway.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. FUKUMOTO: And you're asking what is the distance
between this edge and the property line?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes. And just for the concern of
should we -- I know we will go four lanes there because we've
done it all the way to Honokowai now. How much area is in
between there?
MR. FUKUMOTO: Okay. I'm going to estimate. If you look
at the scale here, that's about 75 feet, and if you look at the
relationship here, that's probably about 75 feet, maybe more.
So that's an approximation at this point, and that would allow
for an additional lane in there. If you know this section of
the highway, there is not an additional lane, but there is a
paved shoulder that runs throughout and that, you know, would
serve as the additional lane if there was any improvement, so
there's quite a bit of room there for future improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, the concern here, sir, is
should we go to four lanes, we surely need an acceleration and
deceleration for cars coming out of there to get onto the
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highway is all I'm saying. You're not going to go directly from
a right turn onto the highway and run into Honoapiilani Highway
is my concern.
MR. FUKUMOTO: I believe what you're saying is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I mean that's what we try to do
from developments because it's so necessary, I mean.
MS. INOUYE: Mr. Nishiki, another comment is that the
second access is not required per our traffic engineers. We're
putting it in because some of the people in the community have
requested it, and we're putting it in, but should Honoapiilani
Highway in the future ever be widened and take away that access,
we always have the option of closing off that access should that
become necessary, so that's something that could be considered
down the road.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But then I think the concern has to
be the impact of these other streets that you'll impact on
especially Napilihau Street. If all that people going to and
from work would have to exit through Napilihau, that's gridlock.
MS. INOUYE: It's that versus the safety issue on when you
widen the highway.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not to mention the commercial area
right in that area, that whole plaza that everybody goes to, and
that's the reason why the safety concern and perhaps a need for
a deceleration lane, and why you would want to get away from
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doing it concerns me.
MS. INOUYE: Mr. Nishiki, we're not trying to get away
with anything. As I said, we've had a minimum of four engineers
that we have hired take a look at the situation. The DOT
engineers have also reviewed the situation. We leave it to the
traffic engineers and experts to determine what is necessary.
I would never try to direct our consultants to get away with
anything that would be required for health and safety.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, it looks like health and
safety for me to not have a deceleration, so people will go
directly into the highway from the subdivision there is what
you're saying, Kathy.
MS. INOUYE: No, there is a deceleration lane. The
acceleration lane is the one that we -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, acceleration.
MS. INOUYE: Yes, the decel, you definitely have to have it
because you're coming down Honoapiilani Highway from Kapalua.
You have to get in the decel to slow down in order to make the
right turn into the property. Coming out what we're saying is
the acceleration lane is not required. People will stop,
look for oncoming traffic and then make a right turn when there
is no traffic, because again, there is a fully signalized
intersection there, so there'd be a break in the traffic flow
and they can only turn right going toward Kaanapali.

194

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I understand. I think in a project
that big and in that highway when it goes to four lane, we need
that lane for people to march out there and slowly get out. Mr.
Chairman, my only point to, you look at Maui Meadows and all
these places where we've got big subdivisions coming out to
major highways. Despite that you may have an intersection,
you always have that lane there so that you can get a running
start.
You've got to have it so you can make the turn and get your
car pointing in that direction and then get onto the major
highway. It just makes sense.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold on. You made your point. Jo Anne you
had your hand up and then Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Prior to this project coming along
and actually on Napilihau Street and prior to the installation
of the light, pretty much what you're describing, Wayne, you
just waited for traffic to pass and that was a much more
dangerous curve. You would just pull out into traffic, and I
realize there was I think at least one fatality at that corner
but that was quite a while ago, but that's a much more dangerous
curve. You have a better, a much better line of sight coming
along that area. It's very visible coming down, so I -- I don't
know, I don't see the same thing that you're see, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Charmaine had her hand up first Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The question I had was for Ron
actually. Let's say if acceleration and deceleration lane is
installed at this point in time while the lane is -- before the
lane is widened or the highway is widened, if they widen the
highway, won't that wipe out the lanes you just put in and
they'll have to put in another acceleration/deceleration lane,
the State?
MR. FUKUMOTO: That's essentially correct. The lanes would
be changed to the travel lanes instead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. See, what you don't see, Jo
Anne, is real important. Despite that they say there's a
traffic light there, you may stop at the traffic light coming
from Kapalua, so the cars are not going to travel there but the
people coming from -- then the light changes again from there
and then you've got green light on Napilihau. People are going
to come out of Napilihau turning right there from the shopping
center or whatever. So that traffic light isn't going to
essentially stop any traffic coming down on Honoapiilani
Highway.
That traffic will just transfer from one road to the other
road coming in on Honoapiilani, so the traffic will remain
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constant, and all I'm saying is that because of the constant,
for someone to charge out and make a quick right without a small
deceleration lane I think is very dangerous.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, perhaps, Ron, you could address what
Wayne's point is from an engineering standpoint. So, Wayne, as
I understand it, what your concern is the road -- the traffic
coming on Honoapiilani Highway despite the light -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Will be constant.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- will still be constant because of the
Napilihau traffic? Ron, your comments.
MR. FUKUMOTO: I'm -- let me clarify. My position is the
civil engineer for the project. We do get involved with roadway
design. However we also have a traffic engineer for the project
and the traffic engineer has done a study that provides
information that the DOT evaluates, and they make a
determination on, you know, what is required.
I understand that the DOT has determined that an
acceleration for a project of this magnitude is not necessary,
therefore, they are not requesting a traffic, you know, an
acceleration lane for this project. From a practical
standpoint, I can understand what you're saying where you're
going to have traffic coming towards Kaanapali along
Honoapiilani Highway, and when the light changes, of course,
you're going to have people turning right from Napilihau Street
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onto the highway. I think DOT has evaluated the situation, and
they've made a determination that you're going to have breaks in
there. From a practical standpoint, you will have breaks, and
they are, you know, taking that into consideration, therefore,
they're not requesting an acceleration lane for this project.
That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, I -- I -- I -- and, Mr.
Chairman, if I may. You know, I just see, God, why do we have
to learn from our mistakes? We see the traffic problems already
as we go to South Maui, wherever, and we've got all this
deceleration coming out of new projects. This area is going to
grow. The traffic is going to get more horrendous, and that's
the reason why we've had to go to four lanes all the way up to
Honoapiilani Highway.
Now, Maui Land and Pine and all these places here, it's all
starting to in-fill unless we get either the property or this
lane built. I think is something that is a must. You cannot
get onto -- in the future if it's a four-lane and not have a
deceleration lane. That's all I'm saying.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne, if I -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, I just say this. If at the
least you may not agree with that policy, I think what we need
to do is at least get the land from these people should that be
created because --
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne, I'm going to interrupt you for
a couple of seconds.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anyway, you just, just gonna make
the same mistakes again.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are you done with this, the presentation?
I'm going to take it up and turn the lights back on if you can
understand it. You're comfortable with it at this point?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm comfortable now that I
understand what they're trying to do.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. INOUYE: Just one more point of clarification. Mr.
Nishiki, that area is DOT's property. It's a DOT right-of-way,
not our property. The State owns that land.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Understood.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'll adjust to it a little bit more as I
get more familiarized -- refamiliarize myself with it. Okay.
Wayne, you've made your point. Anybody else have any issues?
Bob and Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I think Wayne had a very good point
when he was talking about the four lanes. When it does go to
four lanes, I think obviously at that time, they would need an
de -- I mean an acceleration lane, but putting in one now when
they're going to go to four lanes later, I question the wisdom
of that, especially in light of the DOT's traffic report, I
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would support putting one in when it went into four lanes, yes,
but for now putting one over there and then covering it up
doesn't seem to make much sense.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, Riki first.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. If I can
continue on this trafficking, and then I want to move on and
cover my concerns, please, Chairman.
Thank you. Regarding, you know, this trafficking, it is
kind of interesting for me because State DOT is trying to tell
this Committee or this Council how to do zoning, and I don't
appreciate that.
You know, maybe other people won't interpret it that way,
but we know State Department of Transportation has a bad record
with our infrastructure on Maui, and normally, it takes a couple
accidents, a possible fatality, before we do the right thing.
We learned it from Haleakala Highway. We learned it from a
couple of other places whereby their engineers tell us no
impact, no major requirements needed. And then lo and behold,
we have our incidents, and there's the improvement.
But I think we can learn better. I for one have little
faith that the State will move in time anyway regarding their
requirements for this area of West Maui. I do believe though
that this traffic concern, I even question the developer about
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this ingress egress, Mr. Chairman, and whether because of
gridlock, like Mr. Nishiki brings up, how we handle Piilani on
Kihei. We had a nice road, traffic used to move, and here's DOT
they put in a lot of intersection, a lot of signalization,
and now we have gridlock on Piilani and Lower Kihei Road. But
we haven't -- I would hate to see Honoapiilani Highway by Maui
Pine, Napili Plaza, this proposed subdivision to eventually
become just like Piilani Highway, we're gonna get gridlock
because of the stop lights are not either synchronizing timing
or we just have too many ingress, egresses along this main
thoroughfare for West Maui. I think, if anything, that we
should consider is how can our Napili fire station respond
appropriately based where it is and use to get where it has to
go.
If you look where our fire station is, it's going to go
down Hanawai Street and onto Napilihau. I'm more concerned about
that fire station, that response than its secondary access from
Phase 2. I don't think we need Phase 2 entry. I would hope
they would look at another area to get access onto Honoapiilani
Highway.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So what you're proposing is eliminate that
access all together, Riki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I don't know what the exact answer
is, Mr. Chair. All I do know is that unless we kind of find a
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way to make it happen better, we're going to be like Piilani
Highway later on and we're just going to have a lot more
gridlock on that thoroughfare than we would want. And that's
just my thoughts on that traffic, but I want to bring up my
main concern that I shared with Ms. Inouye and Ms. Hiraga is the
sales of the proposed units in Phase 1, 2 and 3 of Napili
Villages.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Riki, what I'm going to do is take
this in two phases since there are two amendments, and I'm going
to put this first part to a vote, and then we'll go on to the
second part. I think they are two unrelated, or would you
prefer to bring them together?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'll defer to you as the Chairman of
the Committee, Mr. Arakawa.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: In that case, I would prefer that we take
care of the highway requirements and we can get that out of the
discussion and then go to the sales part. Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My concern, Mr. Chairman, is that
if there is a tsunami or any kind of, you know, really high
surge event, all of the traffic, if you only have one access
point where everybody is going to have to come down Napilihau
Street from the low areas, that's really going to impact that
roadway. And if now all the people have to come out of the
development or the subdivision onto Napilihau Street, it's going
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to make it very difficult because all the people on the lower
road starting, you know, at the low lying areas, there's very
few exits on that to higher ground. My concern is going to be,
and it may even be at some point that if the fire truck, talking
along Riki's concerns, if the fire truck couldn't get out onto
Napilihau Street and had an emergency where stuff was blocked,
at least it is another potential access in and out of that area.
And since it is only right turn in and right turn out, I -- I
don't know, I'm just viewing it differently because I've
traveled in that area an awful lot, and I just don't see it the
same way.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I have a question. As far as the fire
station, the road access, does it connect up to your subdivision
at all?
MS. INOUYE: The fire station, the fire trucks come right
onto Hanawai Street, so Ms. Johnson is correct that the fire
trucks could potentially come up to Hanawai Street, travel
through our project and come to onto Honoapiilani Highway.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. INOUYE: In fact, our roadway systems within the
project are designed for truck turnarounds for fire protection.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion in this area? Your
point.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I thank you. And I just, you
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know, for years that intersection at -- right at Napilihau
Street and Honoapiilani Highway, for years, that intersection
has not had, you know, a lane where you could turn in, you know,
or move out into traffic. And it really was very blind because
they would come down from Office Road, you know, with a head of
steam coming around a curve, so I think to me, anyway, it's a
much more natural accident prone area if an accident is going to
happen. To my knowledge, there may have been more than one
fatality, but I only recall one since I've lived there.
And the other viewplane that you have coming down when
you're rounding that curve at the access point that the project
really will be coming out at, I don't see that that's a very
visible area for anybody coming around, and frankly, just
speeding through that area, I don't speed down that area, not
unless you're coming off Office Road and you've got a green
light. That's it.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you know, I just take the
philosophy that if we have these two, what do you call this,
acceleration and deceleration, because who knows when, as Riki
said, the State is going to go four lanes. Who knows when. I
mean I think we've got more priorities, and I'm not going to
argue for either side of this island.
I mean, come on, we've done a bad job in getting our
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highways together. And so if it's for safety, let them put it
in. Why take it out if it's for safety. As I said, who knows
when this is going to turn to four lanes, but as long as we've
got that deceleration for the residents and acceleration, I
think it's necessary. So why remove the language? Secondly,
the channelization, with the change in this addition, the
channelization still is part of this proviso, right, so that's
not being taken out?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But, as I said, knowing they said
they're going to put it in, let them put it in. I think it's
for safety. Why eliminate something that's going to help? And
as Riki said, the State, I really -CHAIR ARAKAWA: I think you made your point. Any other
different points? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to raise one issue,
too, and maybe John can answer this. Maybe he can't though,
because I don't know if he approve this. But down on Kekaa
Drive and also the new strip mall that's going in that's coming
in right adjacent to Kekaa Drive, I guess it would be a new
driveway onto there. I think the new drive has a small, I
wouldn't even call it an acceleration lane, so both on Kekaa and
on the adjacent roadway, you've got exactly the same conditions
that Wayne is describing. And I didn't see any requirement for
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those developers to put those in, so I just want to know what
set of standards we're using here.
MR. MIN: I believe you're referring to the Fountain Plaza
project?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. MIN: If I recall, the access design requirements, the
highway access to that project were determined by Department of
Transportation. Okay. And they determined, you know, they
approved that. So, you know, from our standpoint, from the
Planning Commission's standpoint, the Department's standpoint,
we weren't involved in that specific decision.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Having heard what you just
said, then we don't have it at Kekaa. We don't have it in the
Fountain Plaza project. We talked about precedent setting
earlier. I think that -- and I'm not discounting the fact that
if it improves safety, fine. But I agree with Bob's view
that initially if you find that the operation of that
intersection or that area of the access is operating and there
are now problems and residents do not complain, I think the
people that are using that are going to let the public know
right away that that's a problem or not. And so far all the
people that have used Kekaa Drive for years, and I'm one of
them, I just wait for the puka to open up.
It's the people that make the left-hand turn now across
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four lanes. Those are the people that cause the accidents where
they're going and they're violating the law. So I don't know, I
just feel very odd about those situations which have existed for
years and then compelling all of a sudden this Applicant to come
up with a different criteria or different set of standards and
that's going to add more to the cost of the housing because I
have no idea what that lane would cost, but I also think they
are willing to put it in at the point in time that the
roadway is widened and the speed would be increased, which is
not happening at Kekaa or the other project.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You've made your point. Any other points
that need to be making -- made, excuse me? If not, I'm going to
entertain a motion to pass this proposal and we either go up or
down.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So move.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moved by Bob. Do I have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Seconded by Jo Anne. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair, point of clarification.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's the one that was presented to
us by the Applicant is the one we're voting on?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, this is what we're looking at a
proposed revised Condition No. 2(c). And the -- where it says
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providing for [acceleration and] a, underlined, deceleration
lane[s] and channelization to effect turn restrictions to the
new Honoapiilani Highway access. And underline the rest: and
providing for an acceleration lane if necessary, and as
determined by the State Department of Transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is the one. Okay. Further
discussion? If not, all in favor, say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We have two noes. If you voted no,
could you raise your hand.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Wayne and Hokama.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Riki did you vote no?
COUCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I voted no.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So the vote is six to two.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa.

NOES:

Councilmember Hokama and Nishiki.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.
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ABSTAIN: None.
ACTION:

APPROVE OF REVISED CONDITION 2(c)

Let's move on to the second part of the application.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Deletion of Condition No. 4. Would the
Applicant like to explain their justification and reason and
what -- why they want this.
MS. INOUYE: Yes, as we stated before, the restrictions
that are on the current zoning are not affordable housing
conditions as 140 percent of the median income is not considered
affordable. It is gap group or market, but the restrictions
will severely hamper our ability to finance the project, and so
what we're asking for is that those conditions be deleted.
Just some past history. I think Mr. Nishiki brought this
up. He wondered how many units we had on the property and so
forth, and just a short history. The initial zoning allowed for
296 units total, which would include the existing Napilihau
Villages. Napilihau Villages has 76 units, so that will allow us
to build 220 units on the property. When we took a look at the
property, we determined that the need for housing is for larger
units priced under 275,000.
Now, let me distinguish, although it was quite obvious, the
difference between need and demand. There's a clear demand on
the West Maui side for high-end luxury housing in excess of
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750,000. We chose not to do that. And instead we chose to meet
the needs of the Maui residents, which is basically if you look
at the application, our initial sales prices are estimated to
range between 210,000 to 255,000. Now, in order to make a
project like this work, we need help. I mean that's just the
facts. To put restrictions on marketing will severely, as I
said, hamper our ability to finance the project.
Financing requires that you presell units before you start
construction. The other issue is that it will string the
project out by the time requirements that are shown here, which
would also impact our construction costs. Right now, as you
heard, Mr. Tanaka testified earlier they feel that the strength
of the market is going to be in the next two years, and that's
what their economists, and they're the people that performed the
due diligence, has come up with. We don't predict anything.
All we know is that the market is very strong right now, and the
need for this type of housing is very strong.
Mr. Ong testified earlier, he's our sales manager, that
just based on the public meetings and public notices that we've
been doing and the information that we've been doing in the
Committee to let them know what we're doing on the project, he
has a master list of people waiting for information on the
project, and that's approaching 130 people.
Many of those people have asked if they should come out and
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testify today, but they all work, so I just told them send in
letters. We didn't feel it was critical for them to be here,
and I don't want them missing work. This project has been
through seven years of various types of testimony and hearings
and court cases. We just feel that the need for this type of
housing is long overdue and we request your support of our
request.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Questions? Riki.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. Ms.
Inouye, I commend you for trying to do this difficult project,
and I do mean difficult. In that you are a developer that did
not initiate this project, that you folks have assumed the
developmental rights that someone else earlier had processed.
And nonetheless, my concern has been and is at this time how do
we assist our Maui residents? And I mean Maui residents. I'm
not talking about speculators. I'm not talking about somebody
on Oahu. How do we take care of our Maui residents' affordable
housing needs?
And my understanding of the original conditions for No. 4
was to assist Maui residents in purchasing something affordable
that they could take pride in. With your proposal to eliminate
this, how can we continue to still address our Maui residents'
need for affordable housing in the West Maui area?
MS. INOUYE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. As it relates to this
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project in particular and in discussions with Mr. Hokama earlier
or late last week I should say, we talked -- I talked it over
with our sales manager, Eric Ong, and previously, we had been
focusing just on giving updates on schedule for the project to
brokers and real estate agents on the West Maui side. But after
talking to Mr. Hokama, we're going to expand that to brokers and
realtors also in the Central Maui area and Wailea because we
realize that there are a lot of residents that live in Kihei and
in Central Maui, but work on the west side, so to make sure
we get the information to them.
We're not just going to focus on getting the information
out to the West Maui brokers. We're going to have a concerted
effort to have education and information sent out to all of the
brokers on Maui. And that's because a lot of them do not
necessarily take the time to come out to our project, we will
find other ways to reach them, whether it's by fax or E-mail or
what have you, and if they ask for -- what we've been trying to
do is arrange for personal meetings with them as soon as we get
our preliminary public report to let them know that this project
is there, and we will do everything short of dragging those
people in by the hand to tell them about the project. But we're
certainly going to focus on Maui. Our preliminary public report,
the notice for owner occupants will be printed in the Maui News
and not in the Advertiser or the Star Bulletin. It will be
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printed in the Maui News.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, if I may continue,
please.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: You have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I hope you would utilize some of
the other maybe more regional types of publications. Maui News
may be our biggest County paper, but, you know, it has a limited
subscription base, so you may want to consider something in West
Maui or South Maui, Haleakala Times, Lanai, Molokai.
You know, my concern, as I would assume some of my
colleagues, is those that speculate. And so are we looking at
requirements for owner occupants? Do we have requirements for a
minimum length of stay before they can even consider speculating
and selling it to another party?
MS. INOUYE: The answer to the question is, yes, there is a
restriction on owner occupants, and there's a State law that
governs all condominium projects. It requires that for the
first 30 days, at least 50 percent of the units be offered only
to owner occupants, and that's -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: How many days, please, again, Ms.
Inouye.
MS. INOUYE: Thirty days. That's for the first 30 days it
must be offered only to owner occupants, and with our advance
sales effort and informational program, when we come up with
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that ad, the realtor should be looking for the ad so they can
get the specific information because until we get the public
report, we can't give a lot of information out.
All we can tell them is what we say in public meetings,
what the schedule is, when we anticipate the project to be
approved and so forth. You had also asked a question or part of
your question was what do we do to make sure this project is
affordable to Maui residents. And in answer to that question,
our concern was with the marketing restrictions on time
duration, the 90 days and so forth. But we would be willing for
the first six months to hold sales prices at or below 140
percent of the area median income.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: First six months holding the price.
Everybody listen to that now. I think that was important.
First sixth months.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hundred forty percent of median income.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you think, Ms. Inouye, 30 days is
enough though for the owner occupant provision?
MS. INOUYE: What that does is it restricts you to sell
those units only to owner occupants. It doesn't mean that they
cannot buy after that. And that's for every time you come out
with a phase, so if we have three marketing phases, for the
first 30 days of each phase, those 50 percent of the units can
only be marketed to owner occupants. They have to sign an owner
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occupant affidavit as well, and there is a restriction, a
current law right now that prohibits short-term rentals,
anything less than 30 days.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Members of this Committee is well
aware of our short-term rental problem in Maui County, so we can
appreciate that. And I appreciate you offering that six months,
and again, my understanding is we're looking at 210 to 255,000
range?
MS. INOUYE: Initial sales price is for the first phase.
We have some units that have view premiums. We would like to -those are later on in the project. We would like to be able to
increase those prices a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That would be in your succeeding
phases then?
MS. INOUYE: Right. But right now, and if I could step
back a little further. When I talked about the difference
between need and demand for housing, Mr. Hokama is right in that
this is a very troubled project, and everyone thought I was
crazy to take it on. I didn't have the support of the partners,
or the investors, I should say.
But when I went to do some do diligence in the West Maui
area, it became very apparent that there was a strong need for
this housing, and it was very clear because Eric Ong who lives
on the property in Phase 1 was getting calls constantly for
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rentals. And these are working people, people that work in
hotels, work in the area. The rents they're paying are
exorbitant. I mean they're paying rents in 1,200 to 1,400-plus
a month for these small two-bedroom units, 640 and 740, 800
square feet. So that seemed to be where the need really was.
So to further expand on our research, we met with over the span
of three months, we met with at least 7 or 8 brokers, a couple
of escrow companies, two appraisers and at least three lenders
in addition to people that opposed the project before.
I went through minutes of meetings, and we went to
look for these people. If they had moved away, we went to find
them, as long as they were on Maui, to see what their concerns
were about the project. And we felt that we've addressed all
that. When we showed them conceptually, I just had some
conceptual plans drawn up on the floor plans and the buildings,
and we went to these brokers, I didn't tell them what our sales
prices were. I showed them the plan, I showed them the project,
explained it to them and asked them what we should price them
at. With the exception of one, we were substantially below the
projection of where everyone else felt we should be in the
marketplace, and so we are self-imposing that, you know.
Riki knows I've been doing affordable housing. I've done
thousands of affordable housing units, but the developer needs
to make some money, and you need to finance the project. In
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order to finance the project, the lender is looking for a
specific return in a certain period of time. And I felt that I
could at least plead to the Council and the Planning Commission
to get that and bring this kind of housing to West Maui, but we
do need those conditions lifted in order to make it happen.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ms. Inouye, you know if for hard
working residents of this County, and I believe many of them
could qualify and handle the monthly payments for one of the
units in your proposed project, I would think that if they're
like my own family, a lot of the problem is the down payment,
the initial down. What can you do to assist our residents with
that down payment problem whereby they could, you know, they
qualify for the monthly payments? Is there something you can do
to help these owner occupant residents of this island, this
County to purchase?
MS. INOUYE: That's a very good question. The lender has a
requirement that owner occupants put at least 5 percent down,
and the reason for that is they want to make sure that a buyer
puts down enough money so they don't walk away, and they don't
speculate. So they have to be an owner occupant, they have to
have 5 percent down. If they're an investor, and if we ever get
to investors, they require more down, 10 percent down, to make
sure that again they don't walk away. My plead to the lenders
that we had met with was that there are low down, low percentage
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down loans available on the marketplace right now, 3 percent
loans. And we've talked to several lenders that are willing to
provide that, but they'll have to put the 5 percent down in
order for it to count as a sale, but that doesn't mean -- what
will happen at closing is if they qualify for a 3 percent loan,
the balance can go to closing costs. And what we would like to
do as soon as possible, because we're planning to come out with
our preliminary public report, hopefully if everything goes
well, by the first week in March.
The contingent final report, which would really make
it a solid sale, will not come out until after we get final SMA
approval, so that will probably be in May sometime. In that
time, we are going to be counseling the buyers to make sure they
set aside the money for their deposit. In fact, a lot of the
residents because they live in our Napilihau Villages right now.
And they're talking to Eric. They know there's a project coming
out. There's a disclosure issue with them. We have to tell
them what's happening next door and so forth.
And Eric has been working with them, and so far, they're
all saying 5 percent down will not be a problem. Now, I've
talked to lenders, too, so besides some of the people that Eric
has talked to, we've talked to lenders to ask them what kind of
people have been buying this kind of housing in West Maui.
Well, number one, the only thing that's been done recently was
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Napilihau Villages, the current project.
And they said it's interesting because there is no housing
on West Maui, and because real estate values in general are very
high in West Maui, our buyers' parents have no problem helping
them co-sign or assisting them with a down payment where
required.
But we're also seeing a lot of unrelated couples, brother
and sister siblings buying units, too, so that we think will be
beneficial. The other thing we've done is in looking at the
need again for housing in West Maui, we could have done more
dense units. We could have done a lot of one-bedrooms,
smaller two-bedrooms and such, but really, the dire need is for
three-bedrooms units. As Eric said earlier, the cheapest threebedroom you can get on West Maui side right now is in excess of
350,000, and so what we're doing is we're trying to do the
second best thing which is an attached product, a town house
product that's three bedrooms/two baths, and three bedrooms/two
and a half baths and very decent sizes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You feel your project is going to
add to -- because we are aware of that Maui Pine is going to do
a -- I don't know if it's still the right word, employee
housing.
MS. INOUYE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But you feel your project will be
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able to offer something to those employees as well as being a
supplement to the inventory?
MS. INOUYE: In fact, we've been asked to do a presentation
to their employees, Maui Land and Pine's employees, because
although they're doing their employee housing, that reaches a
certain level of employees. And there are other housing needs
of other employees in the area, so as soon as we get the public
report, we will be scheduling that to do a presentation to them.
Some of the hotels have asked for more information because
they're having a hard time getting workers because they don't
want to travel from Central Maui, and they can't get rental
housing. So they've asked for input as soon as we can get it.
I mean people that opposed the project before are telling us,
you know what, the project is going to happen. It's in-fill,
and we need the housing. Our managers have no place to stay.
The people that work here have no place to stay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your 130-plus requests that maybe
Mr. Ong testified earlier, prior, that is basically just from
Maui the interest?
MS. INOUYE: I would guess at about 80-plus percent is from
Maui. And the rest are people that come and stay in the area,
and if they see a for sale sign on a unit in Napilihau Villages
and Eric is sitting it, they'll ask for information. We're not
selling anything though, so he just takes their name down. But
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the strong interest is from Maui residents on the West Maui
side. They're either renting in the area or -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Looking for an upgrade.
MS. INOUYE: Well, yeah -- but there's not too many looking
for an upgrade because there's nothing they can really own, so
it's mostly people that live in the area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Ms. Inouye.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is this project already bought by
this group that you are representing?
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So that means that when you
bought this project, you knew exactly what conditions were put
on this project?
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. INOUYE: Yes, let me explain though.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. INOUYE: You may know that Mr. Jimmy Lee was the
original developer and he came to the Kobayashi's because he
needed capital to do the project. It was an affordable housing
project. The Kobayashi's thought it would be a good thing, so
they provided capital equity to Jimmy Lee, but we had no
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operational control over daily activities. They also signed a
personal guaranty on the construction loan, so when the Supreme
Court decision came down that remanded the SMA permit,
invalidated the building permits and certificates of occupancy,
it was just before Thanksgiving, we were already moving people
in. The project was 80 percent complete. We couldn't pay off
the loan. We couldn't pay off the contractors. The Kobayashi's
were the ones that signed the personal guaranty. They had to
step in and take over the project.
If they were given the choice of whether they would
purchase this project or not, they would not have purchased the
project. I think I explained earlier that I was the only one
that wanted to do this after it had sat for years on our books.
Yes, we do know that the condition is there, but as I said
earlier, in order to make this project work at the market that
we're projecting right now, which is where we feel really the
need is, we need help. We can't finance it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But the reason why we put in these
conditions was because we were told at that time that this was
going to be for housing for Maui residents. What you're doing
now is you're trying to eliminate this clause, which we perhaps
at that time felt was important that this is the group of
people living here as you represented today that want to buy.
So why are you trying to eliminate that language? And
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you knew ahead of time that this is what the condition read -MS. INOUYE: Yes, at that time -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- before any of us here.
MS. INOUYE: We're not denying that we weren't aware of it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: we're seeing many places now being
bought by outside people, and I'm not saying good or bad. But
I'm saying this is the reason why housing costs is so high. So
for you to now want to eliminate these conditions and then in
(d) it says, thereafter, to any other persons intending to use
the units for long-term residents, this makes it a free-forall. And I think every time I see something like this
happens, because as you said, there is a need, why not go with
this and see if you're going to have problems? You said you
don't have any problems right now. You told Riki that out of
the list, 80 percent were Maui people that live here. So why
not go forward and see what occurs, what happens?
MS. INOUYE: Mr. Nishiki, may I answer your question. I
think I know where you're headed with this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What'd you say?
MS. INOUYE: I think I know where you're headed with this.
I understand your concern. The restrictions as written
says Maui residents for 90 days. If I do not meet the presale
requirement in 90 days, I cannot start the project. I cannot
sell to anyone else. I have to wait until I go to the second
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set of conditions and the third set of conditions and the fourth
set of conditions. If you add all that up, that's 270 days
every time I put a group of units out on the market. That's
three-quarters of a year. This project would go on for six
years.
That's why the residents in the area, the people that are
on the list in the area said, "We don't want this. We want the
project out and done as soon as possible." And we are using our
marketing efforts to reach the Maui residents that way. It's
not a workable situation. Furthermore, a list is just a list.
We haven't prequalified these people. These are just people
that want information on the project. We haven't done any
advertising. These are just people that are coming to us.
But my experience with lists is basically you're lucky if
you get one for every four that are on a list. I mean I've seen
it in the late '70s, late '80s when real estate was booming.
You would have a list of literally, I've worked with a list of
over 1,000 people. By the time you get to market, you lose a
good deal of that. We lost -- we had a list -- was it over 300
for Phase 1 for Napilihau Villages? You know that by the time
we were ready to close units in that project, we had no list.
The list had entirely evaporated. That's how sensitive the
market is. So we as a governing body, because I also serve on
the governing body, have to look to make sure that we don't
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restrict this type of housing. You have to make a lot to
happen. And I think Mr. Hokama's concerns and the concerns of
the other Council members was this is a good project at this
sales price. What can you do to make sure it gets to our Maui
residents at those sales prices.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the answer that you gave us was
how you expected --.
MS. INOUYE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to do it? The answer that you
gave Riki was how you expected to do it.
MS. INOUYE: How I expected to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: My question is this.
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Because there are other people out
there that see Maui as a place to speculate, how do you come in
and say we're going to take care of Maui people first?
MS. INOUYE: One thing I've done very consciously, there
are no project amenities. There's no swimming pool. There's no
rental office, and there's no recreation center. There's just a
passive park area if you want to take little kids out there and
sit there with a toddler, and that's it. Now, speculators are
people that are looking for an investment typically need to be
sure that they can have short-term rentals and have a rental
office. We have no such thing, and there's no pool.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There's a big pool right at the
ocean, and I've seen many units that don't have that. But
that's not the problem. The problem I'm concerned about is you
now taking this very condition that when you -- that you knew
was in there and now making it a free-for-all there by perhaps
icing out many Maui residents.
MS. INOUYE: No, Wayne, what I'm saying is you leave that
condition in there, I can't finance the project. You get
nothing. That's what the fact is. You know you wanna leave that
condition in there -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: (inaudible)
MS. INOUYE: No, no. We, I can't finance it. There is one
lender in Hawai'i that's willing to finance this project, and I
want to keep it with a local lender. I've talked to several
mainland lenders as well, and mainland money is very tight for
this kind of project. They want high-end stuff. That's
the reality. I mean I'm being very honest with you, and that's
why we have the lender here.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that -CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other questions? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Kathy, I really appreciate you
coming, staying all this length of time. I know it's been a
long day, and you have to go back to Oahu. One of the things
that I wanted to find out from you is that when the original
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plan came, you reduced the density, that's correct?
MS. INOUYE: We redid the entire plan.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you redid it?
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The original concerns that people
had about the type of people that were going to move into this
area, I know when I met with you, you pretty much and others
have testified that those concerns were met, so that's not a
problem any longer?
MS. INOUYE: That's not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. The drainage, the big
retention basin, which is going to cost you -- how much is that
going to cost?
MS. INOUYE: What's the latest estimate on that?
UNKNOWN SPEAKER: (spoke from the audience -- inaudible)
MS. INOUYE: About half a million.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that retention basin, which is
going to be actually maintained ultimately by Maui Land and
Pine, that also is something was that originally proposed in the
project?
MS. INOUYE: There was a detention basin, not the same, but
there was a detention basin proposed. What we've done
differently, and I do want to stress this because, you know, all
the issues that were brought up today, as I said, in addition to
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canvasing everyone in the area, we've done numerous meetings.
I mean all together over 24 meetings, two dozen meetings,
with everyone that's involved in the project.
And unless there's a letter that you have received that I'm
not aware of, and this is public notice, I don't think you have
a letter that opposes the project. I think they're all in
support. And that's because we've done a lot of work to
communicate and work with everyone. Yes, there were serious
concerns that were expressed on this project. We've mitigated
all the concerns, and I've been educated quite a bit from the
people that oppose the project and there are potentially
negative impacts as a result of any upstream development that
feeds into our ocean undershore waters and to mitigate those
impacts.
It's not just what we've designed on the drainage systems.
We've hired three marine biologists to monitor. We started
baseline water quality monitoring, and that's all been as a
result of our talking to the Committee, talking to people that
oppose the project, talking to people that are involved in the
project, so we've gone beyond what we need to do. It's things
that I felt were necessary, and it's an additional cost to the
project, but I feel it's something we had to do. It's a
responsibility of the developer or should be a responsibility of
every developer.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So the detention basin is now part
of the plan?
MS. INOUYE: Is part of our project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: From what I gathered from speaking
to people at Alealoa and also at Kahana Sunset, they don't have
any concerns because you, in effect, are improving the water
quality in the bay, that's correct?
MS. INOUYE: Right, and they have all sent letters of
support.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, I just would like to
make the statement that originally when I ran for public office,
I basically felt very strongly that we needed a carrying
capacity study before any projects before I personally would
approve any projects. From everything that I have looked at in
this project, from the people that I've spoken to, from the
improvements that have been made in the area and from the
desperate need of West Maui residents to have some place to
live, and many of them they would like t.o live in the area, but
they can't afford it. They can't find housing. I actually
think this will alleviate many of the problems because people
that work in the hotels will work there, so I do support The
project.
And I think that from what you've said and having dealt
with lenders before, they know what the market is. I think that

229

we should go with their recommendations and I do support the
project and I do support it having every opportunity for
success. So I do support the measure that she's asking for.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other discussion? Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Kathy, just a quick question
regarding to our labor force. What assurances can we get from
you that you will try to employ as much labor from Maui County?
MS. INOUYE: We are right now in negotiations on the site
work with a Maui contractor and on the vertical with the Maui
contractor, or I should say, it's Albert C. Kobayashi that has a
Maui office, and because they haven't had a lot of work on Maui
recently, they've had to almost shut down the office. And as
long as they can come within budget because our budget is
controlled, as I say, by the lender, we would like them to have
the work. And, of course, their first choice is to use Maui -the Maui work force, and both shops will be union.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just one question, Mr. Chair. You're
asking for a complete deletion of this condition. What
consideration did you give to a compromise in this condition
rather than deletion and if you can explain how you folks
arrived at the deletion versus a compromise to make it work.
MS. INOUYE: Okay. Why don't I pass out the proposed
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language. We went for a total deletion, but after hearing
concerns expressed by Council member Hokama and some of the
others, because we're priced well below 140 percent of median
income, I've stated that for the first six months the declarant
shall hold sales prices at or below 140 percent of the area
median income.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. If there are no further comments,
what I'm gonna propose to do is I'm going to request a motion to
delete this, but I'm also going to ask for an amendment to
include what is being passed out. Does that make sense? Or any
other amendments? Yes, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, I have the
floor?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, go ahead you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you. So just to
understand the proposal, we're deleting what's existing here, A,
B, C and D, and we're replacing it with what you have just
handed out to us?
MS. INOUYE: That's what we're willing to live with that,
yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Clarification from you folks.
MS. INOUYE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And for a translation, since you're
talking about 140 percent, what does that translate into dollars
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if you can do that, or is it possible so we can look at it from

MS. INOUYE: It is possible. The reason I said 140 percent
of area median income instead of a sales price is because the
140 percent of area median income floats with prevailing
interest rates. And what Eric read was a 6.75 interest rate,
which translates to a sales price of $310,000. If interest
rates go up, it results in the lower sales price.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so what correlation does that
$310,000 based on what numbers were given earlier to the 210 to
255,000 sales price for these units?
MS. INOUYE: Okay, let's see. We're well below. You know,
Mr. Kane, there are different interest rates, but this basically
would be 140 percent at 6.75 is $310,000; 130 percent is 284.8;
120 percent is 259 looks like a six or an eight. The copy is
kind of blurred here. The 110 is 234.4.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So my question would be then, Mr.
Chairman, if I may.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. My question would be then,
and again, I'm just trying to understand throughout your
presentation, the 210 to 255 range and now we're having a
proposed revised Condition of No. 4 with 140 percent, which at
6.75 percent is about $310,000?
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MS. INOUYE: At 6.75.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: At 6.75?
MS. INOUYE: Right. If interest rates go up, let's say
interest rates go up to 7, 7 and a half, at 140 percent of
median income, at 7 and a half, sales prices would be 287.6, at
130 it would be 264.2. So it floats depending on what the
prevailing interest rates are. Do you see the table?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So you're not willing to put a fixed
dollar amount in that position instead of the 140 percent?
MS. INOUYE: That would be 310, 310.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And, I -MS. INOUYE: Well, you know, the reason that we put the 140
is because that's a condition that was there before. And it's
meant to float with prevailing interest rates because at that
income level, at the 140 percent of median income level, they
can afford so much house. So if I set a sales price, that may
or may not meet the need of the 140 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are you done, Dain?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Chairman, if you can look at
-- you know the May 22nd communication. I was just looking back
the -- I'm trying to follow the sequence of this entire project.
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At one point, on this May 22nd, 1998, from the Department of
Planning, the Applicant has represented in the unilateral
agreement set out in the CIZ ordinance the units for this
development shall be marketed as follows. And it says 10
percent affordable to families with income at or below 80
percent of Maui County's median annual income. Twenty
percent of affordable to families with income or at below 81 to
120 percent of Maui County's annual income. And 20 percent of
these units affordable to families with income at or below 121
to 140 percent of Maui County's median annual income. Is this
something that has been met or because of what being done today
is this totally washed out now?
MS. INOUYE: Mr. Nishiki, I can answer that question. That
was for Phase 1, the first 76 units, and, yes, those conditions
have been met. Now, again, because we're only involved in part
of the project, there was a lack of paperwork that was done by
the original developer to the County of Maui, so what we did is
we went back to research the records to see what the sales
prices were at. We checked escrow records to see what the units
were sold at, and we provided a copy of that to Department of
Housing, but they've far exceeded that -- those requirements
there on the affordable.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, are we to say that this has
been met already? Is it my understanding that this has been met
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and so we're moving on to the next phase?
MS. INOUYE: That's for the old project.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is Phase 1?
MS. INOUYE: Well, the project was bifurcated, you know,
because of the contested case hearing. But the Planning
Commission requested is that they only act on Napilihau
Villages, and that was -- although it was called Phase 1 at the
time, it was considered a separate project. So the conditions
of that separate project that was done have been met.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So under this SMA here, 9 buildings
at Napilihau Villages Phase 1 and all the conditions have been
met?
MS. INOUYE: That's right. As I said, in terms of meeting
the sales price requirements, those have been met, but the
developer neglected to send in the information as the units were
sold, so after the fact, we provided a copy of the sales prices
of each unit. Is that right, Eric? Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So we're now in what phase?
MS. INOUYE: A new project. New developer, new project,
because, again -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then you're asking carte
blanche no conditions?
MS. INOUYE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Was there any conditions placed?
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MS. INOUYE: No, this is a new -CHAIR ARAKAWA: The conditions that were in place are
Condition No. 4 which we're voting on. I believe that's -that's the conditions, right, as far as the pricing, the
conditions are Condition No. 4, which we're now discussing for
this project.
MS. INOUYE: So when the zoning conditions still run with
this land, but this land does not have an SMA permit.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne. Somebody else wanted to ask a
question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, go ahead.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. No other questions. Go ahead,
Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Ordinance 2317, which granted the
A-1 apartment zoning of 12.567 acres, John, or whomever, was
that inclusive in this Phase 1, is that the same ordinance?
MS. SUYAMA: The ordinance granted the zoning for the
entire property which included the Napilihau Villages which was
Phase 1 which was completed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. SUYAMA: And which has an SMA permit.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. SUYAMA: It also includes the Napilihau Villas project,
which is what Ms. Inouye is proposing.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And then with the Napili
Villas project, these conditions were put in by -- during the -what, this doesn't have an SMA she said right now.
MS. SUYAMA: These conditions that are part of the actual
zoning ordinance is still applicable to this project because it
was done as the whole area of the land area. So besides the
conditions that they're asking to amend, there are additional
conditions that were set in that zoning ordinance that they are
still subject to.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Too?
MS. SUYAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so what they're doing now is
trying to get a (inaudible)
MS. SUYAMA: So they're asking for two amendments. One is
dealing with the traffic improvements on the second access to
the highway, and the second one is the one that restricts the
sales.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: To Maui County residents?
MS. SUYAMA: Not only that, it's the timing of how you do
your sales.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. So in the book that was handed out,
these are the conditions -MS. SUYAMA: Right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- as I understand them. That's the one
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we're working with, right?
MS. SUYAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, so the other one has been
met?
MS. SUYAMA: Right, the first phrase is completed, it's met
its conditions. After the zoning application is completed or
concurrently, they have an application in the Department for a
new SMA permit for the Napili Villas project, and as part of
that, they're also going through a new environmental assessment
pursuant to Chapter 343.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this, Colleen. When
you look at this project now and what they want to do with it,
has that phase changed a lot?
MS. SUYAMA: Not in what they're intending to do, which is
trying to provide housing. The only major change is the
drainage in which they're basically improving the drainage.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So at the time when the entire
package was presented to the Commission and to the Council, I
think we went through this process, the phase that they
projected and the conditions that were put on, and now they're
asking to change. The cost of the units were -- is the same?
MS. SUYAMA: The same in terms of the condition that was
applied to the Napili Villages project was to Maui residents
limited not more than 140 percent of median income. What
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actually happened is they provided at lower incomes not only the
120 but to those that are on the lower percentage of median, so
but it still remained an affordable project and it still met the
conditions set by the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How many phases in the entire
project?
MS. SUYAMA: Right now they're proposing three phases for
this development. With the first phase, you're talking about a
complete four phases in total with the first phase that was
completed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And when the -- when the ordinance
was passed in the following phases, we had no -- nothing more
than just this language in there?
MS. SUYAMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: As to how much these units were to
be marketed for?
MS. SUYAMA: That's correct, was always limited to 140
percent of the median.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's all. Thank you.
MS. INOUYE: One small correction to that though. The
previous developers's application had 220 units in the balance
of the project and we're proposing 184. We feel that's a
significant change. Also architecturally, the units are
substantially different.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you ready for a motion, Mr.
Chair?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, if there are no more questions, then
the intent of the Chair recommendation is that we accept a
motion to delete Condition No. 4 and amend it to include the
revised conditions. So, if I could have a motion to accept.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you see it as two separate
motions?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I see it as a motion and then an amendment
to that motion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I move to delete Condition No 4.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded to delete
Condition No. 4. Discussion? The amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The amendment would be to insert -this just seems a little weird -- to insert proposed revision
Condition No. 4 which reads for the first six months the
declarant shall hold sales prices at or below 140 percent of the
area median income.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had a suggestion why like
Charmaine's point about two motions. Can't we just substitute
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one for the other and just say that we substitute the language
in the new proposal for the language in the old?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll do it with this. Same thing. It
will come out to the same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. And we're there already.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah. And we can do it many number of
ways, but this will do it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, fine.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the amendment to the original motion is
to replace the wording that was passed out, propovision revised
Condition No. 4. For the first six months the declarant shall
hold the sales prices at or below 140 percent of the median
income. That will replace the original wording. That is what
the amendment is.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just for clarification, we're not
replacing anything, because the main motion is to delete
completely, and so I think Charmaine's amendment to that is to
insert this new proposed revised Condition No. 4. So it's not a
replacement, it's an insertion of something that's no longer
there.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Is that okay, Ed?
MR. KUSHI: Whatever works.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: You know what the intent is.

The intent

is to replace what is Condition No. 4 with this new condition.
Okay. Any discussion? All those in favor of the amendment, say
aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. One no. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Tavares, Hokama, Kane and Chair
Arakawa.

NOES:

Councilmember Nishiki.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE REVISED CONDITION NO. 4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And then the original motion, which was
replaced with this one. So we're deleting the old one and
replacing it with this one. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Main motion revised.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Main motion revised. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: As amended.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: As amended. I'm kind of late. I'm trying
to work on this one. Okay. All those in favor say aye.
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COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Motion passed.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa.

NOES:

Councilmember Nishiki.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN: None.
ACTION:

Approve revised Condition No. 4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And essentially what we have done, just to
make sure that the record is very clear on this, Ed, is we have
deleted the Condition No. 4 that was previously there and we
have replaced it with a proposed revised Condition No. 4 just to
make sure the record is absolutely clear. Okay. Any other
discussion before I adjourn this meeting?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where are we going to dinner?
MS. INOUYE: Thank you, Chair, Members, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And before we adjourn, Dave, what
you want me to do? So we have the bill, the original bill with
these two amendments that were passed out, and we'll insert them
in the bill removing what we did. Okay. And then we're going
to file the communication.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Moved and seconded whatever I just said.
All those in favor, say aye.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. PK)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,
Molina, Tavares, Hokama, Kane and Chair
Arakawa.

NOES:

Councilmember Nishiki.

EXC.:

Councilmember Kawano.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill, as revised, and
FILING of communication.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: As the bill is amended and filing
the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Meeting adjourned.
(The meeting was concluded.)
ADJOURNED: 7:48 p.m.

